
 

 
Mark Williams, Chief Executive 

Agenda for consultative meeting of the LED 

Monitoring Forum 
Tuesday, 7th June, 2022, 6.00 pm 
 
Members of LED Monitoring Forum 

 

Councillors  P Arnott, D Bickley, A Dent, B De Saram, 
S Hawkins (Chair), P Hayward, N Hookway, 

G Jung, J Loudoun, P Millar (Vice-Chair), 
J Rowland. 

 

Venue: Online via Zoom app 

 
Contact: Sarah James 01395 519978 Email: 

sjames@eastdevon.gov.uk 

(or group number 01395 517546) 
Thursday, 26 May 2022; Reissued 1 June 2022; 6 June 2022 
 
Important - this meeting will be conducted online and recorded by Zoom only. 

Please do not attend Blackdown House.  

Members are asked to follow the Protocol for Remote Meetings  
 

This meeting is being recorded by EDDC for subsequent publication on the Council’s 

website and will be streamed live to the Council’s Youtube Channel at 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCmNHQruge3LVI4hcgRnbwBw 

 
Public speakers are now required to register to speak – for more information please use 
the following link: https://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/have-your-say-at-

meetings/all-other-public-meetings/#article-content  
 

Until 31st October 2022, the Council has delegated much of the decision making to 
officers. Any officer decisions arising from recommendations from this consultative 
meeting will be published on the webpage for this meeting in due course.  All meetings 

held can be found via the Browse Meetings webpage. 
 

1 Public Speaking   

 Information on public speaking is available online 
 

2 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 12 April 2022  (Pages 3 - 7) 

3 Apologies   

4 Declarations of interest   

 Guidance is available online to Councillors and co-opted members on making 

declarations of interest 
 

5 Matters of urgency   

6 Confidential/exempt item(s)   

East Devon District Council 
Blackdown House 

Border Road 

Heathpark Industrial Estate 
Honiton 

EX14 1EJ 

DX 48808 HONITON 

Tel: 01404 515616 

www.eastdevon.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack

page 1

http://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/protocol-for-virtual-meetings
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCmNHQruge3LVI4hcgRnbwBw
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/have-your-say-at-meetings/all-other-public-meetings/#article-content
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/have-your-say-at-meetings/all-other-public-meetings/#article-content
https://democracy.eastdevon.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/have-your-say-at-meetings/all-other-public-meetings/#article-content
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillor-conduct/councillor-reminder-for-declaring-interests/


 To agree any items to be dealt with after the public (including the Press) have 
been excluded. There is one item which officers recommend should be dealt 
with in this way. 

 

7 Draft Leisure & Built Facilities Strategy  (Pages 8 - 279) 

8 Property & FM Team Update on properties occupied by LED  (Pages 280 - 290) 

9 LED Facilities and Activities Update May 2022  (Pages 291 - 297) 

10 LED Community Engagement Report May 2022  (Pages 298 - 299) 

11 LED Dashboard April 2022  (Page 300) 

Part B 

 
12 Colyton Leisure Centre - Proposals to restructure operating arrangements with 

the school  (Pages 301 - 309) 

 
 
 

Decision making and equalities 
 

For a copy of this agenda in large print, please contact the Democratic 
Services Team on 01395 517546 

 

page 2

http://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/committees-and-meetings/decision-making-and-equalities-duties/


EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Minutes of the meeting of LED Monitoring Forum held at Online via zoom app 

on 12 April 2022 

 
Attendance list at end of document 

The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 7.23 pm 
 

 
116    Public Speaking  

 

One member of the public had registered to speak at the meeting. 

 
Mr Mike Goodman commented that it was disappointing that this was the first time a 
resident had spoken at a meeting of the LED Monitoring Forum, and he hoped his 

contribution would add value to the leisure debate. In his statement, Mr Goodman raised 
a number of points and questions: 

 Had the Forum discussed the social value aspect of LED Community Leisure in Devon, 
estimated projections of which were set out in LED’s published accounts in March 2021, 
and the key role of leisure provision in public health? 

 Could the Forum confirm that the Leisure Strategy, once completed, would include a 
detailed equalities report? 

 Would the new Leisure Strategy be completed by May 2022, and would it be taken to full 
Council? 

 Would the excellent facility at Exmouth Pavilion continue to be maintained, as part of the 
new Leisure Strategy, given that it is costly to EDDC? 

 A document is published showing high-level Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for LED; 
i) is the Forum informed of a more comprehensive list of KPIs?; ii) can these be made 
public?; iii) what benchmarking was used with other authorities when completing the 
KPIs?; and iv) will the KPIs be changed after the Leisure Strategy is adopted? 

 Could the Forum confirm that detailed or abridged LED management accounts are 
discussed, albeit not in open forum? 

 Once agreed, would the Leisure Strategy form the basis for any negotiations concerning 
the LED Community Leisure contract? 

 These were challenging times for the leisure industry; Mr Goodman suggested a plan is 
put in place to drive down operating costs and increase revenue in order that LED 
becomes less reliant on EDDC in the future, in making up financial shortfalls. 

 
In responding to Mr Goodman, the following points were made: 

 Whilst members of the public had not registered to speak at previous meetings of this 
Forum, 845 people had responded to the public consultation for the Leisure and Built 
Facilities Strategy, which was a good number for a local council. 

 The LED Social Value report was discussed at length at a previous meeting of the Forum 
(minutes of the 14 September 2021 meeting refer). 

 A draft Leisure Strategy is expected from Strategic Leisure in May 2022, including advice 
on inclusivity, access and equalities considerations. 

 The Exmouth Pavilion will form part of the Leisure Strategy and/or the updated Culture 
Strategy; until these documents are completed, it is not possible to state whether EDDC 
can maintain the facility without extra cost. 

 The LED KPI report sets out trends concerning LED activities.  Once completed, the 
Leisure Strategy will identify outcomes that can be translated into meaningful KPIs but 
without the strategy, any KPIs the Council could ask for would be somewhat arbitrary.   

 Detailed LED management accounts are received by the Forum and form part of the 
discussion around subsidies; due to commercial sensitivities, these accounts are 
discussed in private session.  It was noted that, as a registered society under the 
Cooperative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, LED’s accounts are available 
through the Financial Conduct Authority Mutuals Public Register. 

page 3

Agenda Item 2



LED Monitoring Forum 12 April 2022 
 

 EDDC has an excellent record of providing leisure facilities, particularly throughout the 
pandemic at a cost to EDDC of £1.9 million, and without any financial support from 
central government, demonstrating the competence of officers and willingness of 
members to continue to provide leisure facilities in the district. 

 

The Chair thanked Mr Goodman for his contribution to the meeting. 
 

117    Minutes of the previous meeting held on 1 March 2022  

 

Minutes of the previous meeting held on 1 March 2022 were noted as a true and 

accurate record. 
 

118    Declarations of interest  

 

Cllr P Millar: Minutes 121 – 125; Personal Interest: Member of LED Community Leisure. 
Cllr A Dent: Minutes 121 – 125; Personal Interest: Member of LED Community Leisure. 
Cllr G Jung: Minutes 121 – 125; Personal Interest: Family members are members of LED 

Community Leisure. 
Cllr P Arnott: Minute 124; Personal Interest: Represents the Coly Valley ward. 

 
119    Matters of urgency  

 

There as one matter of urgency (minute 124 refers). 
 

120    Confidential/exempt item(s)  

 

There was one item to be considered in private session (minute 125 refers). 
 

121    LED Facilities and Activities report March 2022  

 

A report from the LED Director of Delivery had been circulated in advance, providing an 

update on the activities of LED Community Leisure including community work, health and 
fitness, facilities, projects, marketing and communications, and a summary of customer 

feedback.   
 

The LED Director of Delivery provided a brief verbal summary of the content of the report 
and invited comment. 

 
Discussion of the report included the following points: 

 The work to upgrade the Sidmouth swimming pool changing rooms has included 
refreshing the existing disabled changing facilities as well as creating some larger 
changing spaces, designated as family changing areas, but suitable for use by people 
with carers. 

 Given the continued prevalence of Covid in East Devon and the impact on the NHS 
locally, concern was raised about the removal of Covid-security measures (e.g. screens, 
face coverings) at LED sites, and the bottleneck of customers around reception areas.  It 
was suggested that LED might like to further review what it can do to help members feel 
safe within LED facilities.   

 It was encouraging to see linkages throughout the report between LED’s outreach work 
and the public health and NHS agendas. 

 
The report was noted and the Chair thanked the LED Director of Delivery for his 

contribution. 

page 4



LED Monitoring Forum 12 April 2022 
 

 
122    LED Outreach Report March 2022  

 

The LED Community Engagement Officer ran through the content of the LED Outreach 

report, detailing the links being developed in the community and the building of long-term 
partnerships to support the NHS Long Term Health Plan and delivery of the EDDC Public 
Health Strategy.   

 
Examples of community engagement and outreach work included: 

 A Littleham Health and Wellbeing Fair was planned for May, to promote community 
activities, at a lower cost, in an area of social deprivation. 

 Working with disengaged students at Exmouth Community College who shy away from 
sport and PE lessons. 

 Opening up space for coaches and community physiotherapists to deliver classes and 
engage with clients. 

 
Discussion of the report included the following points: 

 There was no reference to Cranbrook in the report; the LED Community Engagement 
Officer confirmed that she had been trying for some time to secure a meeting with the 
Sport England Local Delivery Pilot and this had taken place last week.  She expressed 
confidence that there was value to add in Cranbrook, going forward. 

 A Member expressed that the Littleham Health and Wellbeing Fair was an important and 
valuable piece of work, and very positive for the area. 

 
The Forum noted the report and the Chair thanked the LED Community Engagement 
Officer for her contribution. 

 
123    LED Dashboard February 2022  

 

The Forum received and noted key details of the performance of LED Community 

Leisure for February 2022, including an outline of the net promoter score. 
 

124    Colyton Leisure Centre and All Weather Pitch  

 

A report prepared by the Service Lead – Place, Asset & Commercialisation had been 

circulated in advance, providing an update on the current discussions with Colyton 
Grammar School (CGS) regarding the realignment of the terms of the existing 

Management Agreement and Lease agreements, alongside CGS proposals to install a 
new all-weather pitch (AWP) and associated floodlights. 
 

The report set out the following points, following a recent meeting with CGS: 
 It had been agreed in principle that the Management Agreement for the Sports Centre 

should be altered to reflect the changes in Sports Hall usage by both parties over the last 
decade, so that the split of costs is altered from EDDC paying 60% of costs and CGS 
40%, to EDDC paying just 40% and CGS 60%. 

 As part of the discussions, CGS had raised the need to replace the AWP and floodlights 
at an estimated cost in the region of £360k.  CGS are currently fundraising to meet this 
capital cost but asked whether EDDC would contribute 40%, equating to approximately 
£144k.  Use of the AWP would then be incorporated in a new lease document securing its 
long-term future for the general public.   

 The proposals were currently out to tender and a contractor would be appointed, with a 
view to starting work during the summer holidays. 

 
Within the report the Forum was asked to consider the following recommendations: 

page 5



LED Monitoring Forum 12 April 2022 
 

 A business case is prepared whereby EDDC make a 40% contribution to the AWP and 
floodlights which is considered in advance of the overall Leisure Strategy review 
outcomes of shared LED sites. 

 That the Forum support a report direct to Cabinet to consider the contribution to the AWP 
and floodlights once a fuller business case is developed.  If supported, this will then 
require an onward recommendation to Council for budget. 

 Discussions continue alongside the production of this report which ensure the necessary 
changes to the Management Agreement and Lease are captured in revised Heads of 
Terms and updated documents. 

 
In the absence of the Service Lead – Place, Assets & Commercialisation, the LED CEO 
verbally outlined the context to the recommendations the Forum was being asked to 

consider.  It was noted that: 
 If the pitch and floodlights are not repaired this summer, there is a risk that that use of the 

pitch could be lost over the winter, which would in turn affect the revenue that LED 
receives from the pitch, equating to approximately £20k per year. 

 The Leisure Strategy will inform members about the importance of the pitch at CGS 
relative to other pitches in the area; an outline draft of the Strategy is expected in May but 
the final version will not be available until June/July 2022. 

 

In discussion of the report, the following points were made: 
 It had been apparent for some five years that the life cycle of the pitch was coming to an 

end.   

 It was reported anecdotally that the AWP at CGS was very well used by local young 
people and adults.  If the pitch was lost for a year, it would have a serious impact on 
these users and local sports teams. 

 It was noted that the AWP gets intense use as a school playground and it was not known 
whether pupils and students were asked to wear appropriate footwear to avoid damaging 
the surface. 

 If the AWP is not replaced during the summer holidays 2022, there is unlikely to be 
another appropriate time for the work to be undertaken before the summer 2023, due to 
the time it takes to complete the work, and the availability of contractors, 

 There was some work for the Service Lead – Place, Assets & Commercialisation to do in 
ascertaining the cost and benefit of replacing the AWP this summer and how long it would 
take for the benefit to work through as a financial return on investment. 

 Views were expressed that it would be appropriate to consider the proposal as part of the 
budget setting process for next year, by which time the Leisure Strategy would be in 
place and members could make an informed decision. 

 
In a vote following the discussion, the Forum agreed the following recommendations: 

 
RECOMMENDED TO Cabinet and Council: 

 
1. To wait for the Leisure Strategy before the proposals for Colyton Leisure Centre and All 

Weather Pitch are considered again at LED Monitoring Forum. 
2. To ask Colyton Grammar School whether, during the break time, pupils could be using 

more appropriate footwear for the All Weather Pitch, to help prolong its life. 

 

The Chair thanked everyone for their contribution to the discussion.  
 
The Chair took the opportunity to thank LED Director of Finance, Bridgette Jones, for her 

contribution to the Forum, since this was Bridgette’s last meeting. 
 

The meeting then went into private session. 
 

125    LED Annual Operational Costs and Management Fee 2022-23  

page 6



LED Monitoring Forum 12 April 2022 
 

 

An LED Group Budget Summary for April 2022 – March 2023 had been circulated in 

advance together with explanatory notes prepared by the LED CEO.   
 
The LED CEO ran through the report, highlighting what was going particularly well, as 

well as the challenges that were expected in the context of the rising costs of living and 
the ongoing impact from Covid, and how these would be mitigated.   

 
Following discussion, it was agreed that the Forum would receive ongoing updates in the 
format of this Group Budget Summary report, on a quarterly basis, together with updates 

on utility bills as was agreed at the previous meeting. 
 

 
 

Attendance List 

Councillors present: 

P Arnott 

A Dent 
B De Saram 

S Hawkins (Chair) 
N Hookway 
G Jung 

P Millar (Vice-Chair) 
J Rowland 

 
LED Community Leisure representatives: 

Lottie Edwards, LED Community Engagement Manager 

Peter Gilpin, CEO 
Bridgette Jones, Director of Finance 

Jamie Bryant, Director of Delivery 
Richard Purchase, Chairman of LED Board 
  

 
Officers in attendance: 

Sarah James, Democratic Services Officer 
Debbie Meakin, Democratic Services Officer 
John Golding, Strategic Lead Housing, Health and Environment 

Simon Davey, Strategic Lead Finance 
 
Councillor apologies: 

J Loudoun 
 

 
 
 

 
Chair   Date:  

 

page 7



Report to:  

LED Monitoring Forum 

Date of Meeting 7th June 2022 

Document classification: Part A Public Document 

Exemption applied: None 

Review date for release N/A 

 

Draft Leisure Strategy 

Report summary: 

The report outlines the process for the issuing of a draft Leisure & Built Facilities Strategy for East 
Devon District Council that is attached with the report. The development of the draft Leisure 

Strategy & Built Facilities for the Council has followed Sport England’s guidance having completed 
a Strategic Outcomes Planning Guidance Diagnostic report, undertaken a comprehensive 
consultation process with sports clubs, schools and Sports Governing Bodies and recently issued 

a Leisure Strategy Issues document for shaping the vision for the Strategy. The report is now 
seeking comments on the draft Leisure & Built Facilities Strategy from the LED Monitoring Forum 

so that a final version can be issued for Cabinet and Full Council to consider and approve.  The 
document attached to the report is the draft Leisure & Built Facilities Strategy version and will be 
updated with comments from the Forum’s discussion at its meeting and will then be presented as 

a final version ready for Cabinet to recommend approval by Full Council.  

Is the proposed decision in accordance with: 

Budget    Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Policy Framework  Yes ☒ No ☐  

Recommendation: 

Recommend to Cabinet to approve the draft Leisure Strategy. 

Reason for recommendation: 

To enable East Devon District Council to move onto preparing the final version of the Leisure and 
Built Facilities Strategy for approval and adoption by Full Council 

 

Officer: Charlie Plowden, Service Lead – Countryside & Leisure cplowden@eastdevon.gov.uk  

 

Portfolio(s) (check which apply): 

☐ Climate Action and Emergencies 

☐ Coast, Country and Environment 

☐ Council and Corporate Co-ordination 

☒ Culture, Tourism, Leisure and Sport 

☐ Democracy and Transparency 

☐ Economy and Assets 

☒ Finance 

☐ Strategic Planning 

☐ Sustainable Homes and Communities 

Equalities impact Low Impact 

Climate change Low Impact 

page 8

Agenda Item 7

mailto:cplowden@eastdevon.gov.uk


Risk: Medium Risk; The failure to produce a Leisure Strategy will make future decisions on how the 
Council provides its leisure offer and the finances for doing so much more complicated. The Leisure 
Strategy’s purpose is to help the Council make informed strategic decisions on its leisure facilities and also 
the future funding model for LED its contracted leisure provider. 

Links to background information  

Link to Council Plan:  

Priorities (check which apply) 

☒ Outstanding Place and Environment  

☐ Outstanding Homes and Communities 

☐ Outstanding Economic Growth, Productivity, and Prosperity 

☒ Outstanding Council and Council Services 

 

 

Report in full 

 

1. Background 

Councils have legal duties for promoting wellbeing, both to individuals (Care Act 2014) and to the 

population across their areas (Local Govt, Act 2000). Intrinsic in this are new public health duties 
for improving the health of their populations including “giving information, providing services or 
facilities to promote healthy living and providing incentives to live more healthily” (Department of 

Health, 2012).  

There is therefore a strong legislative framework within which local authorities should invest in the 

provision of sports, leisure, physical activity and open space services and infrastructure, although 
many leisure services and facilities are discretionary functions. Physical activity does not just 
include sporting and fitness activities. It includes use of our beaches, parks & gardens, play areas, 

Nature Reserves, allotments and community orchards in areas across the district and the 
contribution to active travel, walking and cycling.  The Council has a Playing Pitch Strategy within 

which there are opportunities to increase the quality and quantity of pitch provision across the 
district and opportunities to secure external funding from sports governing bodies for facilities to be 
upgraded to meet the appropriate standards. There are an increasing number of national 

strategies, and local programmes and needs assessments that focus on the importance of 
increasing participation in sports and physical activity. These include: 

 Sport England: Towards an Active Nation Strategy 2016-2021  

 Sporting Future: A New Strategy for an Active Nation, HM Government 2015  

  A Sporting Habit of Life 2012-2017: Sport England Strategy 

 Healthy Lives, Healthy People: White paper published by the Department of Health 2010   

 

The Council’s last Leisure Strategy was produced some 15yrs ago at the time of the creation of 
Leisure East Devon (LED) as a trust and so now requires an up-to-date overarching strategy to 

highlight our ambitions, and give future direction for sport, leisure and physical activity provision 
and support across the District.  
 

2. What do we want to achieve? 
 

When considering what our Leisure Strategy should look like and achieve for the Council it is 
worth considering that we already have in place the following adopted plans and strategies that 
will feed into and overlap the scope of a Leisure Strategy: 

 

 East Devon Local Plan 

 East Devon Public Health Plan  
page 9

https://eastdevon.gov.uk/new-council-plan/index.htm


 EDDC Green Space Plan 

 Public Open Space Strategy 

 Play Areas Strategy  

 

And also the Leisure Strategy will synergise with three further Council Strategies once they have 

been completed this year: 

 

 Playing Pitch Strategy 

 Culture Strategy 

 Tourism Strategy 

 

These strategies and plans alongside the Leisure Strategy will seek to achieve: 

 

 Promoting opportunities for all residents to be active and to participate in sporting and leisure 

activities to improve health and wellbeing, in high quality facilities or environments.  

 Enabling an increase in the proportion of the adult population achieving the Chief Medical 

Officer’s physical activity guide levels from 66% to 70%; and to reduce those who are deemed 

inactive from 20.9% to 16% by 2021 (measured by Public Health Outcomes Framework).  

 Support the aims of the Government’s Childhood Obesity Plan 2016 for children to engage in 

60 minutes of physical activity each day, with half of this being delivered in schools. 

 Maintain our leisure centre provision through a model of community facilities in each of the 

District’s main localities (Exmouth, Broadclyst, Honiton, Sidmouth, Ottery St Mary, Colyton, 

Axminster & Seaton). 

 Enable the provision of other facilities across the District such as our green spaces, play areas, 

Nature Reserves, beaches etc. for multiple uses.  

 Support the contribution made by voluntary organisations to grassroots sports clubs in 

promoting our commitment to physical and mental health wellbeing. 

These ambitions are set out in more detail within the visioning work undertaken with Councillors 
for the Leisure Strategy.  

 

3. Stakeholder consultation 

 
The development of the draft Strategy has included extensive engagement with identified key 
stakeholders to get their views on the challenge and opportunities for East Devon DC in terms of 

physical activity and leisure provision.  
 

This has enabled an assessment of where East Devon DC is in terms of provision compared to 
need and opportunities and where it is compared to the SOPG process that was undertaken. This 
process has helped to identify key elements of work that are needed to underpin a future strategic 

approach to provision and delivery.   
 

This consultation process has provided an `Issues’ paper for the Strategy that will help shape the 
Vision for the Leisure Strategy which was considered by Councillors at a zoom workshop on 4th 
May 2022. The results of the consultation will also form part of the evidence base for the Council’s 

Playing Pitch Strategy which is currently under review to ensure there is synergy between the two 
processes and Strategies. 

 

 

4. Strategic Outcomes Planning Guidance (SOPG) Diagnostic 
 

page 10



The purpose of the SOPG Diagnostic was to provide a position statement for East Devon DC to 
Illustrate where we are in the process of thinking about, and planning for physical 

activity and leisure provision over the next 5-10 years.  This work was carried out as the first stage 
of the Strategy development process and the report was considered and approved by Cabinet and 

Full Council in 2021/22. 
 
The SOPG Diagnostic has: 
 

 Provided an overview of the District: 

 Headline demographic, health and socio economic review of the district 

 Reviewed any existing needs assessment/supply/demand surveys 

 Reviewed existing participation land activity levels and trends; where the gaps are, who is 
inactive, where and why? 

 Reviewed local and regional strategies and policies specifically relating to health and 

wellbeing, plus corporate plan and local plan (and any specific housing development proposals 
that may impact future demand) 

 Identified local priorities and why these are important- what does East Devon DC want to 
achieve through the provision of physical activity and leisure and why? 

 Identified the Shared Outcomes to be achieved in relation to health and well-being 

 Identified gaps in existing evidence base 

 Described what East Devon DC currently provides, where and how 

 Site visits of all Council facilities including dual use sites (Subject to Covid restrictions) 

 Mapped all facilities by type and location 

 Reviewed the community outreach service 

 Reviewed the current arrangements with Leisure East Devon (LED) and what that delivers in 
terms of throughput and social value and the current cost of the service 

 Reviewed each facility in relation to key strategic factors: meeting local need; community 

capacity; usage; whether adjacent/competition with other provision; financial (cost, investment, 
income generation); building condition; catchment areas; key users e.g. schools for curriculum 

delivery; dual use management arrangements/operating hours etc. 

 Run the Sports Facility Calculator (SFC) to assess indicative future need 

 Undertaken a Stakeholder consultation – engaged with identified key strategic stakeholders to 
get their views on the challenge and opportunities for East Devon DC in terms of physical 
activity and leisure provision 

 Assessed where East Devon DC is now in terms of provision compared to need and 
opportunities and where it is compared to the SOPG process; this will identify key elements of 

work that are needed to underpin a future strategic approach to provision and delivery 
 

5. Leisure Strategy- Key Issues 

 

These key issues have been identified from the stakeholder consultation undertaken to date and 
the community survey (850+ responses). 

Overall issue for East Devon DC – what is the Council’s Vision for physical activity? What does 

the Council want physical activity to do in their district? And what therefore is the focus for the 

Council and their operator? 

Built Assets 

 Age and condition 

 Activities offered 
 Lack of investment in EDDC facilities 

 Location 

 Dated dual-use agreements which do not facilitate community access (particularly daytime), use nor 
taking part in physical activity 

page 11



 Growth of Axminster and impact on demand; Flamingo Pool small and average quality offer but does 
have a hydro pool; migration seen to Chard  

 Broadclyst poor quality asset 

 Lack of indoor facilities in Cranbrook; nothing for young people; nothing for teenagers; College facilities 
managed commercially and already full of football; lack of indoor provision 

 Proposed leisure centre in Cranbrook - £4m short on capital funding? 

 Opportunity to  

 Work more closely with Exeter City Council re built facilities 

 Could Sidmouth be re-developed and co-located with GP surgery 

 Asset transfer all outdoor facilities to Town Councils? 

 Pitch investment priorities are Exmouth and Honiton 
 Should the focus on investment be the Exmouth, Honiton and Axminster triangle? 

 Retro-fitting of Cranbrook Community Centre is needed 

 

Physical and Mental Health and Wellbeing 

 Already many providers and lots offered 

 Role of EDDC? At the moment is the work of Public Health and LED linked/different/complementary? 

 Needs better co-ordination and joined-up approach 
 Need for audit of existing offer before more is developed to optimise resources; develop offer based on 

existing networks 

 Loss of Social Prescribers 

 Volunteering 

 GP Referral/Social Prescribing 

 Links to the arts 

 Should LED focus in the areas of deprivation e.g. Holiday Hunger programmes 
 New app being developed – EDDC should be part of this and co-ordination would be better 

 LED already doing a lot – working with GPs, online signposting etc. 

 Memory cafes – could be the starting points for healthy walks etc. 

 

The Great Outdoors 

 Use of the natural active environment 

 Safe walking, running and cycling routes 

 Co-ordinated cycling routes – mapped and co-ordinated – residents and tourists 
 Outdoor gyms 

 Growing participation in wild swimming 

 Growing participation in informal activities e.g. skateboarding, BMX  

 Group exercise growing in popularity – how control use/access? 

 Potential to link physical activity into some agricultural support work 

 Exmouth seafront – is this a venue for physical activity? 

 Residents like being active o0utdoors but want to feel safe 

 

Urban v rural 

 Isolation 

 Accessibility 

 Limited public transport; worse in more rural areas 

 

Specific Sports 

 Very limited indoor netball facilities – only two 
 No regional netball facilities 

 No netball facilities in Sidmouth 

 Limited indoor tennis facilities; not all well used; Clubspark should be introduced to outdoor courts; 
bookings could then be on LED website? 

 Gymnastics needs a site in Honiton 

page 12



 Lack of 3Gs 

 Youth offer under-developed -e.g. boxing, martial arts 

 What is the role of sports clubs moving forward? 

 Sea sports need more promotion and support 
 Opportunity to develop Paddle tennis? 

 Residents priority activities are swimming, walking and gardening; followed by cycling, the gym and GP 
Exercise Referral 

 

Disability 

 There is a need for improved disability facilities and access e.g. pool pods 

 

Strategic Alignment 

 EDDC Public Health Strategy – has to be driver 

 Also Active Devon Strategy 
 

Affordability 

 Inconsistencies in concession pricing 

 LED Membership – the same irrespective of facility mix offered 

 

Demography 

 East Devon has a predominantly older population; provision needs to meet their needs 

 Community survey identifies daytime as the favoured time to take part in physical activity 

 Reduction in young people taking part in physical activity 
 There is a need to properly identify needs of each age group and then provide for them 

 Cost is an issue for the elderly 

 Residents think physical activity is very important – to stay fit, for enjoyment, to improve health 

 Residents identify barriers to participation as: cost, time, poor quality facilities, lack of safe routes, lack 
of provision, inability access activities at the time they need them 

 In general, residents want to be more active 

 

Communication and Co-Ordination 

 Lack of car parking in Sidmouth for physical activity facility 

 Needs to be greater awareness of what is already happening and by whom?  Audit mapping 

needed to focus resources in the future 
 

Future Operational Management 

 LED would like an annual agreement over management fee 

 Risk allocation e.g. utility costs 

 Need for capital investment in built assets 

 

6. Summary 
 

The strategic review of all the leisure facilities is important as some are beginning to age and there 
is now an urgent need to plan and understand what their future maintenance costs will be for the 
Council’s capital maintenance programme. Also as the `Key Issues’ document highlights what can 

the Council realistically afford over the next 10 to 20 years with the budgetary pressures being 
facing. 

The challenges outlined in the report and within the draft Strategy whether it is planning the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan or trying to meet the leisure needs of all our communities 
(both existing and planned) means we will require the Strategy to help us carefully plan our future 

decisions. The Leisure & Built Facilities Strategy will ensure that the Council now has the evidence 
page 13



base and also the strategic framework (following Sport England’s guidance) to make those 
decisions through a better understanding of the leisure needs of its communities. The Council will 

also need to be clear on what its leisure service will look like in future years and what savings 
could be achieved in relation to asset provision. 

 
The Leisure Strategy will help to deliver the leisure ambitions within the new Council Plan for 
supporting health & wellbeing within our communities. It will also help focus the Council’s 

understanding of how our community leisure facilities can help support not just physical and 
mental wellbeing but also social and community development and economic development too. The 

Strategy will be the starting point of multiple conversations across a wide range of issues as 
outlined in this report. 

 

Financial implications: 

The Strategy highlights many issues requiring financial investment in existing and new facilities and in other 
non-facility based activities.  As highlighted in the report this investment comes at a time when no authority, 
including EDDC, has the financial resources available to it.  The production of the Delivery/Action Plan is 
essential with financial implications included along with possible means of external funding/redirection of 
current spend and saving opportunities being identified to assist with delivery of outcomes.   The level of 
spend on Sports and Leisure Facilities is classified as ‘very high’ in comparing our costs with other 
authorities based on population size and this excludes capital funding (source Grant Thornton RO 
analysis).  There is a need to explore this to determine how best to deliver the Strategy, assuming adopted, 
in a way that is affordable.  

 

Legal implications: 

 The legal position is detailed in the report and no further comment is required.  

 

page 14



 

page 15



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

Contents 
 
1. Our Vision 1 
 
2. Key Principles 2 
 
3. Executive Member Foreward 3 
 
4. Introduction 4 
 
5. Overview of the Leisure Facilities Supply and Demand Audit 5 
 
6. Our Challenges and Issues in Providing Leisure Services and Facilities 9 
 
7. Strategic Core Objectives 2021 - 2031 13 

1. Facilities that meet the current and future sporting and leisure needs of East Devon residents 13 
What do we know? 13 
How do we meet future Needs? 14 

2. EDDC priorities are aligned to and compliment Outreach Health and Wellbeing 15 
What do we know? 15 
How do we meet Future Needs? 16 

3. Effective Partnerships Delivering a Sustainable Community Sport and Leisure Offer 17 
What do we know? 17 
How do we meet future needs? 17 

4. Harnessing the Value of the Great Outdoors 18 
What do we know? 18 
How do we meet future need? 18 

5. Review of the existing Leisure Management Contract 19 
What do we know? 19 
How do we meet future need? 19 

 
8. Next Steps 21 
 

Disclaimer 22 

page 16



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 - Strategy Consultees 
 
Appendix 2 - Supply and Demand Evidence Base  
 
Appendix 3 - Summary of Community Consultation 
 
Appendix 4 - Summery of Sports Club Consultation 
 
Appendix 5 - Summery of Schools’ Consultation 
 
 page 17



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

1 

1. Our Vision 
 

1.1. Our Vision for the future provision of leisure services and facilities in East Devon is: 
 

 
 
1.2. Our approach will specifically target and cater for those residents who are socially and economically disadvantaged to ensure they are able to benefit 

from affordable and accessible opportunities which contribute to reduced health inequalities and improved quality of life. 
 

1.3. Partnership is key to delivery of our Leisure Strategy to ensure co-ordination across culture, leisure and tourism services, and that it co-exists with the 
policies and priorities of our local partners. 

  

‘Our role is essential in facilitating and enabling provision of good quality, 
accessible, and inclusive leisure for both residents of, and visitors to, East Devon 

because of the positive impact being active has on our health and wellbeing, and the 
contribution it makes to national and local public health initiatives.’

page 18



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

2 

2. Key Principles 
 

2.1. The key Principles underpinning this Vision are: 
 
1. That the provision of leisure facilities for residents and visitors alike is an essential function of this Council.  
 
2. That such leisure facilities are important to improve the health and wellbeing of residents and visitors alike and thereby support 

national and local public health initiatives. 
 
3. That such leisure facilities are inclusive and must cater for all residents and visitors, irrespective of ability, age, gender, ethnicity, 

income and belief. 
 
4. That this Leisure Strategy specifically targets and caters for those residents who are socially and economically disadvantaged to 

ensure that such residents gain access to and benefit from the Council’s Leisure facilities. 
 
5. That the term “Leisure Facilities” refers to all facilities be they built or non-built, man-made or natural which are used, or could be used 

to deliver the concept of Leisure within East Devon. 
 
6. That such leisure facilities, are provided by a range of providers including the Council, its partners, community organisations, private 

facilities and schools. 
7. That the Council's partner Leisure Provider (for EDDC owned/leased facilities) is financially sustainable in both the short and long term. 
 
8. That this Leisure Strategy will co-exist and support other strategies, particularly Culture, Tourism and Public Health to promote 

amongst the residents of East Devon the needs of good health, positive wellbeing, cultural diversity and economic development 
irrespective of age, gender, orientation, ethnicity, income and belief. 

  

page 19



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

3 

3. Executive Member Foreward 
 
3.1. To be added 

 
  

page 20



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

4 

4. Introduction 
 

4.1. The aim of this strategy is to improve the quality of life for East Devon residents and provide good quality opportunities to be regularly physically active. 
The role of the Council in co-ordinating, facilitating, enabling, and in some cases delivering opportunities to be physically active is key, whether provision 
relates to facilities or services, indoors and outdoors. 
 

4.2. In East Devon ‘leisure’ means physical activity, sport and recreation – programmes, services and facilities – provided by the Council, its partners, 
community organisations, private facilities and schools, which provide an opportunity for individuals, clubs and teams to take part and be active. “Leisure 
Facilities” refers to all facilities be they built or non-built, manmade or natural which are used, or could be used to deliver the concept of Leisure within 
East Devon. 
 

4.3. This strategy sits alongside the Council’s Corporate Plan, Local Plan, Asset Strategy, Public Health, Cultural and Tourism strategies to ensure that 
important corporate considerations including carbon reduction, reducing inequality and maximising the value of East Devon’s assets are integral  
principles in the way that leisure facilities are delivered. 
 

4.4. The strategy is supported by a detailed Leisure Facilities Supply and Demand Audit (Appendix 2) which identifies the current and future facility needs to 
support an increase in population in the District. The Strategy is also informed by detailed community, sports club and school consultation and feedback 
from key stakeholders, National Governing Bodies of Sport and neighbouring authorities. 
 

4.5. East Devon’s Leisure Strategy identifies the current and future built leisure facility needs of East Devon’s population through to 2031. The Council’s 
Playing Pitch Strategy is in the process of being updated and will identify outdoor sports pitch and facility needs going forward. This will provide the 
Council a complete overview of leisure provision and requirements across the District. 
 

4.6. The Leisure Strategy recognises that there are significant challenges with delivering the level of infrastructure required, and while the Council has a role 
in championing and enabling the provision required, it is unrealistic to expect the Council to be able to deliver everything. Innovative partnerships, cross-
sector sustainable delivery and funding models, and significant amount of capital funding will be required in order to achieve the level of provision that 
this strategy identifies as needed. 

  

page 21



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

5 

5. Overview of the Leisure Facilities Supply and Demand Audit 
 
5.1. The Leisure Facilities Supply and Demand Audit (Appendix 2) considers facility provision for both the existing and projected future population of East 

Devon through to 2040 (to coincide with the end date of the Council’s new Local Plan). 
 

5.2. The scope of the audit incorporates the following public, private and voluntary sector owned/operated facilities: 
 

 Swimming Pools 

 Outdoor Pools 

 Sports Halls (3 badminton courts +) 
 Activity Halls (1 badminton Court) 

 Health and Fitness Suites 

 Studios 

 Indoor Tennis Courts 

 Indoor Bowls Rinks 

 Squash courts 

 Athletics – indoor and outdoor 
 Artificial Turf Pitches (ATP’s) 

 
5.3. This audit has been carried out using the methodology provided by Sport England (Assessment of Needs and Opportunities Guidance (ANOG)) and 

provides a robust and objective evidence base to support requests for on-site provision and contributions from developers and justification of needs, 
within the Council, following the introduction of the Community Infrastructure Levy. It can also be used to support applications for grant funding for sport 
and leisure projects; not just by the Council but by others, such as sports clubs and schools. 
 

5.4. Artificial Turf Pitches (ATP’s) are included within the scope of the audit on the basis that the majority of ATP’s in East Devon are located on school sites 
where dual use arrangements exist between the school and the Council for indoor leisure facilities provided on site. However, a more detailed analysis 
of ATP’s will be included in the new Playing Pitch Strategy as need for ATP’s should be considered in association with grass pitch provision.  
 

5.5. Key findings from the Leisure Facilities Supply and Demand Audit are summarised in the table below: 
 

  

page 22



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

6 

Table 1: Key Findings – Leisure Facilities Supply and Demand Audit 
 

Facility Type Key Issues to Address 

Sports Halls and 
Activity Halls 

 As a minimum, the current community access arrangements are maintained for sports halls on school sites with dual use arrangements  
in place. 

 

 EDDC should seek to engage with those organisations currently operating with much smaller used capacity figures to encourage greater 
access to their sports halls during peak hours, securing this use where possible, through a Community Use Agreement (CUA) e.g. Bicton 

College, Cranbrook Education Campus, Exmouth College. 
 

 A large number of dwellings are still due to be built as part of the Cranbrook development and are included in the current Local Plan. To 
address future demand, EDDC should consider the provision of a 4 court sports hall as part of the planned development of a new Leisure 

Centre in Cranbrook. This would allow daytime pay and play community access.  
 

 Subject to the development of a new sports hall facility in Cranbrook, EDDC to consider the future viability of the neighbouring Broadclyst  

Sports Hall within the EDDC Leisure Portfolio, taking into consideration the age and poor condition of the facility and the c urrent limited 
community access arrangements.  

 

Swimming Pools  The Sport England Sports Facility Calculator estimates that by 2040, East Devon will have a shortfall of 489.4 sqm of water s pace and 

will need the equivalent of an additional two 25m x 4 lane swimming pools, to address future demand resulting from projected housing 
and population growth across the District. 
 

 EDDC to consider the inclusion of a swimming pool (minimum 25m x 4 lane) as part of the development of a new leisure centre at 
Cranbrook. 

 

Health and Fitness 
Suites 

 

 There is a need to increase provision of community accessible fitness stations (an additional 101 now and by 2031 a total of 253). 

 ECCD in partnership with LED is a key provider of community accessible fitness; the rurality of the area and scale of population means 

there are fewer large fitness chains/budget gyms so there is an opportunity for EDDC to be a ‘provider of choice’. However, investment  
is needed to achieve this position and a growth in fitness membership and usage.  

Studios 
 

 There is a need to provide additional studios to cater for demand from a growing population.  
 

Squash  As a minimum, EDDC need to maintain existing level of pay and play squash provision at Exmouth, Honiton and Sidmouth Leisure 
Centres. 

 

 Using the NGB requirement of 1 court per 10,000 population, there is a shortfall of 8 courts across the district. EDDC to consider the 
inclusion of squash courts as part of the development of any new leisure facility within the district. 

 

page 23



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

7 

Facility Type Key Issues to Address 

 Consideration of provision needs to reflect existing levels of demand and participation in squash 

Indoor Bowls  EDDC to support the continued provision of existing indoor bowls clubs in the District, and the continued availability of community pay 
and play. 

 

Indoor Tennis  EDDC to continue to support existing provision at Exmouth Tennis and Fitness Centre, focussing on improving community pay and play 

access where possible 
 

 EDDC to work in partnership with the leisure operator to extend the existing Clubspark scheme to Coburg Gardens and  provide a 
proactive programme of casual use, coaching and activities to maximise the use of the courts and improve income generation.  

 

 EDDC to consider the feasibility of introducing paddle tennis as part of any future outdoor sports hub provision 
 

Gymnastics  EDDC should, as a minimum, support Honiton and Axminster Gymnastics Clubs in securing long term dedicated space for gymnastic s. 
 

 It is unlikely that a shared dedicated space for both clubs could be considered due to the current geographical distance between the 2 
clubs and existing catchment of their members, similar demand for peak time use etc.  

 

Athletics  The cinder track at Imperial Recreation Ground, Exmouth, is in poor condition and leased to Exmouth Harriers, who are responsible for 

its maintenance. All clubs in the district are essentially running and cross country clubs and do not participate in other athletics 
disciplines/field events. 

 

 There is no identified demand for provision of a new athletics track in the District due to the proximity of Exeter Arena, which is a regional 
facility and attracts NGB funding. 

 

ATPs  There is a significant demand for ATP provision in the district and to improve those facilities that already exist e.g. replacement surfaces,  
floodlighting.  

 

 Investment in existing infrastructure so it can be better used by more people is a priority as is investment in additional provision.  
 

 The priorities for investment in ATPs are: 
 Colyton (surface and floodlighting) 
 Honiton (new pitch) 

 Sidmouth (improved surface) 
 
The ATP at Sidmouth would also benefit from being floodlit which would extend operating hours and increase throughput and revenue 
generation. 

page 24



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

8 

5.6. The above summary highlights that there are a number of additional facilities that need to be provided and some existing facilities need to be replaced 
or refurbished over the lifetime of the strategy. These are included in the strategic priorities section of this strategy.  

page 25



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

9 

6. Our Challenges and Issues in Providing Leisure Services and Facilities 
 
6.1. The Leisure Strategy involved extensive consultation with key stakeholders including District Councillors and officers, the Council’s Leisure Operator, 

and town and parish councils. Surveys were also distributed to schools, sport clubs and local residents (850+ responses). Appendix 3 – 6 incl. of this 
strategy provides a summary of these consultations. National Governing Bodies of Sport (NGB’s) were contacted regarding the current club and facility 
provision for their sport and their aspirations for future provision in East Devon. Neighbouring authorities were also consulted to gain an understanding 
of their current and future plans for leisure provision, recognising that residents living close to the borders of East Devon would visit their closest facility, 
regardless of geographical boundaries. 
 

6.2. In addition, it is important to be clear that in terms of EDDC’s leisure facilities: 
 The leisure assets are ageing (community leisure facilities have a lifespan of 30-35 years, in general) 

 There is a stand-alone pool site 

 The dual-use sites cost a significant amount to operate and yet do not provide daytime access to the East Devon community, the majority of whom 
are ageing and want to use facilities during the day 

 The LED contract covers a wide range of facilities and the underpinning cost model is not  a standard model usually found with leisure contracts 
 There is not an over provision of leisure assets so the existing infra structure largely needs to be retained and invested in 

 There is opportunity to develop increased use of the great outdoors and other informal assets e.g. community centres/village hallsto reduce reliance 
on formal built provision 

 
6.3. The following table provides a summary of the key issues identified from the stakeholder consultations undertaken. These issues inform the identified 

Core Objectives and the areas recommended for action moving forward. 
 
Table 2: Summary of Key issues identified from stakeholder consultations 

 

Key Issue Relevant Factors to consider in developing the future Leisure Strategy 

Built Assets 

 
 The key issues concerning the existing leisure facilities in East Devon are:  

 Age and condition, particularly of the EDDC facilities  

 Activities offered - type, timing and nature 

 Lack of investment  

 Location of existing facilities, particularly in relation to new communities 

 Dated dual-use agreements which do not facilitate community access (particularly daytime), use nor taking part in physical activity  

 Growth of Axminster and impact on demand; Flamingo Pool small and average quality offer but does have a hydro pool; migration  
seen to Chard  

 Some assets in particularly poor condition eg Broadclyst 

page 26



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

10 

Key Issue Relevant Factors to consider in developing the future Leisure Strategy 

 Lack of indoor facilities in Cranbrook; a lack of provision for young people and teenagers; the Education Campus facilities are 

managed commercially and are already full of football;  

 The proposal for a leisure centre in Cranbrook and whether capital resources are available 

 Opportunity to work more closely with Exeter City Council in terms of developing new facilities serving cross -border communities  

 The option of asset transferring all outdoor facilities to Town Councils 

 Pitch investment priorities are Exmouth and Honiton 

 The future geographical focus for provision needs to reflect existing and new eg Exmouth, Honiton and Axminster  
 

Physical and Mental 

Health and Wellbeing 
 

 Already many providers and lots offered 

 The role of EDDC in health and wellbeing.   

 Needs better co-ordination and joined-up approach eg linking the work of Public Health and LED 

 Need for audit of existing offer before more is developed to optimise resources; develop offer based on existing networks  

 Opportunity to develop increased Volunteer capacity 

 GP Referral/Social Prescribing- how can thse partnerships be developed 

 Links to the arts could be explored in these programmes 

 New app being developed – EDDC should be part of the development of the new Health and Wellbeing App to improve co-ordination  

 LED is already delivering a lot e.g. working with GPs, online signposting etc, but where does EDDC want their focus to be; should 
the focus be in areas of deprivation through e.g. the Holiday Hunger programme 

 Memory cafes – could be the starting points for healthy walks etc 
 

The Great Outdoors 
 

 Use of the natural active environment 

 Safe walking, running and cycling routes 

 Co-ordinated cycling routes – mapped and co-ordinated – residents and tourists 

 Outdoor gyms 

 Growing participation in wild swimming 

 Growing participation in informal activities e.g. skateboarding, BMX  

 Group exercise growing in popularity – how control use/access? 

 Potential to link physical activity into some agricultural support work 

 Exmouth seafront – is this a venue for physical activity? 

 Residents like being active outdoors but want to feel safe 
 

Urban v rural 
 

 Isolation 

 Accessibility 

 Limited public transport; worse in more rural areas 
 

page 27



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

11 

Key Issue Relevant Factors to consider in developing the future Leisure Strategy 

Specific Sports 

 
 Very limited indoor netball facilities – only two 

 No regional netball facilities 

 No netball facilities in Sidmouth 

 Limited indoor tennis facilities; not all well used; Clubspark should be introduced to outdoor courts; bookings could then be on LED 
website 

 Gymnastics needs a site in Honiton 

 Lack of 3G pitches 

 Youth offer under-developed e.g. boxing, martial arts 

 The role of sports clubs in terms of increasing and sustaining participation moving forward needs to be better defined 

 Sea sports/activities need more promotion and support 

 Is there opportunity to develop new sports e.g.Padel tennis 

 Residents’ priority activities are swimming, walking and gardening; followed by cycling, the gym and GP Exercise Referral ; where 
relevant EDDC should be responding to these as a priority 

 

Disability 
 

 There is a need for improved disability facilities and access e.g. pool pods 

Strategic Alignment 
 

 EDDC Public Health Strategy should be the driver for the outcomes of the Leisure Strategy 

 Also the Leisure Strategy should align to the new Active Devon Strategy 
 

Affordability 

 
 Inconsistencies in concession pricing 

 LED Membership offer is the same across East Devon, irrespective of facility mix offered 
 

Demography 
 

 East Devon has a predominantly older population; provision needs to meet their needs  

 Community survey identifies daytime as the favoured time to take part in physical activity  

 Reduction in young people taking part in physical activity 

 There is a need to properly identify needs of each age group and then provide for them 

 Cost is an issue for the elderly 

 Residents think physical activity is very important – to stay fit, for enjoyment, to improve health 

 Residents identify barriers to participation as: cost, time, poor quality facilities, lack of safe routes, lack of provision,  inability access 

activities at the time they need them 

 In general, residents want to be more active 
 

Communication and Co-
Ordination 

 

 Lack of car parking in Sidmouth for physical activity facility  

 Needs to be greater awareness of what is already available and being delivered, by whom and where. Audit mapping would help to  

focus resources in the future 

page 28



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

12 

Key Issue Relevant Factors to consider in developing the future Leisure Strategy 

 

Future Operational 
Management 
 

 LED would like an annual agreement over the management fee 

 Risk allocation e.g. utility costs 

 Need for capital investment in built assets 
 

 

  

page 29



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

13 

7. Strategic Core Objectives 2021 - 2031 
 
7.1. The outcomes and recommendations from the comprehensive stakeholder consultation process and Leisure Facilities Supply and Demand Audit support 

five high level strategic priorities: 
 

1. Facilities that meet the current and future sporting and leisure needs of East Devon residents  

 

What do we know? 
 
7.2. EDDC’s leisure portfolio includes 6 dual use sites, 3 leisure centres, 3 outdoor facilities and a theatre; a significant number of these facilities are ageing 

in need of investment to meet the current and future population of the district. 
 

7.3. A large proportion of facilities are on school sites with dual use arrangements which operate on a legal basis which favours the school both operationally 
and financially, rather than EDDC. The dual use arrangements restrict daytime community use for those who would benefit the most e.g. young families, 
retired etc. 
 

7.4. There is a high demand for these facilities, with a number of the sports halls for example, operating at capacity, essentially due to the dual use nature of 
the sites. 
 

7.5. There is a current under supply of health and fitness suites across the district (undersupply of 101 stations) and this is exacerbated by the restricted 
availability at dual use sites. This situation will only get worse as the population grows (requirement for 253 stations by 2040). 
 

7.6. There is a current small over supply of swimming pools in the district, and scope to improve used capacity at Exmouth, Honiton and Sidmouth swimming 
pools in the short term. However, by 2040, there will be a need to provide an additional 2 x 4 lane 25m pools as the population increases. 
 

7.7. There is a current high demand for ATPs across the district and therefore a need for good quality, floodlit facilities which can cater for this demand. 
 

7.8. The cost of facilities was raised as a key issue and concern that the needs of those who are socially and economically disadvantaged at not being met. 
 

7.9. There is a real need for a new leisure facility in Cranbrook. When housing is completed, the town will have 8,000 new homes and a population of 18 – 
20,000. Any leisure centre will go in the town centre (either CT2 or CT4D & E) and will be co-located with the Health and Wellbeing Hub. A Developer 
contribution of £4 million is being sought towards the scheme. No additional funding has been identified.  
 

page 30



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

14 

7.10. As Cranbrook forms part of a Sport England Local Delivery Pilot (LDP), there is an opportunity to develop a scheme involving the LDP, EDDC and Exeter 
City Council working together co-locating health outreach services, possibly education and the leisure operator to deliver a really effective scheme for 
the area. 
 

How do we meet future Needs? 
 

7.11. There is a need for EDDC to invest in its existing ageing portfolio of leisure facilities, but also invest in new provision. 
 

7.12. There is a need to provide additional water space by 2040 equivalent to 2 x 4 lane x 25m pools. These pools should be located where they can benefit 
most people. 
 

7.13. EDDC should support the continued third party operation of Flamingo Pool in Axminster to ensure that the facility continues to be accessible to the local 
community. 

 
7.14. There is a need to increase provision of community accessible fitness stations (an additional 101 now and by 2040 a total of 253). Where dual use health 

and fitness suites operate with restricted community daytime access and space, EDDC should support the relocation of such facilities to alternative sites 
to improve the financial viability. The Leisure Operator’s current scale of health and fitness operation is not sufficient to offset the cost of running the 
Council’s swimming pools. 
 

7.15. There is a need to provide additional studios to cater for demand from a growing population. 
 

7.16. There is a need for additional indoor and outdoor netball courts across the district. 
 

7.17. EDDC should support existing gymnastics clubs in finding long term dedicated facilities within the District. 
 

7.18. The specific geographical priorities for improved/new provision are: 
 
 Cranbrook 
 Exmouth 
 Honiton 
 Axminster 
 

7.19. There is a need to invest in ageing ATPs (Colyton and Exmouth are priorities) and look at ways to improve the utilization and financial viability of pitches, 
including the provision of floodlights at Sidmouth Leisure Centre. Honiton is the priority in terms of a new pitch. 
 

page 31



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

15 

7.20. There is a need to renegotiate all existing dual use facility agreements in favour of the Council to increase access and value for the East Devon 
Community.  
 

7.21. A new leisure facility in Cranbrook is a priority scheme and should include as a minimum a 4 court sports hall, 6 lane 25m swimming pool, community 
gym and 2 studio. Should this scheme be progressed, EDDC should seek to close the Broadclyst Leisure Centre site as this facility has reached the end 
of its useful life and offers limited community access.  
 

2. EDDC priorities are aligned to and compliment Outreach Health and Wellbeing   
 

 What do we know? 
 
7.22. East Devon has an ageing population with 30.4% of residents over the age of 65 years. This is set to increase to 37% by 2043. This will have an impact 

on healthcare, housing requirements, the labour market and economic growth. At just over 82.6 years old, the life expectancy for residents in East Devon 
is very high, ranking in the top 10% of districts nationally. 
 

7.23. The District is comparatively affluent and its ranking in the Indices of Multiple Deprivation of 238 out of 317. Across the district, there are just two LSOA’s 
in the most deprived 30% of all areas across England which are contained within the wards of Exmouth Littleham and Exmouth Withycombe Raleigh. 
There are areas of Honiton St Michael`s and Exmouth Town which are in the top 40% most deprived nationally.  
 

7.24. There are also relatively high levels of house ownership and car ownership, reflecting the rural nature of the district. 
 

7.25. The Sport England Active Lives Data May 2019/20 reveals that a lower percentage of adults in East Devon (20.2%) participate in less than 30 minutes 
activity per week compared to Devon (20.4%) and England (25.5%); only 9.2% of adults are fairly active (30 – 149 minutes per week) which is comparable 
to Devon but less than England (11.7%); however, 70.6% of adults in East Devon are active which is better than both Devon (70.3%) and England overall 
(62.8%). The analysis therefore shows that participation levels in East Devon are relatively good with low levels of inactivity. This is also reflected in low 
levels of adult obesity within the district (55.8%) compared to Devon (61%) and England overall (62%). 
 

7.26. In 2019, 12.7% of children in Year 6 (10 – 11 years old) were classified as obese. This is lower than both the county of Devon (16.5%) and England 
overall (20.2%). However, 8.1% of Reception age children were classified as obese which is higher than Devon (7.4%) and England (9.7%). The recent 
Sport England Active Lives data detailed below (May 2019/20) suggests that levels of activity within the district are deteriorating amongst children and 
young people and therefore obesity levels will start to increase.  

 
 

page 32



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

16 

7.27. Participation rates amongst children and young people varies with higher levels of inactivity in East Devon (26.8%) compared to Devon (23.7%) but lower 
when compared to England (29%); 18.9% of children and young people are fairly active in East Devon (30 – 59 minutes per day) which is lower than for 
both Devon and England. However, 54.6% are active (60 plus minutes per day) which is higher than for England (46.8%) but lower compared to Devon 
(54.6%). Overall, the District exhibits poorer participation rates amongst children and young people in comparison to the county of Devon. 
 

7.28. More active lifestyles will continue to reduce health inequalities and benefit both individual and community health. The provision of quality, affordable 
and accessible leisure facilities, and community outreach activities (e.g. healthy walks) can contribute towards significantly towards: 
 
 Maintaining an active lifestyle 
 Maintaining low levels of diabetes and cardio-vascular disease 
 Further reducing levels of obesity for both children and adults 

 
7.29. Outreach health and wellbeing is defined as programmes/activities/opportunities to be physically active in environments other than leisure centres. This 

could include the great outdoors, including beaches, informal facilities such as village halls or community centres, and informal settings such as parks, 
open space, walking and cycling routes, and encompass a range of activities. 
 

7.30. In East Devon, there are a wide range of public, private and voluntary sector organisations delivering outreach health and wellbeing services alongside 
those provided by EDDC and its leisure operator. This in part reflects the rural nature of the district, with organisations serving relatively small populations 
across a number of towns and villages. However, there is a lack of understanding within the Council as to what its focus and role should be in terms of 
outreach health and wellbeing and how this sits alongside other providers. There are opportunities to take a more co-ordinated approach internally and 
externally to avoid duplication and ensure that services are provided where they are most needed.  
 

How do we meet Future Needs? 

 
7.31. The Council’s role in providing health and wellbeing services needs to be clearer so that it complements the extensive existing third sector offer 

Partnerships. 
 
7.32. Internally the provision delivered by the council has potential to be more joined -up, and better complement what is delivered through the partner operator. 
 
7.33. There is a need to update the contract agreement with LED to be clear about the expectations for them delivery health and wellbeing programmes. Key 

Performance Indicators to be agreed against which each programme’s success will be measured. 
  

page 33



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

17 

3. Effective Partnerships Delivering a Sustainable Community Sport and Leisure Offer  
 

 What do we know? 

 
7.34. Active Devon has recently launched its new Strategy ‘Devon Moving Together’ with a vision to strive towards ‘everyone in Devon active for life’ and a 

mission ‘to unlock the ability of movement to change lives for the better’. Its focus is on working with communities and partners to connect, advocate and 
enable people to move more. It wants movement to be a positive experience for all people, contribute towards reducing social inequalities, and gain 
increased local commitment to using movement to change people’s lives. In the absence of a Council Leisure Development Team and Leisure Strategy, 
Active Devon has had little direct interaction with EDDC in recent years. There is now a real opportunity for the Council to work more closely with Active 
Devon and aligning shared outcomes between the 2 strategies. 
 

7.35. The new town of Cranbrook has been highlighted throughout the consultation as a place where a new leisure facility is really needed. There is a lack of 
indoor leisure provision in the town, particularly for families with young children and teenagers. Exeter City Council led a successful bid for Sport England 
funding for an Exeter and Cranbrook Local Delivery Pilot (LDP). The programme is hosted by Exeter City Council and the original focus was on outdoor 
provision and improving health and physical activity locally. There is an opportunity for EDDC to work with Exeter City Council to re-focus the LDP and 
develop a partnership approach regarding new facility provision in Cranbrook. 
 

7.36. There is an extensive network of walking and cycling routes across East Devon and an opportunity to work more closely with Devon County Council to 
map and promote these routes and where possible, create better linkages to reduce reliance on the car and improve accessibility and attractiveness for 
both residents and tourists to the area e.g. the Clyst Valley Regional Park and Clyst Valley Trail. 
 

How do we meet future needs? 
 

7.37. There is an opportunity for the Council to work more closely with Active East Devon based on the alignment between the two new strategies. 
 
7.38. The Council should re-engage with the Sport England Local Delivery pilot to develop a partnership approach regarding new facility provision in Cranbrook. 
 
7.39. Closer collaboration with Devon County Council over mapping and promotion of existing and new cycle routes. 
 
 
 
 
 

page 34



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

18 

4. Harnessing the Value of the Great Outdoors  
 

 What do we know? 

 
7.40. The community survey highlighted the popularity of walking and cycling in the district, and there is a wide network of footpaths and cycle ways available 

to use.  
 

7.41. EDDC’s Green Infrastructure Project Manager is delivering the Clyst Valley Regional Park (Strategy 10 in the Local Plan) and Clyst Valley Trail (presently 
going through a public consultation). The 25-year masterplan for the CVRP includes objectives for health and wellbeing and outdoor learning. Targets 
are set for expansion of accessible green space by 740 hectares and for 80 km of traffic-free trail to encourage active travel. Some major new green 

spaces resulting from new housing developments have already been delivered e.g. Cranbrook Country Park (managed by Cranbrook Town Council), 

Pin Brook Country Park and Poltimore Park restoration. Two Heritage Lottery-funded projects have also been delivered, the latest of which has 

established a weekly Wellbeing Walk at Broadclyst, and guided rides on Co-Bikes. Separately LED’s Community Engagement Manager has had success 

at Exmouth surgery, and has trained GP’s to lead on Wellbeing Walks. 
 

7.42. LED a Wellbeing Walk programme and has previously delivered ‘Couch to 5k’ projects part funded by Active Devon. Other outdoor initiatives include 
wild water swimming, and outdoor exercise classes. 
 

7.43. EDDC also runs a very successful countryside conservation volunteering programme which allows the public to get involved in practical work which not 
only helps the environment but has a positive impact on the mental and physical health and wellbeing of those who take part. 
 

How do we meet future need? 
 
7.44. There is significant opportunity to improve awareness of existing opportunities for active travel e.g. walking and cycling, and to develop a more co-

ordinated offer. 
 
7.45. Develop additional health and wellbeing programmes based on using the great outdoors. 
 
7.46. The Council should develop increased use of the great outdoors to encourage increased levels of participation in physical activity. 
  

page 35



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

19 

5. Review of the existing Leisure Management Contract  
 

 What do we know? 

 
7.47. EDDC has a 30 year leisure management contract with LED Community Leisure which commenced in January 2006. 

 
7.48. The contract operates on the basis of a Service Fee (subsidy) payment which is reviewed every 5 years between EDDC and LED. A new Service Fee is 

calculated by looking at the trading performance for the previous period and factoring in anticipated increases in income and expenditure to produce a 
net figure. There is no surplus share arrangement in the current contract between EDDC and LED.  
 

7.49. There have been a number of changes in recent years which have impacted on the leisure contract in East Devon including changes within the leisure 
industry and types of contract, competition from other providers and new leisure activities, reductions in local authority funding, changes in legislation, 
changing public needs and expectations, and Covid. It is very difficult under the current contract arrangements for either party and foresee these changes 
5 years in advance. The contractor may therefore be having to factor in an element of risk into their fee proposal. 
 

7.50. The EDDC contract portfolio of facilities is very limited in terms of income generation. The provision of relatively small gym facilities on the dual use sites 
exacerbates this problem, Both LED and the Council has invested in the facilities in the past but this has been done in the absence of a strategic plan.  
 

7.51. The contract makes no reference to the Council’s key objectives for leisure or the delivery of a community health and wellbeing programme. Despite this, 
LED has taken it upon itself to deliver a health and wellbeing programme, including GP Referral, Cardiac Rehab etc. Up until recently, the programme 
was self-financing, but as a result of Covid, EDDC now contribute £50k pa towards the continued provision of this service. 
 

How do we meet future need? 
 
7.52. The current leisure contract has another 14 years to run (end date 2036). On the basis that there are no break clauses written into the existing contract, 

EDDC should consider renegotiating and possibly extending the terms of the contract with LED, to incorporate new/other opportunities. 
 

7.53. Review the financial arrangements between EDDC and LED with consideration given to introducing a business plan through to the end of the contract 
period, replacing the Service Fee with a baseline Management Fee increased by RPI annually, a revised P and L reporting format to be agreed with 
EDDC, clearly showing the management fee payment allocated to each site P and L account. 
 

7.54. Any revised contract should clearly set out the Council key outcomes for sport, health and physical activity and identify Key Performance Indicators 
against which the leisure contractor will be monitored. 
 

page 36



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

20 

7.55. Any revised contract should clearly set out contractor requirements for delivery of: 
 
 Core Facilities 
 Community Health and Wellbeing Programme 
 Commissioned Leisure Projects 

 
7.56. The Council should subsidize the delivery of the Health and Wellbeing Programme. 
  

page 37



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

21 

8. Next Steps 
 
8.1 In order to develop the identified priorities and support the Council’s commitment to delivering leisure facilities and services to make people more 

active, the following needs to take place: 
 

 Production of an Action Plan with timescales 
 Work with existing partners to identify options to meet priorities in existing facilities 
 Identify new potential partnership working opportunities 
 Establish the resources required to deliver the priorities, not just financial 
 Investigate external funding opportunities 

 
8.2 This Leisure Strategy provides a summary of need up to 2031 using technical analysis and consultation with partners and residents. It sets the 

strategic framework for providing this need. It should be updated periodically alongside other EDDC key corporate plans. 
 
8.3 The Action Plan will support this strategy, identifying priorities for action including how and when actions can be taken.  
 
8.4 In order to deliver the strategy, significant investment will be required in facilities. A Delivery Plan will sit alongside the action plan. Innovative funding 

models, extremely strong partnerships and collaboration will be required. 

page 38



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 

 

 

22 

Disclaimer 
 
Forecasts and recommendations in any proposal, report, appendices or letter produced by SLL or their sub-consultants are made in good faith and on the basis 
of the information before the Company at the time. Their achievement must depend, among other things, on effective co-operation of the Client and the Client’s 
staff. In any consequence, no statement in any proposal, report, appendix or letter is to be deemed to be in any circumstances a representation, undertaking, 
warranty or contractual condition. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

page 39



East Devon Leisure Strategy 
 

Action Plan 
 

Key Action Priority Ranking (1 – High, 2 – 
Medium, 3 – Low) 

Timescale 
 

(completion 
by) 

Responsible 
officer(s)/organisations 

 

Resources Required 

1. Facilities that meet the current and future sporting and leisure needs of East Devon residents 
 

(a) EDDC to revisit all stock condition 

survey data and associated costs within the 
context of the recommendations from the 
strategy and the need to retain and invest 

in its existing portfolio of leisure facilities 
(priority facilities are Exmouth, Honiton, 
Axminster).  

Agree a 5 – 10 year planned preventative 
maintenance programme of works – capital 
and revenue. 

 

1 2022/23 EDDC Asset Management 

Team 

Internal EDDC officer 

time 

(b) Building Condition Survey to be updated 
every 5 years 
 

2 2026/27 EDDC Asset Management 
Team 

Internal EDDC officer 
time 
External property 

consultants? 
Cost to be quoted 
every 5 years, but likely 

to be in excess of 
£100k depending on 
extent of investigation 

(c) Continued short term operation and 

minimal investment (to ensure H and S 
compliance) in Broadclyst LC to be agreed, 
until such time as decision is made on 

3 2022/23 EDDC Asset Management 

Team 

Internal EDDC officer 

time 
External property 
consultants? 

page 40



Key Action Priority Ranking (1 – High, 2 – 
Medium, 3 – Low) 

Timescale 
 

(completion 

by) 

Responsible 
officer(s)/organisations 

 

Resources Required 

provision of new leisure centre for 
Cranbrook and associated timescales for 
delivery are known. 

 

New Leisure Local 
facility circa £8m (as of 
May 2022) 

(d) EDDC to undertake a site options 
appraisal to address identified shortfall in 
leisure facility provision highlighted within 

the Leisure Strategy. The priority focus 
should be on:   

 Cranbrook – 6 lane 25m pool, 

health and fitness, 4 court sports 
hall, 2 studios (small pool/Leisure 
Local as a minimum) 

  Exmouth - ATP 

  Honiton - ATP 

 Axminster – Netball Courts 
Consideration should be given to new and 

existing sites and include an integrated 
offer of new leisure centre(s) provision and 
separate arrangements for individual 

sports/activities, working with partner 
organisations in the community.  
 

 

2 2023/24 EDDC Planning Team 
EDDC Leisure Team 
Devon County Council 

Exeter City Council 
Relevant schools and 
sports clubs 

NGBs 
 

Internal EDDC officer 
time 
External leisure 

consultants- circa £6k 
 

(e) As part of 1(d) above, EDDC and LED 
to further investigate options for moving 
existing Health and Fitness provision out of 

existing dual use sites to (1) improve 
daytime access to those who would benefit 
the most, (2) improve the size and scope of 

the offer to the public, and (3) improve the 
financial viability for both EDDC and LED. 
As a priority, EDDC and LED should 

engage with Cloakham Lawn Sports Club 

1 2022/23 EDDC Planning Team 
EDDC Leisure Team 
LED 

Devon County Council 
Relevant Schools and 
sports clubs. 

Internal EDDC officer 
time - leisure, legal, 
asset management 

Devon County Council 
Relevant Schools 
External leisure 

consultants?- circa 
£2,500k 
 

page 41



Key Action Priority Ranking (1 – High, 2 – 
Medium, 3 – Low) 

Timescale 
 

(completion 

by) 

Responsible 
officer(s)/organisations 

 

Resources Required 

to review options for relocating existing 
Health and Fitness provision from 
Axminster LC to the Sports Club site which 

would enable extended community access 
 

(f) The refurbishment of Colyton ATP to be 
undertaken as a priority during Summer 

2022 and for Exmouth ATP to completed by 
Autumn 2023 and for these works to be 
reflected in the Council’s capital strategy. 

 

1 2023/24 EDDC Asset Management 
Team 

EDD Leisure Team 
LED 
Colyton Grammar School 

Internal EDDC officer 
time 

LED 
External contractors 

(g) EDDC to seek pre-app advice from the 
Planning Authority regarding the provision 
of floodlights at Sidmouth LC ATP to 

improve utilisation of the facility and the 
financial viability of the overall site. Further 
consultation to be undertaken, scheme to 

be costed and planning application 
progressed subject to advice received. 
 

2 2023/24 EDDC Planning 
Local Town Cllrs 
Leisure Team 

LED 
 

Internal EDDC officer 
time 
LED 

External contractors 

(h) EDDC to renegotiate all existing dual 

use facility agreements, in favour of the 
Council to increase access and value for 
the East Devon Community. Daytime 

access is the priority to achieve. Following 
re-negotiation daytime programmes to be 
developed focussing on older people. 

1 2024/25 EDDC Legal Services 

EDDC Leisure Team 
LED 
Devon County Council 

Schools and Board of 
Governors 
 

Internal EDDC officer 

time - leisure, legal*, 
asset management 
Devon County Council 

Relevant Schools 
External leisure 
consultants? Circa £5k 

*Additional dedicated 
legal resources 
required 

(i) EDDC and LED to review indoor and 

outdoor tennis court programmes of use 
districtwide with a view to improving 
utilisation of courts and income generation, 

3 2024/25 EDDC Leisure Team 

LED 
LTA 

Internal EDDC officer 

time 
LED 
External contractors 

page 42



Key Action Priority Ranking (1 – High, 2 – 
Medium, 3 – Low) 

Timescale 
 

(completion 

by) 

Responsible 
officer(s)/organisations 

 

Resources Required 

allowing reinvestment of monies into 
ongoing court refurbishment.  
Consideration to be given to extending 

Clubspark roll out for ease of booking and 
provision of balanced programme of casual 
use, coaching, outdoor exercise classes 

etc. plus its revenue benefits. 

2. EDDC priorities are aligned to and compliment Outreach Health and Wellbeing 
 

(a) EDDC to appoint an officer to be 
responsible for: 

 (1) co-ordinating the delivery of health and 
wellbeing across the district; 
(2) developing a coordinated and integrated 

health and wellbeing programme across 
Council departments, LED and third sector 
partners based on leisure strategy, public 

health, Active Devon outcomes etc to 
ensure there is no duplication of resources; 
(3) represent EDDC at partner meetings; 

(4) provide a point of contact for physical 
activity in EDDC who can signpost 
community or partner queries;  

(5) monitoring and reviewing this 
programme on a periodic basis; 
(6) promoting health and wellbeing 

districtwide; 
(7) a contact point for LED who drives what 
they deliver over and above their core 

service of facility management. 
 

2 2023/24 EDDC Leisure Team 
 

Appointment of Health 
and Wellbeing Officer 

on p/t or f/t basis 
Circa £25-30k p/a? 

(b) Development of a coordinated and 
integrated health and wellbeing programme 

across Council departments, LED and third 

2 2023/24 EDDC Health and 
Wellbeing Officer 

 

EDDC Health and 
Wellbeing Officer 

page 43



Key Action Priority Ranking (1 – High, 2 – 
Medium, 3 – Low) 

Timescale 
 

(completion 

by) 

Responsible 
officer(s)/organisations 

 

Resources Required 

sector partners based on leisure strategy, 
public health, Active Devon outcomes etc 
 

 

(c) EDDC to update contract agreement 

with LED to reflect the Leisure Strategy and 
the health and wellbeing outcomes on 
which the leisure operator should focus. 

The contract agreement should incorporate 
clear Health and Wellbeing KPI’s aligned to 
Public Health outcomes, against which the 

operator will be measured. 
 
 

2 2022/23 EDDC Leisure Team Internal EDDC officer 

time 
LED 
 

3. Effective Partnerships Delivering a Sustainable Community Sport and Leisure Offer 

 

(a) EDDC to work with Active Devon based 
on the alignment between the two 
strategies. Regular meetings to be 

established between Active Devon, EDDC 
and LED to develop a co-ordinated 
approach to delivery of key outcomes 

 

3 2023/24 EDDC Leisure Team Appointment of new 
Health and Wellbeing 
Officer as above. 

(b) EDDC to re-engage with Exeter City 
Council to develop a partnership approach 
and forward plan for new indoor leisure 

facility provision in Cranbrook 

2 2022/23 EDDC Planning 
EDDC Leisure Team 
Exeter City Council – LDP 

lead and Planning 
Cranbrook Steering Group, 
CranbrookTown Council 

and Residents Group 

Internal EDDC officer 
time 
External funding – 

possibly £1.5-£2m? 
(New Sport England 
Places Fund from April 

2023) 
External consultants 
circa £6k 

(c) Work in partnership with Devon County 

Council to map and promote existing and 

3 2024/25 EDDC Green Infrastructure 

Project Manager 

Appointment of new 

Health and Wellbeing 
Officer as above 

page 44



Key Action Priority Ranking (1 – High, 2 – 
Medium, 3 – Low) 

Timescale 
 

(completion 

by) 

Responsible 
officer(s)/organisations 

 

Resources Required 

new cycle and walking routes district wide 
and the benefits of active travel. 

New EDDC Health and 
Wellbeing Officer 
Marketing/Communications 

Team 
Devon CC 

4. Harnessing the Value of the Great Outdoors 
 

(a) EDDC new Health and Wellbeing 

Programme (2 (2) above) to incorporate 
informal and organised activities based on 
using the great outdoors to encourage 

increased levels of participation in physical 
activity e.g. healthy walks and cycle rides, 
sea/wild water swimming, community 

allotments, conservation volunteering 
activities, orienteering, Parkrun, Couch to 
5K.  To be delivered in partnership with 

Council departments, LED, and other third 
sector organisations. 
 

2 2023/24 EDDC Leisure Team 

 

Appointment of new 

Health and Wellbeing 
Officer as above 

5. Review of the Existing Leisure Management Contract 

 

(a) EDDC to renegotiate and possibly 
extend the terms of the existing contract 
with LED. As a minimum, the following 

principles should be incorporated: 

 LED to submit business plan 
through to end of contract period 

which will present year 1 baseline 
breakdown of all income and 
expenditure (Profit and Loss 

Account) for each site including the 
health and wellbeing programme.  

1 2022/23 EDDC Leisure Team 
LED 

Internal EDDC officer 
time 
External consultants? 

Circa £5k 

page 45



Key Action Priority Ranking (1 – High, 2 – 
Medium, 3 – Low) 

Timescale 
 

(completion 

by) 

Responsible 
officer(s)/organisations 

 

Resources Required 

 The business plan will provide the 
equivalent information for each 
year through to the end of the 

contract period, showing the 
management fee payable by the 
Council to the operator, increased 

by RPI annually. 

 The business plan will clearly show 
the management fee payment 
allocated to each site P and L 

account. 

 This management fee will replace 
the existing 5 year fixed service 

fee. 

 In re-basing the contract, EDDC 
should consider the introduction of: 

(1) a utility benchmarking 
procedure to be applied at a 
frequency to be determined. Whilst 

the utility tariff rate should be 
shared between Council and LED, 
the risk associated with increased 

energy consumption should remain 
the responsibility of the operator. 
(2) Pandemic cover, ensuring that 

LED will be in a ‘no better, no 
worse’ financial position, but any 
payments will not be unrestricted 

and will follow an ‘open book’ 
policy. 

 

(b) Any revised contract should clearly set 

out EDDC’s key principles and outcomes 
for sport, health and physical activity and 

1 2022/23 EDDC Leisure Team Internal EDDC officer 

time 
External consultants? 

page 46



Key Action Priority Ranking (1 – High, 2 – 
Medium, 3 – Low) 

Timescale 
 

(completion 

by) 

Responsible 
officer(s)/organisations 

 

Resources Required 

establish key performance indicators (KPIs) 
against which the contractor will be 
monitored e.g. participation targets for 

under-represented groups, levels/frequency 
of participation measured against Sport 
England Active Lives annual data returns, 

East Devon Public Health priorities etc 

 

 

 

page 47



 

East Devon District Council – Leisure Strategy 
 

 

1 

Appendix 1 - East Devon District Council Stakeholder Consultation 
 
Internal 

Title/Organisation Name  Contact details 

East Devon District Council 

EDDC Planning Policy Manager Matt Dickins LT MDickins@eastdevon.gov.uk 

EDDC Service Lead – Planning & Planning Policy Ed Freeman LT EFreeman@eastdevon.gov.uk 

CEO Mark Williams RF MWilliams@eastdevon.gov.uk 

Portfolio Holder Cllr Nick Hookway RF NHookway@eastdevn.gov.uk 

LED Monitoring Forum Chair Cllr Sam Hawkins RF SHawkins@eastdevon.gov.uk 

Service Lead – Place, Assets & Commercialisation Tim Child LT TChIld@eastdevon.gov.uk 

Strategic Lead – Environment & Housing John Golding RF JGolding@eastdevon.gov.uk 

EDDC Public Health Officer Helen Wharam NN HWharam@eastdevon.gov.uk 

EDDC Cranbrook Community Manager Thea Billeter LT 
TBilleter@eastdevon.gov.uk 
 

EDDC Service Lead – Growth, Development and 
Prosperity 

Andy Wood NN 
AWood@eastdevon.gov.uk 
 

EDDC Gallery and Arts Development Manager Ruth Gooding NN RGooding@eastdevon.gov.uk 

House Manager (Manor Pavilion Theatre) Graham Whitlock NN GWhitlock@eastdevon.gov.uk 

Green Infrastructure Project Manager Simon Bates LT sbates@eastdevon.gov.uk 

Wild East Devon Volunteering James Chubb NN  

    

 
 
 
 

page 48



 

East Devon District Council – Leisure Strategy 
 

 

2 

External 

Title/Organisation Name  Contact details 

Facilities 

LED - CEO Peter Gilpin LT pgilpin@ledleisure.co.uk 

LED – Group Fitness and Wellbeing Manager Andrew Dare LT adare@ledleisure.co.uk 

Contacts for other providers of physical activity 
facilities/services e.g. sports associations 

Lottie Edwards LT ledwards@ledleisure.co.uk 

Cranford Sports Club Jill Anderson/Dan Tyler RF 
reception@cranfordsportsclub.com 
01395265771 

Cloakham Lawn Sports Centre Cllr Andrew Moulding – President of CL LT IHall@eastdevon.gov.uk 

Colleges/Schools 

Axe Valley Community College Secretary NN  

Clyst Vale Community College Julian Powell NN  

Colyton Grammar School  NN 

Honiton Community College  LT  

The Kings School, Ottery St Mary  LT  

Sidmouth College Carole Clarke (Pastoral and Community) LT cclark@sidmouthcollege.devon.sch.uk 

Exmouth Community College Stuart Lowe – Head of Sport and Leisure NN 
Stuart.lowe@exmouthcollege.devon.sch.u
k 
07971348722 

Exmouth Academic Learning Community 
Emily Mellor 
(WEB Health and Wellbeing Board Member) 

LT head@lympstone-primary.devon.sch.uk 
07872626912 

Contact For Devon CC Education  RF  

Contact for Devon CC Transport 
Contact for Devon CC Social Care 

 RF  

Key Clubs 

Honiton Gymnastics Club James Reddy LT honitongymclub@googlemail.com 

Axminster Gymnastics Club Emma Rowe LT info@axminstergymnastics.co.uk 

Axe Vale Netball Club (Axmnster LC) Sarah Clark NN  

page 49



 

East Devon District Council – Leisure Strategy 
 

 

3 

External 

Title/Organisation Name  Contact details 

Honiton Netball Club (Honiton LC) Jenny Kelly NN  

Sidmouth Netball Club (train at St Johns 
International School ) 

Louise Hastie NN  

Kings Volleyball Club (Kings School, Ottery St 
Mary) 

 RF  

Exmouth Beach Volleyball Club  RF  

Coaver Volleyball  RF  

Honiton Running Club Roger Saunders LT sat.metman@gmail.com 

Axe Vale Running Club Lesley Adams LT  

 J W Dance – Ottery Leisure Centre Jo Wilson LT  

Community Outreach    

Active Devon  
Director of Strategic Relationships 
Programme Manager 
Project Officer 
 

 
Gareth Dix 
Jason Wood 
Tamsin Phelvin 
 

RF
/LT 

 
Gareth.dix@acivedevon.org 
Jason.wood@activedevon.org 
Tamsin.phelvin@activedevon.org 
 

Programme Manager - Active Partnership 
(Exeter & Cranbrook Local Delivery Pilot) 

James Bogue LT James.Bogue@exeter.gov.uk 

Wild East Devon - volunteering James Chubb NN JChubb@eastdevon.gov.uk 

LTA – Devon County Development Officer Will McNally LT  

Organisations Representing marginalised 
groups e.g. older people, younger people, 
disability, low incomes etc 

 
  

Older Peoples Community Mental Health Team  
– Devon Partnership NHS Trust 

Steve Wincott (Honiton) & Trevor Moir (Exmouth) 

RF 01404 541640 
steve.wincott@nhs.net 
trevor.moir@nhs.net 
 

Exeter and East Devon Sports Association for 
the Disabled 

Tony Proverbs 
RF 01392 425095 

Exmouth and District U3A Christine Chittiock NN  

page 50



 

East Devon District Council – Leisure Strategy 
 

 

4 

External 

Title/Organisation Name  Contact details 

Young Devon Emily Sethi 
NN info@youngdevon.org 

01752 691511 

Action East Devon 
Aaron Clark – Headlight Manager (Young People) 
Ben Feasey - CEO 

NN info@actioneastdevon.org.uk 
01404 549045 

Devon Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) Gill Munday 
LT gill.munday@nhs.net 

 
WEB Health and Wellbeing Board 
Chairman 
Vice Chairman 

David Bassett 
Sue Lake 

LT Davidbassett6@btintrnet.com 
suek.lake99@gmail.com 
 

WEB Primary Care Network 
Dr Barry Coakley – Clinical Director 
(WEB Health and Wellbeing Board Member) 

LT barry.coakley@nhs.net 
07795466067 

Seachange Project (Budleigh) 
Manager 

Marc Jobson 
LT  

Exmouth Gateway Club (social club for adults 
with disabilities) 

Paul Baldwin - Secretary 
LT paul@exmouthgateway.co.uk 

07866270213 

West Dorset Council  Paul Rutter - Service Manager for Leisure Services 
LT Paul.rutter@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk 

01305 221000 

Mid Devon Council Lee Chester – Leisure Manager 

LT lchester@middevon.gov.uk 
01844 255255 
 

South Somerset Council Charlotte Fry 
LT charlotte.fry@southsomerset.gov.uk 

 

Somerset West and Taunton Council Steve Hughes – Programme Manager 
NN s.noyce@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk 

0300 3048000 

Teignbridge Council 
Lorraine Montgomery – Head of Operations 
James Teed – Leisure Manager 

LT lorraine.montgomery@teignbridge.gov.uk 
Jamest@teignbridge.gov.uk 
01626 361101 

Exeter City Council 
George Marshall – Assistant Service Lead – Local 
Plan 

LT George.Marshall@exeter.gov.uk 

Arts and Tourism    

Visit South Devon Contact? NN  

page 51

mailto:s.noyce@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk


 

East Devon District Council – Leisure Strategy 
 

 

5 

External 

Title/Organisation Name  Contact details 

East Devon Excellence Ruud Veeneboer NN Info@mazzardfarm.com 

Arts and Culture East Devon Forum Fiona Page-Turner NN FPage-Turner@eastdevon.gov.uk 

    

 
External 

Title/Organisation Name  Contact details 

Town/Parish Councils    

Exmouth Town Council Mrs Lisa Bowman, Clerk to Exmouth Town Council RF townclerk@exmouth.gov.uk  

Honiton Town Council Mr Stephen Hill, Clerk to Honiton Town Council RF towncouncil@honiton.gov.uk  

Cranbrook Town Council Mrs J Gardner, Clerk to Cranbrook Town Council RF clerk@cranbrooktowncouncil.gov.uk  

Sidmouth Town Council 
Christopher Holland, Clerk to Sidmouth Town 
Council 

LT Town.clerk@sidmouth.gov.uk  

Seaton Town Council Julia Mutlow, Clerk to Seaton Town Council LT townclerk@seaton.gov.uk  

Axminster Town Council Miss H Kirkcaldie, Clerk to Axminster Town Council NN clerk@axminstertowncouncil.gov.uk  

Ottery St Mary Town Council Cllrs Stewart Lucas and John Green NN enquiries@otterystmary-tc.gov.uk  

 

 
 

page 52



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

1 

Appendix 2: Supply and Demand 
 

Assessment of Individual Facility Types 
 

Sports Halls and Activity Halls 
 

Quantity  
 
1.1 Sports halls are identified as 3 court badminton halls and above and provide facilities for team sports such as netball, volleyball, basketball etc. Activity 

halls are smaller halls normally of 1 badminton court size but may not be marked out for badminton but can cater for some sports and physical activity. 
 

1.2 The supply analysis identifies that East Devon has a total of 27 sports hall/activity halls across 23 sites (refer to Map 1). Table 1 details all sports halls 
and activity halls in the District. 

 
1.3 There are 

 
• A total of 13 sports halls and 14 activity halls across 23 sites 
• 13 main sports halls in total (all strategic size i.e. 3 courts +) 
• 3 community pay and play sports halls (strategic size 3+ courts) 
• 10 community accessible sports halls i.e. available for sports club use 

 
1.4 5 of the sports halls are managed by schools or colleges, 6 sports halls are managed by LED Community Leisure (trust) on behalf of EDDC, 1 sports 

hall is managed by a commercial operator and 1 sports hall is owned and managed by the MOD. Although the MOD sports hall offers community use 
for clubs/organisation, this is normally only if the hirer has a military sponsor and is therefore quite restrictive in terms of community use. 

 
1.5 Strategic size sports halls and activity halls are detailed in Appendix A and Table 1. Table 1 also highlights strategic size sports halls and activity halls 

available for pay and play community use. 
 

  

page 53



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

2 

Map 1: Sports Halls/Activity Halls by access type in East Devon 

  

page 54



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

3 

Table 1: Supply of Sports Halls and Activity Halls in East Devon 
 

Site Name Post Code Facility Type 

F
a

c
il

it
y

 S
u

b
 T

y
p

e
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

B
a

d
m

in
to

n
 C

o
u

rt
s

 

Access Type Ownership Type 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
y

p
e

 

P
a
y
 a

n
d

 P
la

y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 S
iz

e
 S

p
o

rt
s
 H

a
ll
 i
.e

. 
3
+

 
c
o

u
rt

s
 p

a
y
 a

n
d

 P
la

y
 

Y
e
a
r 

B
u

il
t 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e

fu
rb

is
h

e
d

 

Axe Valley Academy EX13 5EA Sports Hall Main 4 Pay and Play Academy Trust ✓ ✓ 1988 2006 

Axe Valley Academy EX13 5EA Sports Hall 
Activity 
Hall 

0 Pay and Play Academy Trust ✓  1988  

Bicton College EX9 7BY Sports Hall Main 4 
Sports Club/Community 
Association 

Further Education 
Commercial 
management 

 ✓ 2015  

Brixington Primary Academy EX8 4JQ Sports Hall 
Activity 
Hall 

2 
Sports Club/Community 
Association 

Academy School/college   2000  

Broadclyst Sports Centre EX5 3AL Sports Hall Main 4 
Sports Club/Community 
Association 

Community School Trust  ✓ 1988  

Clyst St Mary Village Hall EX5 1AA Sports Hall 
Activity 
Hall 

1 
Sports Club/Community 
Association 

Other Trust   1992  

Clyst Vale Community 
College 

EX5 3AJ Sports Hall 
Activity 
Hall 

1 Private  Community School School/college   1960  

page 55



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

4 

Site Name Post Code Facility Type 

F
a

c
il

it
y

 S
u

b
 T

y
p

e
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

B
a

d
m

in
to

n
 C

o
u

rt
s

 

Access Type Ownership Type 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
y

p
e
 

P
a
y
 a

n
d

 P
la

y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 S
iz

e
 S

p
o

rt
s
 H

a
ll
 i
.e

. 
3
+

 
c
o

u
rt

s
 p

a
y
 a

n
d

 P
la

y
 

Y
e
a
r 

B
u

il
t 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e

fu
rb

is
h

e
d

 

Colyton Leisure Centre EX24 6GB Sports Hall Main 4 
Sports Club/Community 
Association 

Foundation School Trust   2003 2007 

Commando Training Centre EX8 5AR Sports Hall Main 8 
Sports Club/Community 
Association 

MOD MOD   1973  

Cranbrook Education 
Campus 

EX5 7EE Sports Hall Main 3 
Sports Club/Community 
Association 

Academy School/college   2016  

Cranford Sports Club EX8 2EQ Sports Hall 
Activity 
Hall 

2 Registered Membership Commercial  
Commercial 
Management 

  2001  

Exmouth Community College EX8 3AF Sports Hall Main 4 
Sports Club/Community 
Association 

Academy School/College   1960 1999 

Exmouth Community College EX8 3AF Sports Hall 
Activity 
Hall 

1 
Sports Club/Community 
Association 

Academy School/College   1960  

Exmouth community College EX8 3AF Sports Hall 
Activity 
Hall 

0 
Sports Club/Community 
Association 

Academy School/College   1960  

Exmouth Community College EX8 3AF Sports Hall Main 4 
Sports Club/Community 
Association 

Academy School/College   1976  

page 56



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

5 

Site Name Post Code Facility Type 

F
a

c
il

it
y

 S
u

b
 T

y
p

e
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

B
a

d
m

in
to

n
 C

o
u

rt
s

 

Access Type Ownership Type 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
y

p
e
 

P
a
y
 a

n
d

 P
la

y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 S
iz

e
 S

p
o

rt
s
 H

a
ll
 i
.e

. 
3
+

 
c
o

u
rt

s
 p

a
y
 a

n
d

 P
la

y
 

Y
e
a
r 

B
u

il
t 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e

fu
rb

is
h

e
d

 

Exmouth Leisure Centre EX8 1EN Sports Hall 
Activity 
Hall 

2 Pay and Play Local Authority Trust ✓  1982  

Honiton Community College EX14 1QT Sports Hall 
Activity 
Hall 

1 
Sports Club/Community 
Association 

Academy School/College   2017  

Honiton Leisure Centre EX14 1QW Sports Hall Main 4 Pay and Play Local Authority Trust ✓ ✓ 1980  

Ottery Leisure Centre EX11 1QZ Sports Hall Main 4 
Sports Club/Community 
Association 

Local Authority Trust   1986 2008 

Sidmouth College EX10 9LG Sports Hall 
Activity 
Hall 

1 
Sports Club/Community 
Association 

Community School School/College   2020  

Sidmouth Leisure Centre EX10 9LH Sports Hall Main 4 Pay and Play Local Authority Trust ✓ ✓ 1981 1998 

St John’s International 
School 

EX10 8RG Sports Hall Main 5 
Sports Club/Community 
Association 

Other Independent 
School 

School/College   1988  

St Peters School EX8 5AU Sports Hall 
Activity 
Hall 

1 Private 
Other Independent 
School 

School/College   1949 2007 

page 57



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

6 

Site Name Post Code Facility Type 

F
a

c
il

it
y

 S
u

b
 T

y
p

e
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

B
a

d
m

in
to

n
 C

o
u

rt
s

 

Access Type Ownership Type 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
y

p
e
 

P
a
y
 a

n
d

 P
la

y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 S
iz

e
 S

p
o

rt
s
 H

a
ll
 i
.e

. 
3
+

 
c
o

u
rt

s
 p

a
y
 a

n
d

 P
la

y
 

Y
e
a
r 

B
u

il
t 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e

fu
rb

is
h

e
d

 

The Institute EX11 1HD Sports Hall 
Activity 
Hall 

0 
Sports Club/Community 
Association 

Community 
Organisation 

Community 
Organisation 

  1999  

The Kings School EX11 1RA Sports Hall Main 4 
Sports Club/Community 
Association 

Academy Convertors School/College   1965 1986 

West Hill Village Hall EX11 1UQ Sports Hall 
Activity 
Hall 

1 
Sports Club/Community 
association 

Community 
Organisation 

Community 
Organisation 

  1986  

Woodbury Village Hall EX5 1LX Sports Hall 
Activity 
Hall 

1 
Sports Club/Community 
Association 

Community 
Organisation 

Community 
Organisation 

  1944 2002 

 
  

page 58



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

7 

1.6 A total of 3 out of the 13 strategic sized sports halls (3+ badminton courts) are available for pay and play community use and 10 are available for sports 
club/community association use. A total of 9 out of the 13 strategic sized sports halls are located on school/college owned sites and 1 is located on an 
MOD owned site (8 court sports hall). 
 

1.7 As well as the identified activity halls, there are a range of other community halls/centres, churches, association e.g. The Beehive, Liverton Copse 
Community Centre etc. These are available for community use sessions, usually for groups, associations, and privately run classes, but provide for far 
more than sport and physical activity. Typically community halls will also be hired for dance classes, arts/crafts, events and programmes, meetings and 
social gatherings.  
 

1.8 The education sports halls will have different hours of access for community use, outside of education use. Some schools and colleges proactively 
manage venues for wider community use, predominantly by sports clubs and community groups. Other schools and colleges let their sports halls on a 
responsive basis to sports clubs or community groups, for a term or even shorter lettings. 
 

1.9 Schools with community access were consulted with as part of this study and the following key information was provided relating to access arrangements 
and programmes of use. 

 
Table 2: Summary of School Sports Facilities – Community Use 

 

School Access arrangements and Programme of Use 

Axe Valley Academy 
(Axminster LC) 
 

Pre-Covid the centre was open 7am – 10pm Monday to Friday and weekends. Post-covid, the centre opens 7am – 12.30pm and from 4pm – 9.30pm 
Monday to Friday and reduced hours at the weekend. This withdraws LED from community use during some of the busier school times which presents 
safeguarding issues. LED has introduced a separate public access to the gym to avoid safeguarding issues where possible. 
 

Bicton College 
 

Bicton College is a careers college and part of Cornwall College Group. There is no pay and play public access. The facilities operate on a registered 
membership basis and are operated by a commercial operator called Evolve Fitness. 
 

Brixington Primary 
Academy 
 

The school has 2 activity halls available to hire by local sports clubs and associations weekday evenings and weekends. One of the halls is used during the 
day for school assemblies, school lunches etc. 
 

Clyst Vale Community 
College 
(Broadclyst LC) 
 

The leisure centre is open in the evenings and weekends only. The site is open from 5pm – 10pm Monday to Friday, 9am – 6pm Saturdays and 10am – 
10pm Sundays. 
 
The site closed during Covid and now operates on a coach led/self-access operation i.e. no reception but hirer given keys and responsibility for 
unlocking/locking of site. 
 

Colyton Grammar 
School (Colyton LC) 
 

Available for community use from 5.30pm Monday to Friday and 9am – 1pm Saturday. 
 

Cranbrook Education 
Campus 
 

At the start of 2016, the Education Campus took out a 3 year agreement with Exeter City FC Community Trust to manage the lettings. This agreement has 
now ended and the Campus has been able to take over this function and run in-house. There is still, however, a strong tie with the football club. 
 

page 59



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

8 

School Access arrangements and Programme of Use 

Available for community use 5.30pm – 10pm Monday to Friday (9am – 5pm during school holidays), 9am – 6pm Saturdays and only bespoke bookings are 
available on Sundays. There is no formal Community Use Agreement in place. 
 

Exmouth Community 
College 
 

The sports Hall and artificial turf pitch (floodlit) is available for local sports clubs/community organisations to hire weekday evenings and weekends. 
 

Honiton Community 
College 
(Honiton LC) 
 

Pre-covid the centre was open from 6.30am – 10pm Mon – Fri and operated all weekend.  
 
Post-covid the centre opens 6.30am – 9pm and reduced hours at the weekend. 
 
The school has use of the main sports hall Mon – Fri 8.30am – 5pm and have allocated 14 hours of squash court use per week. The rest of the facility is 
open 6.30am – 9pm weekdays and 8.30am – 3pm weekends. LED have a 60/40 split in dual use costs in favour of the school as per other EDDC dual use 
agreements. The school hire the gym and large studio from LED as these do not form part of the dual use arrangement. 
 

The Kings School 
(Ottery LC) 
 

Pre-Covid the centre was open 7am – 9.30pm Mon – Fri and 9am – 5pm weekends. 
Post Covid, opening hours have been reduced to 7am – 1pm, 3pm – 8.30pm weekdays and 9am – 5pm Sat and 9am – 2pm Sundays. 
Due to Covid restrictions, LED’s primary group exercise space has become condemned. This combined with the school’s allocated leisure centre space 
has severely limited what LED can deliver to the community during the day. Morning/early afternoon group exercise made up a considerable percentage of 
centre use. 
 

Sidmouth College 
(Sidmouth LC) 
 

Sidmouth college has unlimited access to the main sports hall and 3G pitch during term time from 9am – 5.30pm Mon – Friday. They also have up to 12 
hours per week use of the gym and squash courts. This makes it difficult for LED to programme community use of these spaces. The public has to check 
availability before turning up on site. 
 

St Johns International 
School 

The sports hall is available for local sports clubs/community organisations to hire weekday evenings, weekends and school holidays. 

 

1.10 This overall range of provision within the district means that activities/sports can be separated. Big space sports such as badminton and basketball can 
be accommodated in the main halls. The smaller activity halls can accommodate small space activities such as Pilates, yoga and martial arts. 

 

  

page 60



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

9 

Quality 
 
1.11 Detailed quality assessments were undertaken of all the EDDC indoor sports facilities (November – December 2021) by way of a site visit and visual 

assessment of the facilities. These are provided in Appendix B and are summarised in Table 3 below. 
 

Table 3: Summary of the Quality Assessment of East Devon Sports Halls and Activity Halls 
 

Facility Name Quality Score Commentary 

Axe Valley 
Academy  
(Axminster LC) 

39% Axminster LC was built in the early 1980’s by EDDC on Devon CC owned land as a dual use facility with the then Axminster School, before 
becoming an academy. There is a formal community use agreement in place. The 4 court sports hall and activity hall were built in 1988. The 
sports hall was refurbished in 2006. 
 
Facility managed by LED Community Leisure (trust). 
 
Registered membership and pay and play use. Main users are Axe Valley Academy, Leisure Leagues, Axminster Netball Club. Well used 
site but weekend use is quiet. 
 
The onsite pool (Flamingo Pool) is managed separately by a small trust and volunteers. 
 
Facilities look tired and in need of refurbishment, particularly the changing rooms. Partial disability access and poor directional signage, 
particularly in the town centre. Difficult to navigate to reception from car park. 
 
There is good parking in place. Pay and Play car park owned by Flamingo Pool. Customers pay and get a part refund at pool on production 
of receipt from LED. 
 
Query whether membership price represents value for money for range of facilities offered, particularly without pool included in the offer. 
 

Bicton College 64% Bicton College is a careers college and part of the Cornwall College Group. 
 
Indoor facilities include a 4 court sports hall built in 2015, climbing tower and fitness suite. All facilities are in good condition. The college also 
has a large number of outdoor grass pitches, an artificial turf pitch, lake for watersports, golf putting green, swing studio and low ropes 
course. 
 
The facility has extensive grounds but is situated in a remote location in the Devon countryside so the facility does not lend itself to pay and 
play use. 
 
There is good levels of car parking and full disability access. Not served by public transport due to rural location. 
 

Brixington 
Primary 
Academy 

64% Access to the site not permitted. Includes 2 halls built 2000, both in good condition, with full disability access.  Available for hire by local 
sports clubs/community organisations. It is not clear whether changing room provision is included. The site is very tight as it fronts immediately 
onto the main road. There is some car parking provision and the site is served well by public transport. 
Signposting to the facility is poor. 

page 61



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

10 

Facility Name Quality Score Commentary 

Broadclyst 
Leisure Centre  

29% Built by EDDC on Devon CC land in 1988. Serves as a dual use facility with the adjacent Clyst Vale Community College. Indoor facilities 
comprise of a 4 court sports hall. There are also 3 outdoor tennis courts available to hire. 
 
Popular with indoor 5-a-side teams and junior clubs e.g. trampolining. 
 
Location is good as it is close to Cranbrook where there is significant population growth. However, the building is in very poor condition. 
There has been no significant investment in the site since it was opened in 1988. 
 
The building is not DDA compliant. 
 
The facility has a formal community use agreement in place. 
 

Clyst St Mary 
Village Hall 

68% Provides an activity hall built in 1992 and in good condition. Managed by a trust with volunteers. 
 
Available for hire by the community 7 days a week. Used by local residents but also groups from Exeter, Plymouth and surrounding area. 
 
Small access road and not easily visible from main road. 
 

Colyton Leisure 
Centre 

75% Colyton LC is a relatively modern facility built by EDDC in 2003 with the 4 court sports hall refurbished in 2007. The site is shared with 
Colyton Grammar School. There is a formal Community Use Agreement in place. 
 
A 3G pitch was built in 1991 and refurbished in 2004. The 3G pitch is not within the red line of LED’s leased area so access to the pitch is at 
the school’s gift and could be withdrawn at any stage. There is also 1 studio and 3 grass pitches. No gym so limited offer to make membership 
attractive. 
 
The Council is in the process of reviewing the existing CUA to incorporate the 3G pitch and a 50/50 split in the cost of utilities, cleaning, 
insurance, maintenance etc. of the sports hall, studio and 3G pitch. In return, as long as the pitch remains available for community use, both 
parties contribute an amount into an annual sinking fund for the pitch replacement. 
 
The School recently built additional changing rooms and offices for school use. 
There is full disability access and a small amount of car parking. 
 

Commando 
Training Centre 

MOD site – unable to access 

Cranbrook 
Education 
Campus 

86% Modern dual use facility built in 2016. Facilities include 3 court sports hall, 2 studios and 3G pitch. All facilities are in excellent condition. 
 
The campus is a Regional Development Centre for Exeter City FC. 
 
Hired out to local clubs and organisations but mainly adult based clubs. However, Cranbrook has a very high proportion of young 
families/young people so current provision and hire arrangements does not address local needs. 
 
Poor public transport locally. Car parking on site is poor/difficult as secure gate access only. 

page 62



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

11 

Facility Name Quality Score Commentary 

Cranford Sports 
Club 

61% Cranford Sports Club is a not for profit private members club (run by members with volunteer board of directors. 
 
Lots of charitable work with reduced cost external hires for other charities such as Help for Hero’s. 
 
Indoor sports facilities built in 2001 and include a 65 station gym, sauna, a 2 court activity hall, 2x studios, 25m x 6m pool. The oldest facility 
is the lido which was originally built 1970 and refurbished 2010. The 6 outdoor tennis courts were built in 2000, the sports hall 2001, and 
gym 2005. 
 
Sport England funding was used to refurbish the hard courts and multi-use carpeted courts a number of years ago. 
 
The pool was originally a lido and covered in 2015 and extended from 20 to 25m. Swim lessons are provided by a private hirer (Swim Devon). 
The studios are quite well equipped although the floors are not sprung. 
 
The Club is struggling financially and is looking to sell some of its land to help secure the future of the Club. LED is also in discussion with 
the Club with a view to running some of their back of house services. 
 
The site has good car parking, is served well by public transport and has plenty of development potential. 
 

Exmouth 
Community 
College 

50% The college has a 4 court sports hall which it hires out to local sports clubs and community organisations. The sports hall is in good condition 
and benefits from full disability access and good public transport links. There is some car parking available. There is no development potential 
for the site due to current layout/design. 
 

Exmouth 
Leisure Centre 

71% The centre opened in 1982 with the pools added 3 years later. Includes 70 station gym, Shapemasters Toning Studio, 2x glass backed 
squash courts, 2 court sports hall, 5 studios, 25m x 6 lane main pool,12m x 7m learner pool, and climbing wall. 
 
Benefits from central location but the site is very constricted with various buildings linked together. Has a good swim schools and is used by 
a number of local schools and sports clubs. Car parking on site is good although there is no dedicated parking for customers. Road directional 
signage needs improving but on site signposting is good. Building entrance could be improved and made more welcoming. Reception is not 
at the centre of the building and prevents ease of access/flow. 
 
The sports hall is in good condition but unlike the other areas of the building, the sports hall has not been refurbished. Maintenance costs 
are high for the site due to the age of the buildings. 
 

Honiton 
Community 
College 

65% Facilities include an activity halls, studio and 20 station gym. The college currently only lets the activity hall out to 1 external dance group. 
There are no other community lets on the site and no formal dual use agreement in place. However, they are looking to increase the number 
of lets in future to help generate income. 
 
The activity hall and studio are in excellent condition. Limited parking directly on the school site but the assumption is that hirers would use 
the adjacent leisure centre car park. 
 

Honiton Leisure 
Centre 

71% Built by EDDC in 1980 as a dual use facility with the adjacent Honiton Community College.  
 

page 63



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

12 

Facility Name Quality Score Commentary 

Facilities include a 4 court sports hall, 45 station gym, studio and 2x squash courts. A 25m x 5 lane swimming pool and changing facility is 
located in a stand-alone building on the opposite side of the car park. There are also 2 outdoor tennis courts. The upstairs sports hall viewing 
gallery is used as a second studio. 
 
The sports hall is used by a number of clubs e.g. Honiton Badminton Club and Honiton Trampoline Club. 
 
In 1998 the site benefitted from an extension of the gym and studio 1. There was a further extension of the gym in 2014. The tennis courts 
were built in 2000. The squash courts were refurbished in 2007. The swimming pool changing rooms are in the process of being refurbished. 
 
The facilities are in good condition but the pool changing/showers is in need of refurbishment.  
 
Car parking is restricted in the evenings as used by other adjacent organisations e.g. Honiton Rugby Club, MUGA users.  
 
The access road to the site is very poor and narrow.  
 

Ottery Leisure 
Centre 

56% Built by EDDC in 1986, serving as a dual use facility with Kings School which sits adjacent to the site. Facilities include an 18 station gym, 4 
court sports hall and 2 studios. There is also 1 outdoor sand dressed floodlit 3G pitch.  
The sports hall was refurbished in 2006. A larger studio space was added to the rear of the building in 2012. 
 
The gym was refurbished in 2018. However, it is very small. The existing pitch was upgraded to a synthetic pitch in 2017.  
 
Overall the facilities are in average condition. The sports hall roof needs replacing. Refurbishment is needed of communal spaces, changing 
rooms and toilets. 
 
Due to Covid restrictions, LED’s primary group exercise space has become condemned. This combined with the school’s allocated leisure 
centre space has severely limited what LED can deliver to the community during the day. 
 
There is limited car parking during the day and partial disabled access around the building. 
 
The offer on site is limited compared to local competition and therefore difficult to justify membership pricing. 
 

Sidmouth 
College 

86% New college adjacent to existing Sidmouth LC.  
 
Activity hall is available for hire to the community weekday evenings. The facility is in excellent condition as only approximately 12 months 
old. Good car parking as only hired out in the evenings when school not in use.  The hall is currently only hired out to a dance school. The 
School does not feel that it is competing with the neighbouring sports centre. 
 

Sidmouth 
Leisure Centre 

61% Sidmouth LC was opened in 1981 and is located on the Sidmouth College Campus.  
 
Facilities include a 19 station gym, 4 court sports hall, 2 squash courts and a sand dressed 3G pitch (no floodlights). 
 
The gym was added in 1989 and the sand dressed artificial turf pitch was added in 2004. The sports hall was refurbished in 1998, the gym 
in 2010, the squash courts in 2001 and the gym in 2010. 

page 64



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

13 

Facility Name Quality Score Commentary 

 
The facilities are in good overall condition. However, the changing facilities are in need of refurbishment. There are also no floodlights to the 
3G pitch which restricts usage and income generation opportunities. The gym is also small and has limited availability during the day and is 
often at capacity at peak times. Sports hall balcony is used for group exercise space. 
 
Daytime community parking is difficult because the school have priority use of the main car park. 
 

St John’s 
International 
School 

68% An independent school which makes its sports facilities available for hire by local sports clubs/association. Sports facilities include a 5 court 
sports hall and 4 lane teaching pool as well as outdoor facilities (rugby pitches, football pitches, 2 tennis courts and 2 netball courts). 
 
The facilities are in good condition. The pool has a telescopic roof which can open in summer. The pool is located some distance from the 
main building and has its own changing rooms adjacent to the pool. The location means that the community does not need to walk through 
the main building to access the pool. There is no disability access. 
 
There is a small amount of parking on site and poor signposting. 
 

St Peters School 68% This is a private prep school, set in 28 acres of beautiful countryside.  The school is in a rural location. Good quality facilities which include 
an activity hall outdoor heated pool, activity hall, squash court and outdoor grass pitches and tennis courts. There is full disability access, 
good car parking and signposting on site. 
 
The facilities are very spread out on site and would therefore be difficult to manage if made available for community use. 
 

The Institute 39% Located directly on one of the main streets in Ottery Town Centre, this activity hall is run by a management committee as a registered charity 
and is available for hire by local clubs and organisations. The hall is available to hire 7 days a week and is used for a variety of activities from 
yoga, hand bell ringing, short mat bowls, table tennis, aerobics and a community market. The facility is well used by the local community. 
The facility has a stage for performances. 
 
The building is old (late Victorian?) but well maintained. However there is no parking, only partial disability access throughout and poor 
signposting to the facility. 
 

The Kings 
School 

64% School 4 court sports hall built 1965 and refurbished 1986. Although advertised on the school website as available for hire by local 
clubs/organisations, the sports hall has very few booking e.g. local church group, fitness class pre-Covid etc. The ceiling height might restrict 
use for competitive badminton and volleyball. The sports hall is older than the neighbouring Ottery LC sports hall which may account for the 
small number of lets. Charges are £25 per hour for the sports hall. There is parking shared with the neighbouring leisure centre. 
 

West Hill Village 
Hall 

82% Built in 1992 and located adjacent to the primary school in the centre of the village, this modern hall is used regularly by a range of local 
clubs and groups e.g. yoga, dance, badminton, keep fit and short mat bowls. The hall is a registered charity and run by a management 
committee. The hall is available for hire 7 days a week. 
 
The hall is 21m x 8.5m. There are also 3 meeting rooms, 2 kitchens and toilets. 
There is full disabled access, good parking and signposting on site and served well by public transport. 
 

page 65



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

14 

Facility Name Quality Score Commentary 

Woodbury 
Village Hall 

75% A well maintained hall with 1 badminton court and stage for performances. The Village hall also has 2 meeting rooms, a kitchen and toilets. 
Built in 1944 and refurbished in 2002. The facility moved from Topsham to Woodbury a number of years ago. Available for hire by the 
community 7 days a week.  
Used by local residents but also people from Exeter, Exmouth and surrounding area. Activities include, badminton, exercise classes, short 
mat bowls, history society, garden club, arts and crafts groups etc. 
 
Excellent disability access (recently received grant to provide) and disabled toilet. 
 
Managed by board of directors (both a charity and a company limited by guarantee). Any surpluses are re-invested in the facility. 
 

 

1.12 EDDC owns 5 sports halls within the district; all are 4 court sports halls located at Axminster, Broadclyst, Honiton, Ottery and Sidmouth Leisure Centres. 
These leisure centres are all situated on land adjacent to a school/college and are ‘dual use’ in nature, meaning that usage of the facilities is shared 
between the school/college and the community. These are arrangements were created in the 1980’s where EDDC built leisure centres on Devon County 
Council land, with ongoing running costs shared between the two parties, formalised by ‘Dual Use agreements.’ EDDC’s operational roles in these 
agreements were subsequently formally novated to LED. Colyton Leisure Centre has a slightly different tenure arrangement, being built more recently 
(2003), where the Grammar School constructed the building, and then leased to EDDC. The principles of the usage arrangements are similar though 
to the other five dual use centres. 

 
1.13 Sport England and National Governing Bodies of Sport recommend that a 4 badminton court sports hall for community participation should be 690 sq. 

m in size. This space provides additional space between courts, run off space and space for coaching and teaching school PE. Only Sidmouth Leisure 
Centre sports hall is 690 sq. m. This means that the sports hall can provide for all the indoor hall sports at the community level of participation and 
accommodated club sport programmes. 

 
1.14 Interestingly, the remaining 5 sports halls all vary in size. Ottery and Broadclyst sports halls are 594 sq. m, Axminster 486 sq. m, and Colyton 619 sq. 

m. Sports Halls on educational sites often have smaller size sports halls since education authorities consider this acceptable for curriculum use. 
 
1.15 There are no sports halls in the district larger than 4 badminton courts, other than the 5 court sports hall at St Johns International School and the MOD 

8 court sports hall at the Commando Training Centre at Lympstone. Although the MOD sports hall is available to for hire by local community sports 
clubs/associations, the hirer normally has to obtain a military sponsor in order to access the facilities and this can be quite restrictive in terms of 
community access. 

 
1.16 Unusually, Exmouth Community College has 2 sports halls. The first sports hall is the oldest sports hall in East Devon, built in 1960, and is 594 sq. m 

in size. The second sports hall was built in 1976 and is also a 4 court hall but 690 sq. m in size, therefore providing additional space between the courts, 
run off space and space for coaching and teaching. 

 

page 66



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

15 

1.17 The average age of sports halls in East Devon is 36 years and they vary in condition. The average age span of a sports hall is normally 35 – 40 years.  
East Devon therefore has an ageing stock of sports halls with the majority of these located on school sites. In the case of EDDC’s dual use facilities, 
the sports halls were refurbished at Axminster, Colyton, Ottery and Sidmouth approximately 15 to 25 years ago. However there has been no investment 
in the sports halls at Honiton and Broadclyst and all sites are now in need of further investment. The Council recently undertook a stock condition survey 
review (2020) of buildings managed under the LED contract and identified approximately £1.5 million of capital works required over the next 5 years 
which included repairs to the sports hall roof at Broadclyst and Ottery Leisure Centres, the replacement of the sports hall floor at Axminster Leisure 
Centre and the replacement of storeroom doors to the sports halls across all sites. 

 
1.18 The activity halls across the district vary in age. The oldest activity hall is located Woodbury Village Hall which was refurbished in 2002. The most recent 

activity hall wall built in 2020 and is located at Sidmouth College. Both activity halls have dimensions of 10m x 18m which is common for this type of 
facility. It is worth noting that the average age of an activity hall in East Devon is 39 years and10 out of the 14 activity halls are over 30 years old. This 
again reflects an ageing stock of facilities. 

 
1.19 This overall range of provision in the district means that the activities/sports can be separated. Big space sports such as badminton, basketball, and 

trampolining can be accommodated in the main halls. The smaller activity halls can accommodate small space sports and activities such as palates, 
yoga and martial arts. 

 

Accessibility 
 
1.20 In East Devon, 15.1% of the population do not have access to a car which is lower than national (24.9%) and regional (18%) figures. The percentage 

of the population without access to a car is important because it influences travel patterns to sports halls. If there is a higher percentage of the population 
without a car, then a network of local accessible sports halls for residents who either walk or use public transport to travel to a sports hall becomes 
much more important. 

 
1.21 The findings for East Devon are that 88% of visits to sports halls are by car which is higher than national and regional figures. This means that only 

12% are travelling by foot or using public transport, both of which are below national and regional levels. Map 2 below shows the geographical 
distribution of the strategic size pay and play community accessible sports halls and activity halls in East Devon with a 20 minute and 30 minute drive 
catchment. The catchment areas of the existing pay and play community accessible sports halls cover the East Devon area and beyond into 
neighbouring local authority areas. The catchment areas overlap in some places as they are within the same 20 minute or 30 minute drive time. The 
geographical spread of sports hall sites within East Devon and neighbouring areas also highlights that there are potentially parts of the local authority, 
particularly in the northern parts, which have limited access to a sports hall at the current time. 
  

page 67



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

16 

Map 2: Sports Halls/Activity Halls with pay and play community access catchments in East Devon (20 min and 30 min drive) 

  

page 68



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

17 

Availability 
 

1.22 Table 1, together with Map 1 and 1.2 highlight that there is a high level of accessible sports hall and activity hall provision in East Devon. However, the 
majority are on education sites and only provide for sports club/association use. Whilst a community accessible sports hall would typically be open from 
7am – 10pm weekdays and 9am – 6pm weekends, a facility on an education site, if open to community use will be open from 5pm – 9pm weekdays 
and 9am – 5pm weekends as demonstrated in Table 2 above.  Opening hours for village/community halls vary significantly depending on how they are 
operated but they would typically not be open for as many hours as a community accessible sports hall. There are 4 sports halls in East Devon with 
community pay and play access but 3 of these are on education sites with dual use agreements in place. This means that pay and play access is 
normally restricted to weekday evenings and weekends. 

 
1.23 The total supply of sports halls in badminton courts, is 61 courts, of which 39.8 are available in the weekly peak period for community use (known as 

effective supply). The Facility Planning Model (FPM) includes the sports hall at the Royal Marines Commando Training Centre and the level of 
community access at this site can be limited. The FPM also excludes sports halls and activity halls deemed to be private, too small or there is a lack of 
information relating to hours of use. In effect, there is an aggregate total of 21.2 badminton courts, across the education sites, which are unavailable 
for community use; this represents 35% of the total supply of badminton courts in East Devon. The peak period is weekday evenings (up to 5 hours per 
day) and weekend days (up to 7 hours per weekend day). The reason for the difference between the total supply of badminton courts and the effective 
supply, is because of the variable hours of access for community use at the sports halls located on education sites. 

 
1.24 Based on a measure of the number of badminton courts available for community use per 10,000 population, East Devon has 4.1 courts which is slightly 

lower than both regional (4.5) and national (4.2) figures. 
 

National Governing Bodies (NGB’s) 
 
1.25 Consultation was undertaken with National Governing Bodies (NGB’s) to identify their views on the need for sports hall provision in East Devon. The 

views of NGB’s (representing sports hall sports) who responded are included in Appendix C. There were no responses received from NGB’s 
representing Athletics. 

 
 

1. Badminton – In the East Devon area there are a higher than average number of badminton clubs and members. However, there are a below 
average number of sites and courts. Total unmet demand is worse than the national average and predicted to worsen by 2030. Participation rates 
are very low, although there are 9 clubs with approximately 170 affiliated members. Less than half (45.1%) the badminton courts available meet 
Badminton England quality threshold. There is a need for 85.34% of the 645 good quality peak time court hours available each week, to service 
the current and latent badminton demand. Key facilities (those which host a club and those rated good/excellent) are: Cranford Sports Club, 
Axminster, Broadclyst, Exmouth, Honiton, Ottery, Sidmouth and Colyton Leisure Centres, Bicton College and St John’s International School. 

2. Football - Our priority for indoor facilities is to enable Futsal to be played by youth and adult teams as well as recreationally. We would therefore 
want sports halls to have Futsal markings and goals to help grow the game. The Exeter & District Youth League is our key provider of Futsal along 

page 69



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

18 

with ourselves as deliverers. Our long term plan is for Futsal to be used as a recreational adult game as well as being used in youth football leagues 
during the winter periods of their seasons. 

 
3. Gymnastics – There are 2 main gymnastics clubs in the East Devon area: Honiton Gymnastics Club and Axminster Gymnastics Club. There are 

also links with Ivybridge Gym Academy in Plymouth in that one of the Head Coaches at Honiton is also the Head of PE at Ivybridge Community 
College. The British Gymnastics National Strategy and Facilities Strategy both highlight 10% growth year on year in participation levels and long 
waiting lists. A key priority therefore is to ‘identify and then remove bottleneck so that demand can be met, starting with addressing coaches and 
space limitations.’ British Gymnastics supports clubs moving into dedicated facilities in order to increase their membership and diversify their range 
of activities which includes working with the community to provide physical activity opportunities. British Gymnastics target was to have over half 
of clubs in their own facilities by 2021. Both Honiton and Axminster Gymnastics Clubs rent their own facilities. Honiton Gymnastics Club had 
previously used Honiton Leisure Centre back in 2007 but the club became too large and needed its own facilities. Axminster Gymnastics Club used 
Axminster Leisure Centre in 2017 but again became too large and moved out in 2018. 

 
4. Handball – there is not a huge amount of Handball activity in East Devon in terms of club set up. However, there is a clear lack of decent size 

sports halls, specifically 5 badminton court size or more. This is the size we need to run Handball. 
 

5. Netball – In East Devon there are 2 leagues: Honiton Netball League who play at Honiton Sports Centre (2 outdoor courts) and Colyton Le isure 
Centre (1 indoor court) on Monday evenings and has 21 teams, which is a reduction of 3 teams from 2019/20. Exmouth Netball League plays at 
Bicton College (1 indoor court) on Thursday evenings and currently has 6 teams. This is a reduction of 4 teams since 2019/20. The priority is to 
grow these leagues back to pre-pandemic levels and more. The are 20 registered clubs in East Devon. Most of these are small or medium adult 
clubs of less than 20 members who don’t train regularly. There are 4 Extra Large clubs: (1) Axe Vale Netball Club train at Axminster Leisure Centre. 
They have 90 members and run sessions and teams for players from aged 9 upwards. They play in local and regional competition. They also run 
adult pay and play sessions and were running Walking Netball sessions but the venue Colyton Sports Centre is no longer available when they 
require. (2) Honiton Netball Club train at Honiton Sports Centre and have 111 members from age 7 upwards. They play in local and regional 
competition. (3) Sidmouth Netball Club train at St John’s International School in Sidmouth. They have 92 members aged 9 upwards and play in 
local competition. (4) Exmouth Netball Club train at Exmouth Tennis Centre and have 73 members aged 9 upwards and play in local competition. 
All these clubs deliver Bee Netball to under 11’s and have seen a slight reduction in membership post pandemic.  

 
Access to suitable facilities is an issue for all clubs. This is particularly the case in Sidmouth where there are no outdoor courts. Although both Axe 
Vale and Honiton are competing in Regional U16 competition this season, the courts used at Honiton and Colyton Leisure Centres do not actually 
meet the runoff requirements. One of the biggest barriers in East Devon to programme delivery is the sports centres being linked to the schools so 
that the community cannot use them until after 5pm. Then they are heavily over-subscribed by regular bookings. With an ageing population in East 
Devon, Walking Netball could be really successful in most of the main towns but there are no suitable daytime facilities available. Only Honiton 
Leisure Centre offers suitable floodlit outdoor courts. Many of the indoor courts at LED sites need updating and need good run offs. 

6. Tennis – The focus nationally is on parks tennis, improving pay and play community access and improving infrastructure/facilities. Pre-Covid, the 
LTA was looking to invest in facilities but not in East Devon due to the existing Exmouth Tennis Centre. The LTA has done a lot with Exmouth 

page 70



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

19 

Tennis Centre, focussing on increasing numbers in their Youth Tennis Programme. They also funded a coach to go into schools to provide tennis 
coaching and an exit route into Exmouth Tennis Club. They are pleased with the performance of Exmouth Tennis Centre.  
 
There is also Clubspark installed at Phear Park and Seafield. They would like this extending to Coburg in future.  
 
There is no requirement for new indoor tennis provision. There are 12 tennis clubs in East Devon, mainly small clubs. Exmouth Tennis Club and 
Budleigh Salterton Tennis Club are two of the larger clubs. Budleigh would like to have their existing court floodlit. Paddle Tennis is being promoted 
by the LTA as a steppingstone into mainstream tennis. There are currently no paddle tennis courts in Devon. 

 
7. Volleyball – Volleyball is currently running at capacity in the Exeter area with all club sessions and adult/junior sessions fully booked with waiting 

lists in some cases. The sport is currently restricted due to the lack of available venues and suitable hours. In recent times we have lost access to 
the following venues: Clifton Hill, Wonford, West Exe, Priory, Exeter College, Exeter University, St Peters, St Luke’s and Broadclyst. These have 
all been venues previously used by the sport but are now unable to support the sports requirements. With respect to school venues, these are 
unavailable to us due to access (term time limits, exam use, match availability), cost and a booking system that does not appear to work for us. 
Changes in the sports hall facilities has also been an issue for us, this includes the down grading of volleyball equipment from category 1B to 1C 
(cheaper but its nonadjustable) hence these venues can no longer be used for the sport of volleyball. In East Devon, the sport of volleyball is 
currently played at Exmouth and Ottery St Mary, clubs have also existed at Cullompton and Honiton, but these have since folded. All players, 
adults and juniors in East Devon currently travel to Exeter, where the sport is the main customer of the Exeter Riverside LC with three clubs using 
this facility. 
 
The City of Exeter may not be in the EDDC area, but following the recent East of Exeter development, large parts of Greater Exeter are now located 
in the EDDC area of Cranbrook, Rockbear, Whimple etc with 54,000 home being built over a 20-year period. This area currently has no leisure 
centre and hence no double or four court facility that can supports the sport of volleyball. 
 
Our wish list would be to have a four-court volleyball venue in the East of Exeter area, which would give easy access to the community from Exeter, 
the greater Exeter area, Exmouth, Sidmouth, Honiton, Cullompton etc. This could be a single hall venue (as in the LeAF centre, Bournemouth) or 
the more practical solution would be two connected double court venues (as in the Kitto Centre or Life Centre in Plymouth). 
 
With regards to Beach Volleyball, this is provided by Exmouth Beach Volleyball Club who used to operate beach courts in Exmouth until 2014. 
Many sea front areas around the country now have a managed sand area on their promenade. These are multi use for Beach Volleyball, Beach 
Tennis, Beach Netball, etc with members of the public hiring the appropriate equipment from the nearby Café or beach kiosk. 

 
 

Sport England Facility Planning Model (FPM) 
  
1.26 Strategic Leisure was provided with Sport England’s Facilities Planning Model National Run Report (November 2021, based on Sport England 2020 

National Run data) for sports hall provision in East Devon. Please note that no national run data was made available in 2021 due to Covid restrictions. 

page 71



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

20 

The Sport England FPM report sets out an assessment of the current situation regarding sports hall supply, based on 15 sports halls located on 11 
sites and includes strategic size (3+ badminton courts) and 1 badminton court sports halls (activity halls) that are on the same site. The FPM report 
includes the Royal Marines MOD Commando Training Centre at Lympstone but excludes halls that are deemed to be for private use, too small, closed 
or there is lack of information, particularly relating to hours of use. 

 
1.27 The population of East Devon in 2020 is 148,493 and this population generates a sports hall demand of 11,101 visits in the weekly peak period. The 

peak period is weekday evenings (up to 5 hours per day) and weekend days (up to 7 hours per weekend day). The demand in the weekly peak period 
including a ‘comfort’ factor equates to 38.10 badminton courts. This compares to a supply of 39.80 badminton courts which are available for community 
use in the weekly period. Therefore, in East Devon supply exceeds demand by 1.7 badminton courts. This supply/demand balance is low when 
compared to neighbouring authorities. However, the total supply of sports halls in the district is 61 courts, and so the total supply of East Devon’s 
badminton courts exceeds the district’s demand by 22.9 badminton courts, in the weekly period. 

 
1.28 The full and detailed FPM report is included at Appendix D. 
 

Sports Halls 
 
1.29 The key findings from the Sport England FPM report are as follows: 

 
1. There are 12 strategic size sports halls (3+ badminton courts) and 3 activity halls (1 badminton court) located across 11 sites; 
 
2. The total supply of sports halls with badminton courts is 61 courts of which 39.8 are available in the weekly peak period for community 

use (known as the effective supply); 
 
3. The difference in supply and available supply of badminton courts is because the education sports hall sites have variable hours of 

access for community use; 
 
4. The model suggests that 91% of the demand generated by the population of East Devon is being met. This is slightly lower than national 

and regional figures and is also lower than 3 of the neighbouring authority areas; 
 
5. 12.5% of the satisfied demand is forecast as being exported out of East Devon in order to be met by sports hall provision in neighbouring 

authority areas; 
6. Approximately 88% of the satisfied demand is modelled as those that travel by car, which is higher than the national and regional figures. 

This means that only 12% are travelling by foot or using public transport, both of which are lower that national and regional levels. 
 
7. 13% of unmet demand is forecast to be as a result of lack of capacity at current facilities, which is comparatively high when compared 

to neighbouring authorities and the SW Regional figure; 
 

page 72



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

21 

8. The model forecasts that a number of the individual sites are likely to be busy, if not full during the weekly peak periods. This means 
that there may well be limited opportunities to increase levels of usage at a number of publicly accessible sites; 

 
9. East Devon has an ageing stock of publicly accessible sports halls. For example, key local authority facilities are now 41 years old 

(Honiton Leisure Centre), 40 years old (Sidmouth Leisure Centre) and 35 years old (Ottery Leisure Centre) respectively. 
 

 Supply and Demand Analysis 
 
1.30 Table 4 summarises the overall supply and demand analysis for sports halls and activity halls in East Devon. 

 
Table 4:  

 

Facility Type Assessment Findings 

Sports Halls 

Quantity There are currently 13 Sports Halls (3+ badminton courts and above) and 14 activity halls in East Devon. 
 
3 strategic sized sports halls offer pay and play community access and10 offer community use for sports clubs/organisations. 
 
The variable education policy and hours of community use at school/college venues is the reason why the total supply of sports halls is 61 badminton courts, 
and the supply available for community use is 39.8 badminton courts, in the weekly peak period. In effect, there is an aggregate total of 21.2 badminton courts, 
mainly across the education sites, which is unavailable for community use. This represents 35% of the total supply of badminton courts in East Devon. 
 
13% of unmet demand is as a result of lack of capacity at current facilities which is a comparatively high figure when compared to neighbouring authorities and 
the SW region. Used capacity in the peak periods in East Devon is modelled as being at 66%. However there are a number of individual sites that are forecast 
to be busy with Colyton, Honiton and Ottery Leisure Centres operating at 100% capacity, Axminster Leisure Centre 88% and Sidmouth 79% capacity. As a guide, 
80% for halls is viewed as the facility being busy. Overall used capacity is at 66% because other sports halls have got much smaller used capacity figures. 

 
Future Demand 
 
Housing development and population growth in East Devon will increase demand for sports hall provision. Using the SFC it is possible to estimate overall future 
demand for provision of sports halls, based on different population growth scenarios. 
 

Population 2020 
(2018 ONS Subnational 
Population 
Projections) 

Local Plan 2013 – 
2031 
Housing still due to 
be completed 

Total number of 
additional new 
dwellings for period 
2020 – 2040 
 

New Local Plan 2020 
– 2040 
Revised number of 
new dwellings 
 

Additional dwellings 
x 2.3 (national 
average population 
per dwelling) 

Total 
Population by 
2040 

148,493 11,499 6,861 18,360 42,228 190,721 

 
Local Plan 2020 – 2040 totals 6,861 new dwellings within East Devon administrative boundaries and a population growth of 15,780 

page 73



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

22 

Facility Type Assessment Findings 

Sports Halls 

 
(A) 
Current over-supply of 
Badminton Courts 2020 

(B) 
Unmet demand for 
Badminton Courts 2020 

(C) 
Future Demand for Additional 
Badminton Courts by 2040 

(D) 
Total over-supply /under-supply (-) of 
Badminton Courts by 2040 

1.7 3.4 11.09 -12.79 
 

N.B. Calculation uses 2020 population of 148,493 for East Devon as used by Sport England in their Facility Planning Model for Sports Halls. This 
ensures that future demand/supply calculations directly correlate to the baseline calculations for current supply/demand and population figure used 
for these. 
 
The calculation shows that there will be need for an additional 12.79 badminton courts by 2040. 
 
Unmet demand as a percentage of total demand is 8.9% (equivalent of 3.4 badminton courts) with 984 weekly visits in the peak period not being met across the 
East Devon district. 87% of this unmet demand is due to people living outside the catchment of a facility as opposed to there being a lack of capacity at existing 
sports halls. 74% of this is forecast as being from people who do not have a car. However, approximately 13% is forecast to be as a result of lack of capacity at 
current facilities which is relatively high compared to neighbouring authorities and the SW regional figure. Colyton, Honiton and Ottery Leisure Centre sports 
halls are operating at 100% capacity peak time, Axe Valley Academy 88% capacity and Sidmouth Leisure Centre 79% capacity. There are much smaller used 
capacity figures across the other sports hall sites. 
 
On the basis that there are existing formal dual use agreements in place across those sites operating at peak time capacity, it is important that as a minimum, 
these community access arrangements are maintained. EDDC should seek to engage with those organisations currently operating with much smaller used 
capacity figures to encourage greater access to their sports halls during peak hours, securing this use where possible, through a Community Use Agreement 
(CUA) e.g. Bicton College, Cranbrook Education Campus, Exmouth College. 
A large number of dwellings are still due to be built as part of the Cranbrook development and are included in the current Local Plan. To address future demand, 
EDDC should consider the provision of a 4 court sports hall as part of the planned development of a new Leisure Centre in Cranbrook.  
 
Any new sports halls developed on education sites should provide community access via a planning condition, allowing for access to both individuals and 
clubs/groups. 

 
NGBs and local sports clubs’ highlight: 

 

• Badminton England – need for more peak time hours available for badminton use. There are a below average number of sites and courts and very low 
participation rates despite 9 clubs i.e. lack of pay and play badminton. 

• Football – sports halls to have Futsal markings and goals to enable the game to grow. 

• Gymnastics – support clubs moving into dedicated facilities to increase membership and diversify range of activities available including working with the 
community to increase physical activity opportunities. 

• Handball - there is not a huge amount of Handball activity in East Devon in terms of club set up. However, there is a clear lack of decent size sports halls, 

specifically 5 badminton court size or more. This is the size we need to run Handball. 

• Netball – Need to improve access to suitable facilities for all clubs. Many of the facilities need updating and do not meet the current runoff requirements 
(e.g. Honiton and Colyton Leisure Centres). Dual use facilities limits opportunities for daytime walking netball and evening peak time use due to 
capacity/demand issues. 

page 74



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

23 

Facility Type Assessment Findings 

Sports Halls 

• Tennis – would like to see Clubspark extended to include Coburg outdoor courts. 

• Volleyball – need for improved access for clubs, particularly at dual use venues. Would like to have a four-court volleyball venue in the East of Exeter area, 
which would give easy access to the community from Exeter, the greater Exeter area, Exmouth, Sidmouth, Honiton, Cullompton etc. This could be a single 
hall venue or the more practical solution would be two connected double court venues. With regards to beach volleyball, they would ideally like the provision 
of a new managed sand area on the sea front in East Devon for use by beach volleyball, beach tennis, beach netball. The public would hire equipment from 
a neighbouring café/beach hut. 

 
Quality There are a high proportion of dual use sports halls in East Devon. The average age of the sports halls is 36 years. The quality of current provision is varied with 

a number of Council owned sports halls in need of refurbishment/investment over the next 5 years. 
 

Accessibility Unmet demand is 8.9% (3.4 badminton courts) and is in line with regional and national figures. 87% of this unmet demand is caused by people living outside the 
catchment area of a facility with 74% of this forecast as being from people who do not have access to a car. However, approximately 13% of unmet demand is 
as a result of a lack of capacity at current facilities which is comparatively high when compared to neighbouring authorities and the SW regional figure. 
 

Availability There is a high level of sports hall and activity hall provision in East Devon. However, the majority of sports halls are on education sites, providing for sports 
club/association use (usually outside school hours).  
Axe Valley Academy, Honiton Leisure Centre and Sidmouth Leisure Centre have strategic size sports halls offering pay and play access. 
 
Of the 13 strategic size sports halls, there are no sports halls available for weekday daytime use. There are a number of individual sites that are operating at 
100% used capacity during the weekly peak periods (weekday evenings and weekend days) i.e. Colyton, Honiton and Ottery Leisure Centres. 100% is where 
the facility is theoretically totally full all the time in peak. Axe Valley Academy (88%) and Sidmouth Leisure Centre (79%) are also very busy. This reflects the 
number of sports halls on education sites and the limited hours available for community use. Other sports hall sites included in the analysis have got much 
smaller used capacity figures and there may be an opportunity to re-distribute some usage and unmet demand to these facilities.  
 

 

  

page 75



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

24 

Swimming Pools 
 

Quantity 
 
1.31 The supply analysis identifies that East Devon has a total of 19 pools across 14 sites. Appendix A details the overall pool supply in East Devon. These 

pools are show in Table 5 and Map 3 below. Strategic sized pools are those of 160 sqm plus; there are 6 of these in East Devon and 3 of these are 
owned by the Council and operated by LED Community Leisure. 

 
1.32 The total supply of water space for community use in the weekly period is 1,517 sqm (note: for context, a 25m x 4 lane pool is between 210 and 250 

sqm of water, depending on individual lane width). East Devon has a supply of 14 sqm of water space per 1,000 population in 2020 which is higher 
than all but one of its neighbouring authority areas and higher than the South West and England average. It should be noted however that the analysis 
includes a large 8 lane pool at the Royal Marines Commando Training Centre at Lympstone and the level of community use at this site wi ll be limited 
or is restricted. 

 
1.33 There are a total of 7 community pay and play swimming pools; 4 of these are owned by the local authority and are not located on school sites; 2 are 

owned by a community organisation (Flamingo Pool) and located on a school site adjacent to Axminster Leisure Centre; and 1 is a small outdoor pool, 
located on a primary school site and owned/operated by the school. 

 
1.34 It should be noted that East Devon has an ageing stock of publicly accessible swimming pools. Key strategic sized local authority pools are now 40 

years old (Exmouth Leisure Centre), 36 years old (Honiton Leisure Centre) and 31 years of (Sidmouth Leisure Centre) which could potentially make 
them less attractive to users. Exmouth Leisure Centre is the only Council owned site offering a 6 lane 25m main pool and separate learner pool. Both 
Sidmouth Pool and Honiton Pools are 25m x 5 lanes. There are no 8 lane competition pools in the district other than at the Commando Training Centre 
in Lympstone which has limited access. 
  

page 76



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

25 

Map 3: Swimming Pools by Access Type in East Devon 

  

page 77



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

26 

Table 5: Swimming Pools in East Devon 
 

Site name Post Code Facility Type 

L
a

n
e

s
 

L
e

n
g

th
 

Access Type Ownership Type Management Type 

P
a
y
 a

n
d

 P
la

y
 

Y
e
a
r 

B
u

il
t 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
e
d

 

Commando Training Centre  
Lympstone 

EX8 5AR Main Pool 8  
Sports Club/Community 
Association 

MOD MOD  1973  

Cranford Sports Club  EX8 2EQ Main Pool 3  Registered Membership Commercial Commercial Management  1970 2010 

Devon Cliffs Holiday Park EX8 5BT Leisure Pool 0  Private Use Commercial Commercial Management  1990  

Devon Cliffs Holiday Park EX8 5BT Lido 0  Private Use Commercial Commercial Management  1990  

Devon Cliffs Holiday Park EX8 5BT Lido 0  Private Use Commercial Commercial Management  1990  

Devon Cliffs Holiday Park EX8 5BT Lido 0  Private Use Commercial Commercial Management  1990  

Exmouth Leisure Centre EX8 1EN Main Pool 6  Pay and Play Local Authority Trust ✓ 1982 2008 

page 78



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

27 

Site name Post Code Facility Type 

L
a

n
e

s
 

L
e

n
g

th
 

Access Type Ownership Type Management Type 

P
a
y
 a

n
d

 P
la

y
 

Y
e
a
r 

B
u

il
t 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
e
d

 

Exmouth Leisure Centre EX8 1EN 
Learner/Teachin
g 

0  Pay and Play Local Authority Trust ✓ 1982 2008 

Flamingo Pool EX13 1EN Main Pool 5  Pay and Play Community Organisation Community Organisation ✓ 1998  

Flamingo Pool EX13 1EN Leisure Pool 0  Pay and Play Community Organisation Community Organisation ✓ 1998  

Honiton Leisure Centre EX14 1QW Main Pool 5  Pay and Play Local Authority Trust ✓ 1986  

Ottery St Mary Primary 
School 

EX11 1HY Lido 0  Private Use Community School School/college/university  2013  

Royal Glen Hotel EX10 8RW 
Learner/Teachin
g 

0  Registered Membership Commercial Commercial Management  1982 2008 

Seaton Primary School EX12 2HF Lido 0  Pay and Play Community School School/college/university ✓ 1980 2012 

page 79



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

28 

Site name Post Code Facility Type 

L
a

n
e

s
 

L
e

n
g

th
 

Access Type Ownership Type Management Type 

P
a
y
 a

n
d

 P
la

y
 

Y
e
a
r 

B
u

il
t 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
e
d

 

Sidmouth Swimming Pool EX10 8XR Main Pool 5  Pay and Play Local Authority Trust ✓ 1991  

St John’s International Pool EX10 8RG 
Learner/Teachin
g 

4  
Sports Club/community 
 association 

Other Independent School School/college/university  2000 2016 

St Peters School EX8 5AU Lido 0  Private Use Other Independent School School/college/university  1949  

Upottery Primary School EX14 9QT Lido 0  Private Use Community School School/college/university  1959  

Woodbury Park Hotel and  
Golf Club 

EX5 1JJ Main Pool 1  Registered Membership Commercial Commercial Management  1995 2005 

 
  

page 80



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

29 

1.35 The analysis of the overall swimming pool supply in East Devon is as follows: 
 

Table 6: Analysis of Swimming Pool Supply in East Devon 

  No of Pools No of sites 

Total Number of Pools 19 14 

Community Use Swimming Pools (pay and play and sports clubs/community associations) 9 7 

Main Pools 7 7 

Learner Pools 3 3 

Diving Pools 0 0 

Leisure pools 1 1 

Education Sector (Sports Clubs and Associations) 1 1 

Private Sector 7 4 

Registered Membership Use 3 3 

 

Quality 
 
1.36 Detailed quality assessments have been undertaken on all EDDC pools in the district, plus a number of other key facilities where it has been possible 

to access the sites. These are summarised in Appendix B And Table 7. 
 

Table 7: Summary of Qualitative Assessments – Swimming Pools 

 

Facility 
Overall 
Quantitative Score 
for Facility % 

Qualitative Score for Swimming Pool 
Need for Investment- 
Overall Facility 

Cranford Sports Club 61% 

 The swimming pool is in good condition. It was refurbished in 2015, covered and extended 
into a 3 lane 25m pool. There is only partial disabled access and the Club would like to 
refurbish the changing accommodation. Their swim lesson programme is provided by an 
external hirer (Swim Devon). The facilities are available to members only. They do have a 
few community lets. However the Club is looking to be more inclusive and open up the 
facilities to more external community groups, offering a charity hire rate where applicable. 
 

Outdoor pool covered in 
2015 (polytunnel) 
 
Tired facility needing 
investment in changing 
rooms 

Exmouth Leisure Centre 71% 
Main Pool (25m x 6 lanes) and learner pool (12m x 7m) in good condition. Both pools 
refurbished in 2008. Used by Exmouth Swimming and Lifesaving Club, Exeter City Swimming 
Club, East Devon Disabled Group, Exmouth divers and Exeter Triathlon club.  

Some 

page 81



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

30 

Facility 
Overall 
Quantitative Score 
for Facility % 

Qualitative Score for Swimming Pool 
Need for Investment- 
Overall Facility 

There is a good school swimming programme (approx. 11 schools) and Learn to Swim 
programme. Located relatively close to Cranford Sports Club so regarded as main competitor. 
 
The pool village changing was redeveloped in 2016 – the scheme cost £800k with £300k 
provided by National Lottery funding. 
 
This is the best performing leisure centre in the Council’s portfolio. Although improvements 
have been made to the site, the building is beginning to look tired and maintenance costs are 
increasing. 
 

Flamingo Pool 71% 

5 lane x 20m main pool and leisure/hydro pool, both in good condition. Built in 1998. Full 
disability access to pools (hoist) and changing. Changing rooms in good condition and 
refurbished in 2015. The main pool has a balanced programme of general swimming, lane 
swimming, swim lessons, school hire and swim club hire. 
 
The hydro pool is used for GP Referral sessions, baby swimming, general swimming and 
lessons. 
 

Some 

Honiton Leisure Centre 71% 

5 lane 25m pool located in stand-alone building on opposite side of the main leisure centre 
car park. The pool itself is in good condition although reaching the end of its useful life (built 
1986). The pool changing rooms are in poor condition and are in the process of being 
refurbished. The pool has not been used by schools due to the state of the changing rooms. 
There is partial disabled access. There is a disabled hoist into the main pool. There is no 
formal spectator seating but benches/chairs around perimeter of pool. 
 
The swimming pool does not form part of the dual use arrangement with Honiton Community 
College. LED has full operational hours at the pool. Balanced swim programme available with 
majority of activities pre-booked e.g. lane swimming. 
 

Some. Pool changing 
refurbished in April  

Seaton Primary School 30% 

This school has a covered outdoor pool used by the school during summer term time. 
Available for public pay and play use during the summer holidays. Not used during the winter 
months because there is too much condensation. 
 
The pool is located some distance from the main building but does not require walking through 
the main building to access. It has its own changing rooms adjacent to the pool. Heat 
exchange unit, dehumidifier and lighting required. Solar thermal panels adjacent to the pool 
installed but not connected to the pool plant. 
 

Urgent. High levels of 
condensation2022. 

Sidmouth Swimming 
Pool 

68% 

Facilities include a stand-alone 25m x 5 lane main pool and changing rooms located in 
Sidmouth Town Centre. The facility was built in 1991 and is in relatively good condition. There 
is full disabled access. However, the changing rooms/showers are in need of refurbishment. 

Small changing rooms not 
able to cope with some 
sessions. 
 

page 82



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

31 

Facility 
Overall 
Quantitative Score 
for Facility % 

Qualitative Score for Swimming Pool 
Need for Investment- 
Overall Facility 

There is a small female change yet 63% of the pool users are female. LED would like to swop 
the male change with the female change. There are a lack of family change rooms. 
 
The facility is limited by not having a learner pool which would allow more swim lessons. At 
present, an area of the main pool is cordoned off for swim lessons. There are limited 
opportunities to extend the site other than upwards due to neighbouring buildings and 
valuable car parking space. LED would like to move the gym from Sidmouth LC to above the 
ground floor changing accommodation to improve daytime access to the gym and improve 
overall offer. 
 
The facility is used by the local community and clubs such as Sid Vale Sharks Swimming 
Club, Sidmouth Surf Lifesaving Club and local schools. The facility also benefits from 
seasonal tourist use. 
 
Car parking adjacent to the pool is chargeable and is at a premium in the summer months. 
However, a seasonal car park pass can be purchased. People working in the town tend to 
take up parking spaces early morning. 
 

Refurbishment of 
changing rooms required 

St Johns International 
School 

68% 

The school has a covered outdoor heated 4 lane 20m pool. The pool is located some distance 
from the main building and has its own changing rooms adjacent to the pool. There is separate 
access to the pool without having to walk through the main building. 
 
The original pool was built in 2000 and refurbished in 2016 along with the changing rooms. 
 
The swimming pool is available for hire by local sports clubs/associations. 
 

Minimal 

 
1.37 EDDC’s has an ageing stock of publicly accessible swimming pools. Key local authority facilities are now 40 years old (Exmouth Leisure Centre), 36 

years old (Honiton Leisure Centre) and 31 years old (Sidmouth Swimming Pool). Despite their age the Swimming pools in East Devon are of reasonable 
quality. A number of refurbishments have been carried out across the sites within the last 15 – 20 years. However, when looking specifically at strategic 
size pools with community pay and play access, these facilities are ageing and in need of investment. Both Sidmouth and Honiton pools have never 
been refurbished, and although Exmouth Leisure Centre pool was refurbished in 2008, this investment is now 14 years old and further work will be 
required in the next 5 years. Any refurbishment of Sidmouth Pool should incorporate the pool changing facilities. 

 

Accessibility 
 

1.38 The drive time catchment area is 20 minutes travel time or 30 minutes in more rural areas. It is also important to ensure that pools are as accessible 
as possible to those walking or using public transport. As a guide, Sport England recommend that catchment areas should be 10-minute walk time, 
and/or a 20-minute drivetime (private car). Clearly it is not possible to provide a swimming pool within 10 minutes’ walk time of all residents. 

page 83



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

32 

 
1.39 15.1% of East Devon’s population do not have access to a car which is lower than national and regional figures. This does suggest that the demand 

generated within the authority area could be generally mobile. 86% of satisfied demand in East Devon are by those who travel by car; this is not 
dissimilar to other neighbouring authorities with only 14% travelling by foot or public transport, both of which are lower than national and regional levels. 
 

1.40 Map 4 shows the location of swimming pool sites in East Devon with pay and play community access and a 20 minute and 30 minute drive catchment. 
Map 4 shows that there is an extensive land area within a 10 – 20 minute drive of a pay and play community access pool with only a relatively small 
area to the northwest of the district excluded. The map also shows that all areas of the district are within a 20 – 30 minute drive of a pay and play 
community access pool, when pools in neighbouring local authorities are taken into consideration. Map 5 shows local authority owned swimming pools 
with pay and play community access catchment area of up to 30 minutes. 
 

1.41 Accessibility to the existing pay and play access pools site is challenging for those who live outside of the principal towns in East Devon i.e. those living 
in the more rural areas of the district. There are therefore time, cost and travel barriers for some people living in the district in terms of access to 
swimming. Given swimming is a life skill, learning to swim is important. 

  

page 84



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

33 

Map 4: Swimming pools with community pay and play catchment areas (20 min and 30 min drive) 

  

page 85



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

34 

Map 5: Local Authority owned swimming pools with community pay and play catchment area (20 min and 30 min drive) 
 

 

page 86



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

35 

Availability 
 
1.42 In 2020, the East Devon resident population is estimated to generate a demand for a minimum of 1,432 sqm of water space. This compares to a current 

available supply of 1,517 sqm of water space, giving a surplus of 85 sqm of water space. Three of the neighbouring local authorities are forecast to 
have a negative supply/demand balance. 

 
1.43 Approximately 89.9% of total demand for swimming from East Devon residents is satisfied/met. This is the level of total demand for swimming located 

inside the catchment area of a swimming pool (pools located both inside and outside East Devon boundaries). 82% of the satisfied demand is being 
retained within East Devon and met by swimming pools within the local authority area. This means that 18% is forecast as being exported out of East 
Devon to be met by pool provision in neighbouring local authority areas. 

 
1.44 The community pay and play pools provided by EDDC can accommodate a full range of swimming activities including learn to swim, public recreational 

swimming, lane swimming, fitness swimming and swimming development through clubs. Only Exmouth Leisure Centre has both a main pool and 
teaching pool, which provides greater opportunities for developing the learn to swim programme, freeing up the main pool for other activities. However, 
the used capacity in the peak periods within East Devon is modelled at being at approximately 55% which is in line with the regional figure but lower 
than the national figure and levels found in all but one of the neighbouring authorities. This data suggests that there is potentially the opportunity for 
increased levels of usage of existing swimming pools in East Devon, particularly Exmouth, Honiton and Sidmouth Pools. 

 

National Governing Bodies 
 
1.45 Consultation was undertaken with Swim England, to identify their views on the need for swimming pool provision in East Devon. The views of Swim 

England are provided in Appendix C and below. 
 

• A key priority is to plan for the future stock of aquatic facilities within the district and maintain sufficient water provision for the area. 
 

• Other priorities include maintaining and growing members across each discipline, supporting the transition from Learn to Swim 
programmes into club development and supporting clubs to become more financially sustainable. 
 

• There are 13 key clubs in the area including Exmouth Swimming and Lifesaving Society (281 members) Honiton Swimming Club (50 
members) and Exeter based clubs who use East Devon facilities. There are a number of clubs that also offer master’s Swimming and 
Waterpolo. 
 

  

page 87



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

36 

Sports England Facility Planning Model (FPM) 
 
1.46 Strategic Leisure was provided with Sport England’s Facility Planning Model National Run Report (November 2021, based on the 2020 National Run 

data) for swimming pool provision in East Devon. The FPM analysis is based on 9 individual pool facilities on 7 sites across East Devon in 2020. The 
analysis excludes lidos, private facilities, closed facilities and facilities classed as too small. 
 

1.47 The analysis provides an evidence base for the supply, demand, and access to swimming pools in East Devon in 2020. It includes the findings for the 
neighbouring districts to East Devon. This is because the assessment is catchment area based and the catchment areas extend across local authority 
boundaries. A copy of the FPM for swimming pools in East Devon can be found at Appendix E. 

 
1.48 The total supply of water space available for community use in the weekly period is 1,517 sqm of water. (Note: for context, a 25m x 4 lane pool is 

between 210 and 250 sqm of water, depending on individual lane width). Based on a measure of water space per 1,000 population, the East Devon 
supply is 14 sqm of water space per 1,000 population in 2020. This is higher than Exeter, Mid Devon, South Somerset and Teignbridge but in line with 
both national and regional figures. The highest supply is in West Dorset with 23 sqm of water per 1,000 population. 

 
1.49 The total population of East Devon in 2020 is 148,493 persons. The population generates a total demand for swimming of 8,626 visits in the weekly 

peak period of weekday lunchtimes (1 hour), weekday evenings (up to 5 hours per day) and weekends (up to 7 hours per weekend day). This equates 
to a total demand for 1,432 sqm of water space. (Again, for context, a 25m x 4 lane pool is between 210 – 250 sqm of water, depending on individual 
lane width). There is therefore a balance of supply exceeding demand by 85 sqm of water in 2020. Mid Devon, South Somerset and Teignbridge are 
all forecast to have a negative supply/demand balance. 

 
1.50 Satisfied demand represents the proportion of total demand that is met by the capacity at the swimming pools from residents who live within the car, 

walking or public transport catchment area of a swimming pool. In 2020, some 89.9% of the total demand for swimming from East Devon residents was 
satisfied/met. This equates to 7,758 visits per week. This is in line with national (91.6%) and regional figures (90.3%) and is also similar to most of the 
neighbouring authority areas. 

 
1.51 Some 82% of the total 89.4% of East Devon demand for swimming which is satisfied/met, is retained within the local authority. This means that 18% is 

forecast as being exported out of East Devon in order to be met by pool provision within neighbouring authority areas. 85.8% of satisfied demand is 
forecast as those that travel by car with only 14.2% travelling by foot or by public transport, both of which are below national and regional levels. 

 
1.52 The 2020 finding is that 18% of the East Devon satisfied demand for swimming is met outside the authority. This is based on residents travelling to use 

the nearest pool to where they live, and is a pool located outside the authority. East Devon’s retained demand is 6,362 visits per week and exported 
demand is 1,396 visits per week. 

 
 
1.53 Unmet demand equates to 10.1% of total demand. This is the equivalent of 869 visits per week or 144 sqm of water space. Of this percentage, 99.1% 

is caused by people living outside the catchment of a pool as opposed to there being a lack of capacity at existing pools, and 63% of this is forecast as 

page 88



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

37 

being from people that do not have access to cars. Overall, there is not a sufficient cluster of unmet demand in any one location to consider increasing 
swimming pool provision, to improve accessibility to residents. 
 

1.54 Used capacity measures the usage and throughput at swimming pools and estimates how well used/full facilities are. Anything over 70% of capacity 
used in the weekly period is busy and the pool is operating at an uncomfortable level above that percentage. Used capacity in the peak periods within 
East Devon is forecast as being 55.6%.  
 

1.55 This is in line with the regional figure (55.4%) but lower than the national figure (63.2%) and all but one of the neighbouring authorities included in the 
analysis. This data suggests that there is the opportunity for greater levels of usage at existing swimming pool facilities in East Devon. It should be 
noted that relatively low used capacity figures have been identified at Exmouth Leisure Centre (57%), Honiton Leisure Centre (65%) and Sidmouth 
Leisure Centre (48%) and these findings should be reviewed with the operator and compare actual usage levels at the centre at peak times to determine 
whether they are consistent with the findings. 
 

1.56 Local share is the available capacity that can be reached by the residents of an area divided by the demand for that capacity  in the area. A value of 1 
means that available capacity matches demand. In East Devon the local demand is 1.1 which suggests that the supplied capacity of water space is 
greater than demand. 
 

1.57 Table 8 summarises the overall supply and demand analysis for swimming pools in East Devon. 
 

  

page 89



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

38 

Table 8: Summary Analysis – Swimming Pool Supply and Demand 
 

Facility Type Assessment Findings 

Swimming Pools 

Quantity There are 19 swimming pools in East Devon across 14 sites. Strategic sized pools are those of 160 sqm plus; there are 6 of these in East Devon and 3 of these are 
owned by the Council and operated by LED Community Leisure. There are a total of 7 community pay and play swimming pools; 4 of these are owned by the local 
authority and are not located on school sites; 2 are owned by a community organisation (Flamingo Pool) and located on a school site adjacent to Axminster Leisure 
Centre; and 1 is a small outdoor pool, located on a primary school site and owned/operated by the school. 
 
The FPM analysis shows that in East Devon, there is an over-supply of 85 sqm of water space in 2020. 
 
Used capacity in swimming pools during the peak periods within East Devon is forecast as being 55.6%. The Sport England comfort level is 70%. The used capacity 
calculation includes the Commando Training Centre at Lympstone where used capacity is only 21% and reflects the restricted access arrangements on site. It should 
be noted that relatively low used capacity figures have been identified at Exmouth Leisure Centre (57%), Honiton Leisure Centre (65%) and Sidmouth Leisure Centre 
(48%) and these findings should be reviewed with the operator and compare actual usage levels at the centre at peak times to determine whether they are consistent 
with the findings. 
 
In East Devon the local demand is 1.1 which suggests that the supplied capacity of water space is greater than demand. 
 
The FPM shows that there are insufficient clusters of unmet demand in any one location of the district to consider increasing swimming pool provision to improve 
accessibility to residents. 

 
Future Demand 
 
The FPM analysis shows that there is an over-supply of 85 sqm of water space in 2020. 
 
The following scenario has been developed to identify demand from new housing developments: 
 

Population 2020 
(2018 ONS 
Subnational 
Population 
Projections) 

Local Plan 2013 – 2031 
Housing still due to be 
completed 

Total number of 
additional new 
dwellings for period 
2020 – 2040 
 

New Local Plan 2020 
– 2040 
Revised number of 
new dwellings 
 

Additional 
dwellings x 2.3 
(national 
average 
population per 
dwelling) 

Total 
Population by 
2040 

148,493 11,499 6,861 18,360 42,228 190,721 

  
Housing development and population growth in East Devon will increase demand for swimming pool provision. As an indication (using the Sports Facility Calculator 
(SFC), it is possible to estimate overall future demand for provision of sports halls, swimming pools and indoor bowls rinks, based on this population increase.  

 
 
 
 

Scenario (A) (B) (C) (D) 

page 90



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

39 

Facility Type Assessment Findings 

Swimming Pools 

Current over supply of 
water space 2020 

Unmet demand for 
Water Space 2020 

Future Demand for 
additional water space by 
2040 (SFC) Population 
Growth 

Total Over (+)/Under-
supply (-) of water space 
by 2040 

Population Increase of 
42,228 

85 sq. m 144 sq. m 430.4 sq. m -489.4 sq. m 

 
N.B. Calculation uses 2020 population of 148,493 for East Devon as used by Sport England in their Facility Planning Model for Swimming Pools. This 
ensures that future demand/supply calculations directly correlate to the baseline calculations for current supply/demand and population figure used for 
these. 
 
Total under (-)/over supply (+) of swimming pools by 2040 column D is calculated by adding together column (B) and (C) and subtracting from column (A). The 
Calculations are rudimentary because they do not account for the proportion of future demand that can be met from swimming pools within and outside the borough, 
which is why local FPM modelling is recommended to reach a robust conclusion. 
 
Note that a 25m x 4 lane pool is between 210 and 250 sq. m of water. 

 
Quality East Devon has an ageing stock of publicly accessible swimming pools. Key local authority facility are now 40 years old (Exmouth Leisure Centre), 36 years old (Honiton 

Leisure Centre) and 31 years old (Sidmouth Swimming Pool). The quality of the facilities could be having a greater influence on levels of usage over and above the 
provision/availability of a balanced programme of swim activities. 
 
Despite their age, the swimming pools in East Devon are of reasonable quality. A number of refurbishments have been carried out across the sites within the last 15 – 
20 years. However, when looking specifically at strategic size pools with community pay and play access, these facilities are ageing and in need of investment. Both 
Sidmouth and Honiton pools have never been refurbished, and although Exmouth Leisure Centre pool was refurbished in 2008, this investment is now 14 years old 
and further work will be required in the next 5 years. Any refurbishment of Sidmouth Pool should incorporate the changing room facilities.  

 

Accessibility 15.1% of East Devon’s population do not have access to a car which is lower than national and regional figures. This does suggest that the demand generated within 
the authority area could be generally mobile. 86% of satisfied demand in East Devon are by those who travel by car; this is not dissimilar to other neighbouring authorities 
with only 14% travelling by foot or public transport, both of which are lower than national and regional levels. 
 
All areas of the district are within a 20 – 30 minute drive of a pay and play community access pool, when pools in neighbouring local authorities are also taken into 
consideration. 
 

Availability There are a total of 7 community pay and play swimming pools; 4 of these are owned by the local authority and can accommodate a full range of swimming activities 
including learn to swim, public recreational swimming, lane swimming, fitness swimming and swimming development through clubs. Only Exmouth Leisure Centre has 
both a main pool and teaching pool, which provides greater opportunities for developing the learn to swim programme, freeing up the main pool for other activities. 
However, the used capacity in the peak periods within East Devon is modelled at being at approximately 55% which is in line with the regional figure but lower than the 
national figure and levels found in all but one of the neighbouring authorities. This data suggests that there is potentially the opportunity for increased levels of usage 
of existing swimming pools in East Devon, particularly Exmouth, Honiton and Sidmouth Pools. 

Health and Fitness Facilities 
 

page 91



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

40 

Quantity 
 
1.58 A station is a piece of static fitness equipment. Health and fitness centres, with over 20 stations are generally able to make a more attractive offer to 

both members and pay and play users. 
 
1.59 The 2020 state of the UK Fitness Industry report reveals that the membership penetration rate is 22.6% so one in every 20 people over the age of 15 

in the UK is a member of a gym. The membership penetration rate in East Devon has been assumed as lower than this (15.6%) given that the population 
is ageing and therefore propensity to use fitness suites is lower than for a younger population. 

 
1.60 The supply analysis (Appendix A) identifies that overall, there are 17 health and fitness suites (17 sites) and 23 studios (14 sites) in East Devon. In 

total, there are 448 fitness stations provided by fitness suites that are open for public use and have 20 or more fitness stations. All fitness suite facilities 
require some form of payment/membership payment before use, and an induction is required. In general studios are on the same sites as fitness suites, 
but some sites have more than one studio. 

 
1.61 Appendix H presents a supply and demand analysis of fitness suites in East Devon and shows a current under supply of 359 fitness stations based on 

2020 population estimates. Appendix H also presents a supply and demand analysis of fitness suites in East Devon based on the projected population 
in 2040 (end year for East Devon Local Plan). This shows an under supply of 566 fitness stations. 

 
1.62 All fitness suite facilities in the district are shown in Table 9 and illustrated in Map 6. 
 

  

page 92



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

41 

Map 6: Health and Fitness Suites in East Devon 

  

page 93



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

42 

Table 9: Fitness Facilities (Fitness Suites) in East Devon 
 

Site Name Post Code Facility Type 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

S
ta

ti
o

n
s

 

Access Type 
Ownership 
Type 

Management Type 

P
a
y
 a

n
d

 P
la

y
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 
A

c
c

e
s

s
 

fa
c

il
it

ie
s
 

Y
e
a
r 

B
u

il
t 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e

fu
rb

is
h

e
d

 

Axe Valley Academy EX13 5EA Health and Fitness Suite 26 Pay and Play Academies Trust ✓ 1988 2007 

B! Health and fitness 
(Honiton) 

EX14 1ST Health and Fitness Suite 50 
Registered 
Membership 

Sports Club Sports Club  2018  

Bicton College EX9 7BY Health and Fitness Suite 11 
Registered 
Membership 

Further 
Education 

School/college/ 
university 

 2007 2011 

Bodyfirst Women’s Fitness EX8 2NX Health and Fitness Suite 16 
Registered 
Membership 

Commercial 
Commercial 
Management 

 2016  

Bodywise EX8 1RS Health and Fitness Suite 25 
Registered 
Membership 

Commercial 
Commercial 
Management 

 2003 2014 

Cranford Sports Club EX8 2EQ Health and Fitness Suite 65 
Registered 
Membership 

Commercial 
Commercial 
Management 

 2001 2015 

Exmouth Community 
College 

EX8 3AF Health and Fitness Suite 30 Private Academies 
School/college/ 
University 

 2006 2021 

Exmouth Leisure Centre EX8 1EN Health and fitness Suite 50 Pay and Play Local Authority Trust ✓ 2006 2016 

Exmouth Tennis and 
Fitness Centre 

EX8 3AE Health and Fitness Suite 23 Pay and Play Local Authority Trust ✓ 2008  

Honiton Community College EX14 1QT Health and Fitness Suite 20 
Sports 
Club/Community 
Association 

Academies 
School/college/ 
university 

 2017  

page 94



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

43 

Site Name Post Code Facility Type 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

S
ta

ti
o

n
s

 

Access Type 
Ownership 
Type 

Management Type 

P
a
y
 a

n
d

 P
la

y
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 
A

c
c

e
s

s
 

fa
c

il
it

ie
s

 

Y
e
a
r 

B
u

il
t 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e

fu
rb

is
h

e
d

 

Honiton Leisure Centre EX14 1QW Health and Fitness Suite 45 Pay and Play Local Authority Trust ✓ 1997 2017 

Oliver Joseph Fitness EX13 5AT Health and Fitness Suite 41 
Registered 
Membership 

Commercial 
Commercial 
Management 

 2021  

Oliver Joseph Fitness EX5 2QB Health and Fitness Suite 38 
Registered 
Membership 

Commercial 
Commercial 
Management 

 2018  

Oliver Joseph Fitness EX10 8LA Health and Fitness Suite 35 
Registered 
Membership 

Commercial 
Commercial 
Management 

 2019  

Ottery Leisure Centre EX11 1QZ Health and Fitness Suite 18 Pay and Play Local Authority Trust ✓ 1986 2018 

Sidmouth Leisure Centre EX10 9LH Health and Fitness Suite 19 Pay and Play Local Authority Trust ✓ 1989 2010 

Woodbury Park Hotel and 
Golf Club 

EX5 1JJ Health and Fitness Suite 30 
Registered 
Membership 

Commercial 
Commercial 
Management 

 1995 2017 

 
  

page 95



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

44 

Table 10: Fitness Facilities (Studios) in East Devon 
 

Site Name 
Post  
Code 

Facility Type 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

S
tu

d
io

s
 

Access Type Ownership Type Management Type 

P
a
y
 a

n
d

 P
la

y
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 
A

c
c

e
s

s
 

fa
c

il
it

ie
s
 

Y
e
a
r 

B
u

il
t 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e

fu
rb

is
h

e
d

 

B! Health and fitness 
(Honiton) 

EX14 1ST Studio 2 Registered Membership Sports Club Sports Club  2018  

Clyst Vale Community 
College 

EX5 3AJ Studio 1 
Sports Club/Community 
Association 

Community School School/college/ university ✓ 2004  

Colyton Leisure Centre EX24 6GB Studio 1 Pay and Play Foundation School Trust ✓ 2003  

Cranbrook Education 
Campus 

EX5 7EE Studio 1 Registered Membership Academies School/college/ University ✓ 2016  

Cranford Sports Club EX8 2EQ Studio 2 Registered Membership Commercial Commercial Management  2001 2015 

Exmouth Community 
College 

EX8 3AF Studio 1 Private Academies School/college/ University  2006 2021 

Exmouth Leisure Centre EX8 1EN Studio 5 Pay and Play Local Authority Trust ✓ 2006 2016 

Honiton Community 
College 

EX14 1QT Studio 1 
Sports Club/Community 
Association 

Academies School/college/ university  2017  

Honiton Leisure Centre EX14 1QW Studio 1 Pay and Play Local Authority Trust ✓ 1997 2017 

Oliver Joseph Fitness EX13 5AT Studio 1 Registered Membership Commercial Commercial Management  2021  

Oliver Joseph Fitness EX5 2QB Studio 1 Registered Membership Commercial Commercial Management  2018  

page 96



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

45 

Site Name 
Post  
Code 

Facility Type 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

S
tu

d
io

s
 

Access Type Ownership Type Management Type 

P
a
y
 a

n
d

 P
la

y
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 
A

c
c

e
s

s
 

fa
c

il
it

ie
s

 

Y
e
a
r 

B
u

il
t 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e

fu
rb

is
h

e
d

 

Oliver Joseph Fitness EX10 8LA Studio 1 Registered Membership Commercial Commercial Management  2019  

Ottery Leisure Centre EX11 1QZ Studio 2 Pay and Play Local Authority Trust ✓ 1986 2018 

Woodbury Park Hotel and 
Golf Club 

EX5 1JJ Studio 3 Registered Membership Commercial Commercial Management  1995 2017 

 

  

page 97



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

46 

1.63 The quality of existing fitness suites and studios was assessed through site visits. It was not possible to access all sites, but overall the quality of studios 
is higher than that of fitness suites, as shown in Table 11.  

 
1.64 The quality of the EDDC facilities generally compares well with the quality of the existing private sector facilities, but there is a need for more fitness 

stations. 
 

1.65 The priority fitness suites for investment to improve quality are Sidmouth Leisure Centre and Ottery Leisure Centre. 
 

Table 11: Quality of Fitness Facilities (fitness suites and studios) where audits were possible 

 

Site Name Post Code 
Facility Type 

Health and Fitness Suite Studio 

Axe Valley Academy EX13 5EA Poor Good 

B! Health and Fitness (Honiton) EX14 1ST N/A Excellent 

Bicton College EX9 7BY Good Good 

Bodyfirst Women’s Fitness EX8 2NX N/A Good 

Bodywise EX8 1RS Good N/A 

Clystvale Community College EX5 3AJ N/A Poor 

Colyton Leisure Centre EX24 6GB N/A Excellent 

Cranbrook Education Campus EX5 7EE N/A Excellent 

Cranford Sports Club EX8 2EQ Good Average 

Exmouth Community College EX8 3AF N/A Good 

Exmouth Leisure Centre EX8 1EN Excellent Good 

Exmouth Tennis and Fitness Centre EX8 3AE Good N/A 

Honiton Community College EX14 1QT Average Excellent 

Honiton Leisure Centre EX14 1QW Good Excellent 

Oliver Joseph Fitness EX13 5AT No site audit No site audit 

Oliver Joseph Fitness EX5 2QB No site audit No site audit 

Oliver Joseph Fitness EX10 8LA No site audit No site audit 

page 98



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

47 

Site Name Post Code 
Facility Type 

Health and Fitness Suite Studio 

Ottery Leisure Centre EX11 1QZ Average 1 Excellent; 1 Good 

Sidmouth Leisure Centre EX10 9LH Average N/A 

Woodbury Park Hotel and Golf Club EX5 1JJ Good Excellent 

 
N.B There is a small fitness suite at Devon Cliffs Holiday Park; this has fewer than 20 stations and is of poor quality. It is only available to those using the holiday park and has not 
been included in the analysis for this reason. 

 

Accessibility 
 
1.66 Map 6a illustrates the catchment areas for the existing health and fitness facilities with pay and play access in the district. Map 6a illustrates that there 

are fewer facilities with community pay and play access in the north of the district. This is however where there are fewer centres of population. There 
are more facilities with pay and play access in the south, west and east of the district where the majority of the population is based. In and around the 
main market towns there is access to pay and play facilities within a 20 minute drive time, and for those in the most urban areas, access time reduces 
to between a 10-20 minute drive time. 
 

  

page 99



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

48 

Map 6a Catchment areas for health and fitness facilities with pay and play access 

 
       
 

page 100



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

49 

Availability 
 
1.67 Map 6b shows the existing health and fitness facilities in the district and their availability for community access. All EDDC sites are included as green 

dots as they offer community use – pay and play access and access for sports clubs/associations. 
 

Map 6b Health and Fitness facilities and availability for community access 

 

page 101



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

50 

1.68 The EDDC health and fitness facilities are in the main population centres; they offer pay and play and membership access. There is competition across 
the district in terms of fitness facilities, but outside of the main population centres facilities tend to be membership only.  

 
1.69 There are no major national fitness chains operating in the district, nor budget gyms. The smaller fitness facilities tend to  be niche offers, run by local 

operators. 
 

1.70 As set out in Appendix H the EDDC fitness facilities and particularly the fitness suites are comparable in price to others in the district, so there is 
competition for membership. Of the 448 fitness stations in the district, as identified in Appendix H, 430 are priced comparatively. 

 

1.71 This means the quality and location of the offer becomes even more important to attract and retain members and usage. It also highlights the opportunity 
for investment in the EDDC offer to increase supply through expansion of provision, both in existing sites, and onto new sites, given the level of current 
demand for fitness facilities and the under-supply against this. 

 
1.72 Table 12 summarises the overall supply and demand analysis for fitness facilities in East Devon. 
 

Table 12: Summary Analysis –Fitness Facilities Supply and Demand 
 

Facility Type Assessment Findings 

Health and Fitness Facilities 

Quantity The supply analysis (Appendix A) identifies that overall, there are 17 health and fitness suites (17 sites) and 23 studios (14 sites) in East Devon. In total, 
there are 448 fitness stations provided by fitness suites that are open for public use and have 20 or more fitness stations. All fitness suite facilities require 
some form of payment/membership payment before use, and an induction is required. In general studios are on the same sites as fitness suites, but some 
sites have more than one studio. 
 
Appendix H presents a supply and demand analysis of fitness suites in East Devon and shows a current under supply of 359 fitness stations based on 2020 
population estimates. Appendix H also presents a supply and demand analysis of fitness suites in East Devon based on the projected population in 2040 
(end year for East Devon Local Plan). This shows an under supply of 566 fitness stations. 
 
There is no supply and demand model available to assess sufficiency of studios. However, group exercise is, alongside fitness membership, an important 
income generator for leisure facilities so it is important to maintain the quality of existing sites and invest in those that have the potential to be improved. 
 

Quality The quality of existing fitness suites and studios was assessed through site visits. It was not possible to access all sites, but overall the quality of studios is 
higher than that of fitness suites, as shown in Table 11. The quality of the EDDC facilities generally compares well with the quality of the existing private 
sector facilities, but there is a need for more fitness stations. 
 
The priority fitness suites for investment to improve quality are Sidmouth Leisure Centre and Ottery Leisure Centre. 
 

Accessibility There are fewer facilities (fitness suites and studios) with community pay and play access in the north of the district. This is however where there are fewer 
centres of population.  

page 102



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

51 

Facility Type Assessment Findings 

Health and Fitness Facilities 

There are more facilities with pay and play access in the south, west and east of the district where the majority of the population is based. In and around the 
main market towns there is access to pay and play facilities within a 20 minute drive time, and for those in the most urban areas, access time reduces to 
between a 10-20 minute drive time. 
 

Availability There are no major national fitness chains operating in the district, nor budget gyms. The smaller fitness facilities tend to be niche offers, run by local 
operators. 
 
The EDDC health and fitness facilities are in the main population centres; they offer pay and play and membership access. There is competition across the 
district in terms of fitness facilities, but outside of the main population centres facilities tend to be membership only. 
 
Of the 448 fitness stations in the district the cost to access 430 is similar. 
 
Given the lack of national chains, and the current and projected future under-supply of fitness stations, EDDC, through its operator, has a real opportunity 

to increase the supply of fitness stations by expanding both existing sites and onto new sites, and offer both membership and pay and play access.  

There will be increased demand for studio provision as the population grows; it would be therefore sensible to include studio provision in any 

new/replacement facilities. 

 

Squash 
 

Squash: Quantity 
 
1.73 There are 7 squash courts in total. 6 public pay and play accessible squash courts at Exmouth Leisure Centre (x 2), Honiton Leisure Centre (x 2) and 

Sidmouth Leisure Centre (x 2). 1 court is run for private use only at St Peters School. These are shown on Map 7. 
 
  

page 103



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

52 

Map 7: Squash Courts in East Devon District  

 

page 104



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

53 

1.74 The overall supply of squash courts is summarised in Table 10. 
 

Table 13: Squash Courts in East Devon 

 

Site Name Post Town 
Post 
Code 

No of 
courts 

Facility Sub 
Type 

Access 
Type 

Ownership Type Management Type 
Pay & Play 
Community 
use (✓) 

Year 
Built 

Refurbished 

Exmouth 
Leisure Centre 

Exmouth EX8 1EN 2  
Glass-
backed 

Pay and 
Play 

Local Authority Trust ✓ 1982 Yes 

Honiton Leisure 
Centre 

Honiton 
EX14 
1QW 

2 Normal 
Pay and 
Play 

Local Authority Trust ✓ 1980 Yes 

Sidmouth 
Leisure Centre 

Sidmouth 
EX10 
9LH 

2 Normal 
Pay and 
Play 

Local Authority Trust 
 

✓ 
1981 Yes 

St Peters School Exmouth EX8 5AU 1 Normal Private Use 
Other 
Independent 
School 

School/College/University 
(in house) 

 
1949 No 

 

Squash: Quality  
 
1.75 A quality assessment was undertaken on following facilities. 
 

Table 14: Summary of Quality Assessments Squash Courts in East Devon 

 

 Overall Quantitative Score for Facility % Qualitative Score for Squash Courts Need for Investment- Overall Facility 

Exmouth Leisure Centre 71% Good Recently refurbished changing rooms 

Honiton Leisure Centre 71% Good Moderate. Dual use facility. 

Sidmouth Leisure Centre 61% Good Moderate. Dual use facility. 

St Peters School 68% Good 
Independent prep school. Facilities spread out difficult 
to manage community access 

 

Squash: Accessibility  
 
1.76 Squash courts are more specialist facilities, so there are generally fewer of them in any one area. 6 of the 7 courts in East Devon are provided at 3 of 

the leisure centres. Most squash courts nationally tend to be provided through clubs (not leisure centres) such as the Devon and Exeter Squash Club. 

page 105



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

54 

Squash: Availability  
 

1.77 East Devon is generally well provided in terms of facilities for squash, with the 3 leisure centres having 2 courts at each site. There are 6 courts which 
are available for pay and play for the general public. 

 
1.78 East Devon has a population of approximately 149k and, with 4 squash venues and 7 courts in total. There is however an under supply of courts using 

the NGB requirement of 1 court per 10,000 people (Currently 1:1 approximately). Furthermore, one venue with 1 court is owned by a school, which is 
not accessible by the public.  

 

Squash: NGB Consultation - England Squash 
 

1.79 England Squash has identified that, in comparison to other counties, the need for investment and required impact on deliverers makes Est Devon a 
key area for future delivery and squash participation. There is a poor spread of facilities across the area. The large population means that there needs 
to be a large spread of courts to meet the needs of the local populations. As such, it is imperative that the existing courts are well maintained. East 
Devon does not meet the national requirement of 1 court per 10,000 people. It should be noted that more investment is required into new and existing 
facilities to ensure this figure is maintained. Any 3 court venue is capable of delivering festivals, team squash, junior coaching an ‘Copper’ events (local 
junior competitions that form the first level of the England Squash Talent pathway). The expansion in the number of courts in the existing and new sites 
would play a significant role in hosting more large scale events. 
 

Squash: Summary of Supply and Demand 
 

Table 15: Summary Analysis – Squash Courts Supply and Demand 

 

Facility Type Assessment Findings 

Squash Courts 

Quantity There is a total of 7 courts in East Devon with 2 of these glass-backed squash courts. England Squash method for assessing current supply requires 1 
court per 10,000 people. This would require East Devon to have approximately 15 courts. The East Devon District is therefore considered to have a 
shortfall in provision. 
 
Future Demand 
 
There is no specific methodology for assessing the future need for squash courts. Overall participation in squash is increasing at national level, and this 
is now being seen at a local level. Competitive squash across the country is predominantly now played in clubs, within a club facility; demand for 
community access squash courts has reduced in recent years. Participation is still growing however, but through the club base where juniors can be 
supported and coached from an early age.  

 
Quality The quality of existing squash courts is generally of a good standard. The walls and wooden floors of the courts were in good condition, although all 

seven courts would benefit from having the walls repainted, floors sanded and lighting upgraded to LED. 

page 106



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

55 

Facility Type Assessment Findings 

Accessibility The existing squash courts are provided at Exmouth Leisure Centre (pay and play), Sidmouth Leisure Centre (pay and play), Honiton Leisure Centre 
(pay and play) and St Peters School (no pay and play access because it is an independent prep school). 
 

Availability There are 7 squash courts in East Devon, 2 of which are glass-back. 6 courts are available for community access and the remaining 1 court is only 
available for club members (1 court). 
 

 

Indoor Bowls 
 

Indoor Bowls: Quantity  
 
1.80 An indoor bowls facility comprises a number of indoor rinks (usually a minimum of 3 rinks). Indoor Bowls is a more specialist  sport and tends to be 

participated in by bowlers who play outside in the summer, to practise and compete during the winter months. Indoor bowls is attractive to the older 
population and those with disabilities (wheelchair and visually impaired). 
 

1.81 There are four indoor bowls facilities in East Devon with all four of the clubs affiliated to the England Indoor Bowls Association (EIBA): Budleigh Salterton 
Bowls Club, Axminster Bowls Club, Honiton Bowls Club, Madeira Bowls Club and Sidmouth Bowls Club. Please note that, until recently, there were 3 
indoor rinks at Cloakham Lawn Sports Club. This facility was used by Axminster Bowls Club. Due to a significant fall in membership numbers (500 
down to less than 100), the facility was closed and the Bowls Club use the outdoor synthetic surface rinks for approximately 9 months of the year or 
use neighbouring Honiton Indoor Bowls facility. 
 
Table 16: 

 

Site Name Post Town Post Code Facility Type Access Type 
Ownership 
Type 

Management 
Type 

Pay & Play 
Community 
use (✓) 

Year 
Built 

Refurbished 

Budleigh Salterton 
Games Club 

Budleigh 
Salterton 

EX9 6SY 
2 rinks Indoor 
Bowls 

Sports Club / Community 
Association 

Sports Club Sport Club 
 

✓ 1960 Yes 1998 

Honiton Bowling Club Honiton EX14 2DP 

4 rinks Indoor 
Bowls 

Sports Club / Community 
Association 

Sports Club 
Community 
Organisation  

✓ 
1989 

Yes 2006 

Madeira Bowling Club Exmouth EX8 2AY 
3 rinks Indoor 
Bowls 

Registered Membership 
use 

Sports Club Sport Club 
 

1981 
Yes 2006 

Sidmouth Bowling Club Sidmouth EX10 8NH 
3 rinks Indoor 
Bowls 

Sports Club / Community 
Association 

Sports Club Sport Club 
✓ 

1972 
Yes 2003 

page 107



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

56 

Map 8: Indoor Bowls in East Devon 

page 108



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

57 

1.82 As a guide, demand is calculated as one rink per 14,000-17,000 of total population. A 9-11 rink bowling area, therefore, is required for a population of 
148,493 (2020) although this will be dependent upon the population profile of the area. The number of rinks required can be related to the estimated 
number of members: assume 80-100 members per rink1. With the potential for the older population in East Devon to increase and the current supply of 
bowling of 12 rinks, these should be maintained. Analysis of future demand using ONS census prediction of a population of 190,721 by 2040, this 
suggests an additional 2 rinks could be considered (11-14 rinks).  

 

Indoor Bowls: Summary of Supply and Demand 
 
Table 17: Summary Analysis – Indoor Bowling Supply and Demand 

 

Facility Type  

Quantity There are four indoor bowls facilities in East Devon each having its own club. All four clubs are affiliated to the England Indoor Bowls Association (EIBA).  
 

Quality 

All four indoor bowling facilities have either good or excellent rinks.  The quality assessment scores range from 64% at Sidmouth Bowls Club to 82% at the 
Madeira Bowls Club. Whilst the playing surface (rinks) at Sidmouth Bowls Club are excellent, the indoor bowls area was built partially on the existing car park, 
which means there is now a shortage of parking spaces. 
 

Accessibility 
The various bowls clubs have good access and excellent parking facilities (with the exception of Sidmouth). At Sidmouth Bowls Club improved disabled access 
and changing is required. 

Availability 
There is an indoor bowling facility at each of the main towns within East Devon, with the exception of Axminster, where the indoor facility has recently closed 
due to shortfall in membership. 

Future Demand 

 

Scenario Future Demand for Additional Indoor Bowls Rinks By 2040 

Scenario population increase to 190,721 11 to 14 (current supply 12) 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
1 Source: General Statement from EIBA.  

page 109



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

58 

NGB England Bowls Consultation 
 
1.83 The indoor bowls national governing body - EIBA explained how the EIBA plan covers the following areas: 

 
• Recruit and Retain 45+; Recruit and Retain 70+ - two different markets which requires us to find a way to grow both specific groups. The 45+ 

requiring new versions/formats – the 70+ wishing to keep the current formats. 
• Facilities – Build, Improve, Retain 
• Youth and the Family 

• Women – increased participation and retention 
• Disability 
• Competitions 
• Internationals 
• Promotion of our Sport 

• Commercial partnerships 
 
1.84 EIBA Objectives 
 

• A growth in participation across the adult population in local Communities. Targeted work to increase Female participation 

• A growth in participation in the 12-18 age range as part of the “EIBA Development Pathway” 
• The provision of an excellent sporting experience for new and existing participants 
• A growth in Indoor Bowls participation by people who have disabilities 

 
1.85 Running alongside our work is the Sport England Funded Development work provided jointly by the Indoor NGB (EIBA); Outdoor NGB (Bowls England) 

and the “Bowls Development Alliance” (BDA). Each NGB has two Directors on the Board of BDA. 
 
1.86 The Sport England funding for the 2017-2021 period, focused on the delivery of: 
 

• Club Development Programme: supports clubs across the country where they have identified greatest need. 
• Play Bowls Package Scheme: supports clubs with their recruitment. 

• Coach Bowls: providing qualifications for coaches and developing the best tutor workforce to deliver these qualifications across the whole sport 
including BE, EIBA, British Crown Green BA and English Short Mat BA 

• Facilities: providing funding support for BE and EIBA to research the facility requirements of their clubs. 
 
 
 

page 110



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

59 

1.87 Alongside these core objectives the BDA worked with key partners on the following: 
 

• Safeguarding Club Development Programme: supports clubs across the country where they have identified greatest need. 
• Disability Scheme: supports clubs with their recruitment. 
• Women Can  
 

1.88 The BDA are currently awaiting Sport England feedback in respect of their “Funding Submission for the 2022-2025 period. 
 

1.89 It is likely this will include: 
 

• Club Hubs – encourage growth of membership and retention of facilities 
• Communities 
• Health 

• Inclusion 
 

1.90 All of the Four Clubs in the East Devon area have a modest good level of membership and have the capacity to accommodate additional members. 
 

Indoor Tennis 
 
1.91 Indoor tennis courts are considered because they are a completely different facility from outdoor tennis courts, which, unless they are club courts, tend 

to be used for recreational tennis. Indoor courts are significantly more expensive to use, and therefore tend to provide for those who are already tennis 
participants, or who wish to learn to play tennis and can afford private or group coaching. 

 
1.92 It is a requirement of the ANOG methodology that indoor tennis courts are covered by an Indoor Facility Strategy to complement the findings of a playing 

pitch study which assesses needs for outdoor courts. 
 

1.93 The East Devon Playing Pitch Strategy (PPS) considers all outdoor tennis courts in the borough. There is currently one indoor tennis court site which 
hosts 9 indoor courts (4 x indoor carpet, 2 x acrylic and 3 x tarmac in air dome) at Exmouth Tennis and Fitness Centre. 

 
1.94 Based on the Lawn Tennis Association (LTA) figure of 12,500 population for 1 indoor court there is a need for 12 indoor courts, and therefore there is a 

current shortfall of 3 courts. Any indoor tennis court provision should be led by the LTA and Tennis Clubs. By 2040, this shortfall will increase to 6 courts. 
 
1.95 Consultation with the LTA as part of the NGB consultation, the following was shared: the focus nationally is on parks tennis, improving pay and play 

community access and improving infrastructure/facilities. Pre-Covid, the LTA was looking to invest in facilities but not in East Devon due to the existing 
Exmouth Tennis Centre. The LTA has done a lot with Exmouth Tennis Centre, focussing on increasing numbers in their Youth Tennis Programme.  

page 111



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

60 

1.96 They also funded a coach to go into schools to provide tennis coaching and an exit route into Exmouth Tennis Club. They are pleased with the 
performance of Exmouth Tennis Centre.  

 
1.97 There is also Clubspark installed at Phear Park and Seafield. They would like this extending to Coburg in future.  

 
1.98 The LTA suggested there is no requirement for new indoor tennis provision. There are 12 tennis clubs in East Devon, mainly small clubs. Exmouth 

Tennis Club and Budleigh Salterton Tennis Club are two of the larger clubs. Budleigh would like to have their existing court floodlit. Paddle Tennis is 
being promoted by the LTA as a steppingstone into mainstream tennis. There are currently no paddle tennis courts in Devon. 

 
Table 18: Indoor Tennis court facilities in East Devon 

 

Site Name 
Post 
Town 

Post 
Code 

Facility Type Access Type 
Ownership 
Type 

Management 
Type 

Pay & Play 
Community 
use (✓) 

Year Built Refurbished 

Exmouth Tennis and 
Fitness Centre 

Exmouth EX8 3AE 
Indoor Tennis Centre 
– 2 indoor courts 

Pay and play Local authority Trust 

 
(✓) 2003  

Exmouth Tennis and 
Fitness Centre 

Exmouth EX8 3AE 
Indoor Tennis Centre 
– 4 indoor courts 

Pay and play Local authority Trust 

 
(✓) 1995 2003 

Exmouth Tennis and 
Fitness Centre 

Exmouth EX8 3AE 
Indoor Tennis Centre 
– 3 indoor courts (air 
dome) 

Pay and play Local authority Trust 

 
(✓)   

 

Indoor Tennis: Summary of Supply and Demand 
 

Table 19: Summary Analysis – Indoor Tennis Supply and Demand 

 

Facility Type Assessment Findings 

Quantity There is currently one indoor tennis site which hosts 9 indoor courts in East Devon at the Exmouth Tennis and Fitness Centre. Based on the Lawn Tennis 
Association (LTA) figure of 12,500 population for 1 indoor court there is a need for 12 indoor courts, and therefore there is a shortfall of 3 courts, increasing to a 
shortfall of 6 courts by 2040. 

Quality The 6 indoor tennis courts (carpet and acrylic surface) are in good condition, although the tarmac courts in the air dome are rated as average. Indoor tennis is 
part of a wider health and fitness offer. 

Accessibility All of the indoor courts are accessible for pay and play use. 

Availability As above 

page 112



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

61 

Gymnastics Centres 
 

Gymnastics Centres: Quantity  
 

1.99 There are two British Gymnastics affiliated clubs in East Devon: 
 

• Honiton Gymnastics Club founded nearly 40 years ago was previously based at Honiton Leisure Centre now has its own dedicated facility at 
Heathpark Way, Heath Retail Park. There are approximately 480 affiliated members of the club. 
 

• Axminster Gymnastics Club was founded in 2017 at Axminster Leisure Centre and now also has its own dedicated facility at Woodmead Road with 
432 affiliated members of the club. 

 
Table 20: Summary of Gymnastics Clubs in East Devon 

 

Club name 
Number of Participants 

Type of facility 
2020 2022 

Honiton Gymnastics Club 280* 480 Dedicated Facility 

Axminster Gymnastics Club TBC 432 Dedicated Facility 

 
*lost membership during covid 
 

Gymnastics Centres: NGB Consultation 
 
1.100 The NGB consultation with British Gymnastics is summarised below:  
 
1.101 British Gymnastics Strategies are outlined in the Strategic Framework (2017 - 2021) and British Gymnastics Priorities (for the period 2017 - 2021) are:  

 

• Diversify sources of revenue to develop and grow the provision of gymnastics 
 

• Build the capacity and grow the demand in gymnastics 
 

• Raise the profile and increase the appeal of gymnastics 
 

 

page 113

https://www.british-gymnastics.org/documents/footer-menu-items/governance-documents/8384-strategic-plan-2017-2021/file


 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

62 

1.102 There is no geographic focus to the British Gymnastics Facility Strategy. Focus is based on need, suitability and partners’ ability to support a project to 
successful completion.   

 
1.103 British Gymnastics Facility Development Priorities (for the period 2017 - 2021) outlined are:  
 

• Support increased capacity within gymnastics through clubs, leisure providers and other delivery providers 
 

• Guide funding investment through the United Kingdom from British Gymnastics, Home Country Sports Councils, Local Authorities and 
other potential funders.  

 

• Maintain and improve the quality of facilities and equipment within existing delivery partners. 
 

• Develop insight, understanding and direction of how Facility Developments can contribute towards other BG Strategic Priorities 
 

Athletics 
 

1.104 There is one athletics track in the East Devon district. It was built in 1963. It is a 400m 7 lane oval cinder track.  
 

Table 21: 

 

Site Name Post Town 
Post 
Code 

Facility Type Access Type 
Ownership 
Type 

Management 
Type 

Pay & Play 
Community 
use (✓) 

Year 
Built 

Refurbished 

Imperial 
Recreation 
Ground 

Exmouth EX8 1DG 
Athletics – 7 lane 
oval rack 

Pay and play Sports 
Club/Community 
Association  

Local 
Authority 

Sports Club 
 
(✓) 1963 No 

 

Athletics: Summary of Supply and Demand 
 

Table 22:  

 

Facility Type Assessment Findings 

Quantity There is one athletics track within East Devon – a 7 lane 400m oval cinder track at Imperial Road Recreational Ground, Exmouth. 
 

Quality The cinder track includes an infield of grass used as a rugby pitch of Exmouth RFC but is in poor condition. Exmouth Harriers AAC rent the track for a peppercorn 
rent but are required to keep it maintained.  
 

page 114



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

63 

Facility Type Assessment Findings 

The track is only given lane markings for a short period in the summer to facilitate the local school's sports day but even in winter there are faint markings. There 
used to be jumping pits and a steeplechase water jump but they have been grassed over. 
 

Accessibility Changing: Toilets for both sexes and one changing room and set of showers which are used by either men or women depending on need (in Exmouth AAC 
clubhouse). The changing rooms were refurbished in 1994. The Harriers clubhouse is located on the opposite side to the main grandstand and there is parking for 
100 cars. 
 
Charges: None for casual use but regular users are expected to be club members. Non-members wishing to use the track on an occasional basis at club times may 
be asked to make a nominal contribution. 
 
The Imperial Road Recreation Ground is shared with Exmouth Rugby Club, who have their own clubhouse adjacent to the 300-spectator grandstand. 
 
Floodlights: There are lights on top of the stand and down the back straight but are only used for rugby purposes.  
 

Availability Opening Times: There are no official public opening times but nobody is likely to object to casual use as long as runners remain on the track, and do not conduct 
themselves in a manner likely to upset any rugby players or users of the rugby club.  
 
Is track locked/unavailable for casual use at other times: No 
 

 
1.105 A site audit identified several issues with the current track including • The track needs investment (maintenance) • There is  no control over access to 

the track facilities, meaning anyone can access the facilities and potentially damage them • The clubhouse and buildings located next to the track 
require some modernisation 

 
1.106 Honiton Running Club said Exmouth was too far for them to travel to use a cinder track. And Axe Vale Running Club were unaware of an athletics track 

in East Devon.; 
 

  

page 115



 

East Devon District Council 
Leisure Strategy 2021-2031 
 

 

64 

Other Athletic Tracks in Devon: 
 

1.107 There are a total of five athletic tracks in Devon, one in East Devon, one in North Devon, one in West Devon and one in South Devon: 
 

Table 23:  

 

Site Name Post Town Post Code Facility Type Access Type 
Ownership 
Type 

Management 
Type 

Track & 
Field 

Year Built Refurbished 

Imperial 
Recreation 
Ground 

Exmouth EX8 1DG 
Athletics – 7 lane 
cinder oval track 

Pay and play Sports 
Club/Community 
Association 

Local 
Authority 

Sports Club 
 
Track only 1963 No 

Exeter Arena Exeter EX4 8NT 
Athletics – 8 lane 
synthetic oval track 

Pay and Play  
Local 
Authority 

Local 
Authority 

Track & 
Field 1992  

N Devon 
Athletics 

Braunton EX33 2HP 
Athletics – 6 lane 
synthetic oval track 

Pay and Play 
Club/Community 
Association 

Local 
Authority 

Commercial 
Track & 
Field 1989  

Tavistock 
College 

Tavistock PL19 8DD 
Athletics – 6 lane 
synthetic oval track 

Sports 
Club/Community 
Association  

Community 
School 

Edn Authority 
Track & 
Field 2009  

Brickfields Devonport PL1 4NQ 
Athletics – 6 lane 
synthetic oval track 

Pay and Play 
*Local 
Authority 
(Royal Navy) 

Commercial 

Track & 
Field 

1984 
converted to 
all-weather 
track 

2021 

 
*Taken over by City Council 

 
1.108 The Exmouth Harriers are primarily a recreational road and cross-country running club. They meet and use the Imperial Road Recreation Ground for 

training, but with no specific athletic events or meetings taking place. 
 
1.109 The proximity of the Exeter Arena regional facility attracts NGB funding as per England Athletics’ national facility strategy, to maintain key hub tracks. 
 
1.110 The recreation ground at Imperial Road is a shared with Exmouth Rugby Club. In the summer months, the grass infield is used by non-sporting hirers 

such as caravan and motorhome rallies to raise income for the respective clubs. 
 

page 116



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

1 

Appendix XX: Community Leisure Survey Analysis 
 

Question Response Rate 
 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

Responses 840 817 817 777 693 686 687 686 684 682 608 614 600 617 593 616 598 619 241 349 

Skipped 5 28 28 68 152 159 158 159 161 163 237 231 245 228 252 229 247 226 604 496 

Total 845 

 

 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 

Responses 354 353 354 123 111 352 351 594 473 343 314 356 361 309 522 542 539 540 540 262 

Skipped 491 492 491 722 734 493 494 251 372 502 531 489 484 536 323 303 306 305 305 583 

Total 845 

 
Do you live in the geographical area covered by East Devon District Council? For example, is the Council Tax for where you live paid to East Devon 
District Council? 

 

Yes No

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

page 117



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

2 

How important is physical activity to you? 
 
 

 

Do you do any physical activity? This could include walking, cycling, 
gardening, sport etc 

 

Very important Fairly important Neither
important or
unimportant

Fairly
unimportant

Very
unimportant

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

page 118



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

3 

Which three activities do you do most often? Please choose from each list. 
 

 
  

Walking/hiking

Running/jogging

Sea/river swimming

Cycling

Pilates

Yoga

Dance

Gardening

Gym

Horse riding

Bootcamps/outdoor workouts

Outdoor pursuits e.g. rock climbing, canoeing, sailing

Indoor team sports

Outdoor team sports

Indoor casual swimming

Indoor exercise classes

Triathlon

Martial arts

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00%

3 2 1

page 119



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

4 

Of the respondents that specified ‘other’ the activities listed were: 
 

 Golf  Swimming - Indoor  Sea swimming 

 Yoga online  Paddle boarding   Tennis 

 Surfing  Cycling  Aquafit 

 Bowls  Gym  Archery 

 Individual PT sessions  Outdoor gym / Calisthenics  Mountain biking 

 
  

page 120



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

5 

In the past 7 days, how many minutes of physical activity have you undertaken? 
 

 

Walking/hiking

Running/jogging

Sea/river swimming

Cycling

Pilates

Yoga

Dance

Gardening

Gym

Horse riding

Bootcamps/outdoor workouts

Outdoor pursuits e.g. rock climbing, canoeing, sailing

Indoor team sports

Outdoor team sports

Indoor casual swimming

Indoor exercise classes

Triathlon

Martial arts

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00% 80.00% 90.00% 100.00%

More than 150 minutes Between 30 minutes an 149 minutes 30 minutes or less None

page 121



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

6 

 
Of the respondents that specified ‘other’ the activities listed were: 
 

 Golf  Swimming - Indoor  Tennis 

 Bowls  Paddle boarding   Aquafit 

 Individual PT sessions  Cycling  Gym 

 
  

page 122



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

7 

Thinking about each physical activity you have undertaken in the past 7 days, was it enough to raise your heart rate? 
 

 
 

Walking/hiking

Running/jogging

Sea/river swimming

Cycling

Pilates

Yoga

Dance

Gardening

Gym

Horse riding

Bootcamps/outdoor workouts

Outdoor pursuits e.g. rock climbing, canoeing, sailing

Indoor team sports

Outdoor team sports

Indoor casual swimming

Indoor exercise classes

Triathlon

Martial arts

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00% 80.00% 90.00% 100.00%

Never Occasionally Sometimes Yes, every time Did not do this activity

page 123



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

8 

Of the respondents that specified ‘other’ the activities listed were: 
 

 Golf  Swimming - Indoor  Tennis 

 Individual PT sessions  Gym  Aquafit 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 124



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

9 

Why do you choose to take part in physical activity? (tick all that apply) 
 

 
 
Of the respondents that specified ‘other’ the reasons listed were: 
 

 To aid recovery from illness  General feeling of wellbeing  Not a lot else to do in the area as the council 
have neglected it for 10+ years 

 Rehabilitation after heart attack  To get out of the house  

 
 
  

For enjoyment

To socialise

To stay fit

To lose weight

To compete

To improve my mental health

To travel to work/school/the shops etc

Helping improve my skills e.g. leadership, cognitive

To improve my physical health

Improving appearance

Time with family

Sense of achievement/ achieving a goal

Exercising the dog

I am active as part of my job e.g. builder

Other (please specify):

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00% 80.00% 90.00% 100.00%

page 125



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

10 

Where do you participate in physical activity in East Devon? Please tick all that apply. 
 

 
 
When are you most likely to take part? (tick all that apply) 

 

 

Home

At a school/college

Private gym

A sports club facility within East Devon, such as Exmouth Rugby Club, a local Bowls Club

Walking/running/cycling routes

Sea/beach/rivers/lakes

Park/public open space/public recreation field

Village hall/community building

I go out of area

Other (please specify)

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00% 80.00%

Weekday morning Weekday afternoon Weekday evening Weekend morning Weekend afternoon Weekend evening

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

page 126



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

11 

What stops to you being more physically active, particularly now that we are moving out of Covid-19 Lockdown? please tick all that apply 

 

 

Lack of sport centres and leisure facilities close to where I live/work

Lack of safe and accessible walking and cycling routes close to where I live/work

Lack of safe and accessible outdoor water spaces, such as the sea for swimming

The poor quality of the sports centres and leisure facilities on offer

The cost of using sports centres and leisure facilities on offer

The activities/facilities on offer are not accessible for people with disabilities

Lack of transport to get to places for physical activity

Lack of classes/activities close to where I live/work

Lack of time as I’m spending time with/looking after my family/relatives

Lack of time due to my job

I am worried about catching Coronavirus

Lack of confidence in my appearance

My mental health

I don’t know what is on offer

I feel like I’m too old

Lack of time due to other leisure time commitments

Lack of people to do activities with/play against

Injury/health reasons

Lack of motivation

Pressure from friends/family/other people to not take part in physical activity

Nothing stops me taking part in more physical activity

Nothing, I am already incredibly physically active

Other (please specify)

0.00% 5.00% 10.00% 15.00% 20.00% 25.00% 30.00% 35.00% 40.00% 45.00%

page 127



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

12 

Of the respondents that specified ‘other’ the barriers listed were: 
 
 Swimming times in the afternoon are for one hour only!!  Excluded because I'm over 80 

 Bad weather  Lack of pool availability after 5pm 

 No CCTV at Exmouth LED bikes are frequently stolen outside premises and police do nothing  Cleanliness 

 Timings of classes  Too expensive 

 Parking costs  Opening times 

 Lack of safe lit cycle paths  

 
  

page 128



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

13 

How has Coronavirus changed your feelings about physical activity? 

 

 
 
Of the respondents that specified ‘other’ the reasons listed were: 
 

 I do not feel COVID safe exercising with others indoors 

 Other health changes started to lockdown/not being able to swim 

 Made me appreciate the natural world I live in more- like many others! 

 Access to more online resources 

 I am aware my physical strength declined in lockdown and I am struggling to get back to my pre pandemic fitness 
 
 
 
 
 

I am more aware that I need to be more physically active to improve my general health

I am less motivated to take part in physical activity

I am more anxious about being in groups of other people to do physical activity

I am more aware that I need to be physically active to improve my mental health

I am more anxious about going out of the house/my local area to do physical activity

I am more motivated to be in groups of other people to do physical activity

I am more anxious about going out of the house/my local area to do physical activity

Other (please specify)

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00%

page 129



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

14 

How has Coronavirus changed your feelings about physical activity? 

 

 
  

I am more aware that I need to be more physically active to improve my general health

I am less motivated to take part in physical activity

I am more anxious about being in groups of other people to do physical activity

I am more aware that I need to be physically active to improve my mental health

I am more anxious about going out of the house/my local area to do physical activity

I am more motivated to be in groups of other people to do physical activity

I am more anxious about going out of the house/my local area to do physical activity

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00% 80.00% 90.00%

Disagree Agree

page 130



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

15 

How else has coronavirus changed feelings about physical activity? 
 

 
 

Of the respondents that specified ‘other’ the reasons listed were: 
 

 I’m more motivated to bother with your badly thought out limited survey to prove we need more indoor sport facilities 

 The virus doesn’t worry me  

 The same as pre-covid  

 I was already well aware of the benefits of physical activity and the questions are a bit too guided. I am neither more or less motivated as I have always 
had a very positive attitude to exercise and how it makes me feel better 

 Access to physical activity is always harder in the winter. 

 Again people with disabilities are not really considered 
 
 
 

I am more aware that I need to be more physically active to improve my general health

I am less motivated to take part in physical activity

I am more motivated to take part in physical activity

I am more anxious about going out of the house/my local area to do physical activity

I am more anxious about being in groups of other people to do physical activity

I am more motivated to go out of the house / my local area to do physical activity

I am more motivated to be in groups of other people to do physical activity

I am more aware that I need to be physically active to improve my mental health

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00% 80.00% 90.00% 100.00%

No Yes

page 131



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

16 

Do you do different types of physical activity now than before the Coronavirus pandemic? 

 

 
 
Do you think this will be a permanent change? 
 

 
 
 

Yes, I now do completely different types of physical activity I do some different types of physical activity No, I do the same types of physical activity

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

Yes No Unsure

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

page 132



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

17 

Do you do more physical activity now than before Coronavirus pandemic started in March 2020? 
 

 
 
Do you think this will be a permanent change? 

 

 
 
 

Yes, I do a lot more physical activity now

Yes, I do a bit more physical activity now

I do the same amount of physical activity

No, I do a bit less physical activity now

No, I do a lot less physical activity now

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00%

Yes No Unsure

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

45.00%

50.00%

page 133



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

18 

Do you currently use any indoor leisure facilities in East Devon to take part in physical activity e.g. private gym, sports club, local leisure centre, 
school indoor sports facilities? 
 

 
 
What are your reasons for not using local indoor leisure facilities within East Devon? Please select all that apply 
 

 
 

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

Do not have time to go to the leisure facility for my activity

The cost is too high

Not interested in anything currently offered at my leisure centre

The activity I want is not available at the time I want

I am nervous about catching Coronavirus

Cannot get to the leisure facility due to lack of transport

The quality of the leisure facility does not meet my expectations

Better facilities are offered outside of East Devon

Better community fitness classes offered elsewhere

I prefer to do physical activity elsewhere such as in my home or outdoors

I prefer to do physical activity alone

I don’t want to / can’t undertake physical activity

I can’t do the activity I want to do indoors, it has to be outdoors

Other (please specify)

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00%

page 134



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

19 

Of the respondents that specified ‘other’ the reasons listed were: 
 
 Too crowded not suitable for people with anxiety unless I go accompanied and that's hard to organise  

 Very little on offer for elderly who live alone 

 Only do swimming 

 No crèche  

 New to this area 

 Swimming pool too cold. Needs to be better heated.  

 Do in Exeter as that’s where I work, facilities are there, living in Budleigh there are no facilities.  
 Swimming was too busy when I tried a few times 

 Honiton pool was grubby  

 I am severely restricted by disability so cannot do most organised sports, or insurance at the venue won’t cover me 

 More safe cycling please 

 The classes often filled up too quickly, need a bigger space with more evening classes  

 Need a choice near me that I like on sat morning 

 Lack of facilities in area  
 Unaware of what is on offer in local area. 

 LED stopped doing ladies swimming session which was my main exercise 

 Nervous to get started on my own 

 Down to cost. Sport is exclusive not inclusive 

 The nearest facility is Honiton which is a 30 mile round trip 

 Too far 
 I am too old 

 State of health varies from day to day 

 No facilities within a reasonable distance 
  

page 135



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

20 

What is the name of the indoor leisure facility you use most often? 

 
The top 10 were as follows: 
 

 
 
  

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70

Axminister LED

Cranford club

Exmouth LED

Flamingo Pool, Axminster

Honiton LED

Sidmouth LED

Seaton LED

Ottery LED

Oliver Joseph fitness

Woodbury park

Number of Responses

page 136



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

21 

Which of the following do you use at the leisure facility you use most often? please select all that apply 

 

 
 
Of the respondents that specified ‘other’ the facilities listed were: 
 

 Badminton 

 Dance area at ocean 

 Outdoor tennis 
 Yoga 

 Sauna 
 
  

Swimming pool

Sports hall

Gym

Exercise studio

Squash court

Indoor tennis court

Indoor bowls rink

Other (please specify)

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00%

page 137



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

22 

How would you rate the following aspects of service? 

 

 

Opening hours

Quality of staff/customer care

Ease of booking

Fees and charges

Building condition/decoration

Quality of equipment

Parking

Physical access to and around the building

Quality of changing rooms

Cleanliness

Activity Programme

Quality of instruction

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00%

Unsure Very Poor Fairly poor Neither good nor poor Fairly good Very good N/A

page 138



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

23 

If you rated anything fairly poor or very poor, please tell us how you would improve it: 
 
 More classes 

 Refurbishment or pool 

 Cheaper 

 Better poolside arrangements  

 Longer opening hours – including weekends 

 More equipment needed 

 Lack of availability in the winter evenings  
 Modern changing areas  

 Other LED facilities have their own parking where you don’t have to pay and display 

 More cleaning  

 Make booking click and pay rather than membership driven. 

 Improve /better booking options 

 More deep cleaning 

 Lower café prices 
 Better programming of pool, classes and lessons 
  

page 139



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

24 

Have you ever participated in a physical activity course/programme at the indoor leisure facility that you use e.g. GP Referral, Weight Management, 
Active Mums, Ways to Wellbeing etc? 
 

 
Please give the details of the course / programme: 

 

Course / Programme Location 

Aquafit/aquaflex Sidmouth swimming pool 

Aquasise Flamingo Swimming 

Cardiac rehabilitation  Honiton leisure centre 

Escape the pain Seaton fitness centre 

Go physio for back injury Flamingo Hydro Pool Axminster 

GP referral  LED Seaton Gym  

Hydrotherapy Flamingo Pool Axminster 

Hydrotherapy pool, physiotherapy by GP Axminster Flamingo Pool 

I clicked no  I clicked no 

Mindful movement Colyton 

Move it or lose it  Sidmouth 

Osteoporosis Exercise Class with Pilates (Sue Hayman, physiotherapist) Exmouth LED Sports Centre 

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

page 140



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

25 

Course / Programme Location 

Physio rehab following knee injury Honiton Leisure Centre 

Pulse Ottery 

Pulse Sidmouth gym 

Pulse Seaton Gym 

Pulse Axminster led 

Remedial Knee (can't remember correct name) Honiton 

Swim fit Exmouth 

Swimming instruction Sidmouth pool 

Unable to get on to courses as waiting list too long. Flamingo pool Axminster  

Using hydrotherapy pool after knee surgery  Flamingo swimming pool 

Was a fair few years ago but it was a weight referral  Seaton LED  

Ways to well-being  Sidmouth  

Weight 4 It Tunbridge Wells 

Yoga Reece Strawbridge Youth Centre 

 
Has the course resulted in a positive long term change in your physical health and wellbeing? 

 

 
  

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

page 141



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

26 

When you travel to and from the East Devon indoor leisure facility you use most often, what is your main mode of transport? 
 

 
 
How long is your typical journey time to your indoor leisure centre? 
 

 
 

 

Car/van

Motorbike/moped/scooter

Bus/train

Taxi

On foot

Cycling

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00% 80.00%

0 – 5 mins 6 – 10 mins 11 -15 mins 16 – 20 mins 21 – 30 mins 30 – 45 mins 45+ mins

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

page 142



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

27 

Do you currently use any outdoor leisure facilities in East Devon to take part in physical activity e.g. outdoor tennis courts, Multi Use Games Area, 
outdoor gym, artificial turf pitch, bowls rink, putting green, grass pitch? 
 

 
 
What are your reasons for not using local outdoor leisure facilities within East Devon? Please select all that apply 
 

 

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

Do not have time to go to outdoor leisure facilities for my activity

The cost is too high

Not interested in anything currently offered at outdoor leisure facilities

The activity I want is not available at the time I want

I am nervous about catching Coronavirus

Cannot get to the outdoor leisure facility due to lack of transport

The quality of the outdoor leisure facility does not meet my expectations

Better facilities are offered outside of East Devon

I prefer to do physical activity elsewhere such as in my home or indoor

I prefer to do physical activity alone

I don’t want to / can’t undertake physical activity

I can’t do the activity I want to do outdoors, it has to be indoors

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00%

page 143



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

28 

What is the name of the outdoor leisure facility you use most often? If you don’t know, please describe its location. 

 
1. Axe Vale Golf Club 
2. Axe valley Astro  
3. Axe Yacht Club 
4. Axecliff golf 
5. Beach 
6. Cloakham Lawn Axminster 
7. Clyst St Mary park 
8. Coastal Path 
9. Cranbrook county park 
10. Cycle paths 
11. Exmouth beach 
12. Exmouth tennis centre 
13. Honiton swimming pool 
14. Phear Park 
15. Sidmouth Golf Club 
16. Sidmouth pool 

17. Sidmouth putting green 

18. Tipton St John tennis club 

19. Walks and runs on footpaths 
20. Woodbury Common 
 
 
 
  

page 144



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

29 

Which of the following do you currently use at the outdoor leisure facility you use most often (see question 30)? Please select all that apply 

 

 
 
Of the respondents that specified ‘other’ the facilities listed were: 
 

 Walking 

 Cyclin paths 

 Golf 

 Beach 

 Sea front 

 

 
 

  

Grass tennis courts

Hard tennis courts

Putting green

Bowling rink

3G / artificial pitch

Adventure golf

Artificial turf pitch

Outdoor gym equipment

Petanque (boules) court

Multi use games area (MUGA), a hard surface with goals at either end for…

A one ended multi use games area (MUGA), a hard surface with goals for…

Grass pitch

None of these

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00%

page 145



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

30 

How would you rate the following aspects of service provided at these outdoor leisure facilities? 

 

 

Opening hours

Quality of Staff/customer care

Ease of booking

Fees and Charges

Building condition/decoration

Quality of equipment

Parking

Physical Access to and around the building

Quality of Changing Rooms

Cleanliness

Activity Programme

Quality of instruction

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00% 80.00%

Unsure Very poor Fairly poor Neither good nor poor Fairly good Very good N/A

page 146



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

31 

If rated ‘Poor’ or ‘Very Poor’ please explain why 

 
 Cost , reflect EDC charges 

 Facility not run by LED or EDDC 

 CSO discharges causing pollution 

 On-line booking  a pain for elderly(me) 

 Netball courts need resurfacing and lights 

 It’s an old building. Uninspiring.  

 Bad location.  

 Restrictions of use due to schools using it. Have to walk through school and sometimes comments from kids.  

 Cramped. Mainly used by blokes. Off putting. Poor layout. Poor instructors.  

 Expensive for what it is. Compared to facilities in Exmouth for the same price we get a very bad deal in Axminster. Need a proper pool we can use for all in 

membership price. 

 Access for very elderly is poor 
 
When you travel to and from the East Devon outdoor leisure facility that you use most often, what is your main mode of transport? 
 

 

Car/van

Motorbike/moped/scooter

Bus/train

Taxi

On foot

Cycling

I don't use and Outside Facility

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00%

page 147



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

32 

How long is your typical journey time to Coburg Fields/Seafield Gardens? 
 

 
 
How do you normally find out about sport and physical activities available in the community? (please tick all that apply) 

 

 

 

0 – 5 minutes 6 – 10 minutes 11 -15 minutes 16 – 20 minutes 21 – 30 minutes Over 30 minutes

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

Word of mouth

East Devon leisure centre websites

Paper Newsletters

Electronic Newsletters

Local newspaper

Noticeboards/posters/flyers

Facebook

Instagram

Twitter

Whatsapp

Emails from providers

Other (please specify)

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00%

page 148



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

33 

Of the respondents that specified ‘other’ the facilities listed were: 
 

 Village magazine  

 LED app 

 Internet 

 Easy Devon residents update  
 
Which of the following most accurately describes you? 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Male Female Non-binary Transgender Intersex Prefer not to say Other (please specify)

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

page 149



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

34 

Age range: 

 

 
 
Do you have a long-standing illness, disability or infirmity that limits your day to day activities in any way? (long standing means anything that has 
troubled you over a period of time or that is likely to affect you over a period of time). 
 

 
 

16 – 26 27 – 37 38 – 49 50 – 60 61 – 71 72+

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

Yes No Prefer not to say

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

page 150



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

35 

Postcode (for catchment area purposes only): 
 

 
 
Postcode Distribution: 

 

DT7 EX1 EX10 EX11 EX12 EX13 EX14 EX15 EX2 EX24 EX3 EX4 EX5 EX8 EX9 TA20 TA3

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

page 151



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

36 

Is there any other information you would like to give in relation to physical activity in East Devon? 

 

General Comments 

A footpath from Sidbury to Sidmouth to ensure a safe walking route  

A lack of well-maintained cycle paths. Aggressive car drivers. Some Land Owners discourage access to public rights of way. Particularly around the Combe estate which 
has a very unwelcoming feel  

A lido would be a great addition  

A separate cheaper membership for the swimming side of the sports centre 

A swimming pool for Seaton is needed 

Activities for elderly, isolated, living at home is non-existent, or if it is available, it's not communicated to elderly who have no Internet! 

An AstroTurf for playing hockey on in Honiton would be amazing  

As previously stated I'm all for people riding bikes and even encourage it, but not to the detriment of pedestrians and also toilet facilities in Exmouth are appalling. 

Be great for sea swimming signs and area for changing near rnli. Also an Exmouth sea swim event as other locations have. Invest in Exmouth rugby club centre of town and 
open it up for others use. More cycle lanes around town and connecting areas.  

Be nice if there were classes you could do with your children to encourage them to want to exercise also 

Before Lockdown I was swimming 2 1/2 hours a week straight after work (17:30). Immediately after the first lockdown I overdid it in the gym and suffered a very minor heart  
attack. (Didn’t know that for a week) since recovering from that the only time I’ve been able to spend in the pool is Saturday mornings. The changing issue has not posed a 
problem, getting hours that suit me has.  

Better off road cycle route provision is needed, especially as the public transport here is so limited, and ends too early in the day to be of any use to those who work  

weekdays. 

Better/more information available regarding Public Footpaths. 

Build a new swimming pool in Sidmouth next to the Leisure Centre to improve parking and staff costs. Then sell of the land in Sidmouth to pay for it. It make the swimming 
pool in Sidmouth easier to use. 

CCTV required to look at locked bikes at Exmouth sports centre...  

Charging children extra on top of membership for fun swim is restricting their benefits.  

Community golf facility 

Cost of leisure centres too high, no flexible use available have to commit to expensive long term contract of 6 months minimum  

Could do with a good cycle/walking route through the Seaton Wetlands 

Could do with more exercise classes at Sidmouth swimming pool. You have to be on the ball at 10pm to book  

page 152



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

37 

General Comments 

Cranbrook really needs a leisure centre!! 

Currently the main focus is towards the young and not so young with money and healthy slim bodies who may include people of m y age. More should be provided in the 
form of separate classes that allow people to get involved with such as Move it or Lose it classes with a gentler pace and dancing free form, to encourage the unfit; body 

anguish, chronically afflicted, people to have classes aimed at us specifically and all the age ranges that have these problems. The government should contribute more to 
this, often low income or poor sector especially with the pension age increasing whilst most people have a chronic condition by the time they are 60. These classes should 
help the participants to achieve what they are capable of; lower BP; increase mobility; help stop falls and other matters that weigh on the NHS! Tai Chi could be taught as 

well as  chair and standing exercises but no floor work because of lack of ability to do it. 

Cycle routes around Clyst st Mary to Exeter, Topsham, Darts Farm (linking to river exe path) are desperately needed. Roads are too busy/ narrow to be safe to c ycle. 

Cycling is my favourite activities but it’s too dangerous to cycle outside Sidmouth. Tarmac cycle routes to and along the river otter would encourage more people to cycle.  

Dedicated Fitness area/yoga/tai chi area at western end of Sidmouth promenade would be great.  Park run up the byes. 100m Distances marked on prom/byes pavements  

for walkers/runners/cyclists. Small Extension/annexe area to be intermittently opened at Sidmouth gym for extra cycle/treadmills during busier sessions. The gym numbers  
are governed by the number of those important machines. Overnight hiring of lanes at Sidmouth pool to individuals/fam ilies. £10 per hour per lane? ‘‘Lane timeshare’  

Definitely need for more daytime activities that don't require expensive club membership ....croquet, indoor bowls, table tennis, badminton, tennis.  

East Devon Council could promote  physical environmental, social activities such as plastic warriors and litter picking 

East Devon Council should provide funding from their recreation budget for the care and maintenance of public footpaths throughout the District.  Paths have become over 
used and deteriorated since the start of the pandemic particularly those on the coast used by visitors.  EDDC needs to invest in stiles, steps, pat h repair etc. 

Exmouth LED no longer provide Group activities specifically for Seniors. This has increased the group size making i t more difficult to keep a safe distance. As someone with 
a chronic illness I no longer feel able to attend spinning & aquafit classes due to infection risk. I also don’t want to compete with younger users as although members are 

advised to work at your own pace it’s difficult to do in a room of super athletes! Exercise is important to keep me healthy, I will now have to review my membership. This is 

very disappointing ☹️ 

Facilities are all in built up areas, I live in a rural community where nothing is provided by EDDC 

Fuel prices and time means we cannot afford to drive 30 mins plus to services.  There are zero facilities in the Blackdown Hills for adults and children.  I am trying to get my 
kids into clubs but the waiting lists are long so they are doing nothing physical after school.  As for myself I do not have people to look after them so it makes it impossible 
to go to gyms or even out for a run 

Generally good facilities. 

Gymnastics lessons for children - I am aware Exmouth LED are starting this but I fear the demand will outweigh the supply and only a few will benefit from this and there 
will be very long waiting lists. It will need to be run like the swimming lessons so that everyone can participate.  

Help is needed  after injury to get back into physical activity especially for the elderly  

I am very happy with the staff and facilities provided by LED . I am normally a lot more active but have fractured a bone in my foot. 

I belong to a running club 

page 153



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

38 

General Comments 

I did use the gym, but found I could no longer afford it. 
 

I do not find that there is enough variety of sports and activities on offer in East Devon, especially for families. There are predominantly the same types of sports on offer at 
most of the leisure centres, and there are so many football or gym options in the area -  but not everyone likes football or going to the gym. I would love to see the following 

sports introduced in East Devon (especially in the Axminster area):   
* A family-friendly rounders club - on the weekend, with various time slots available, with a flexible approach to booking. Year round availability - outside in a field in the 
summer months but indoors over the winter. 

* A family friendly cricket club - not too serious - just so that anyone can come along and have a go. 
* Trampolining 
* A family roller disco - this would be really popular, would be great for the whole family and can be year-round. All you need is a big sports hall and a DJ. 

* More tennis courts 
* A mini golf/crazy golf option - just like the one in Lyme Regis (very popular! - the sea view is a bonus). 
* Better family friendly cycle routes - not ones where the cycle path just abruptly ends and you either have to go on the road or turn back (such as the one in Axminster). 

* Bowles - again make them more family friendly - so can just go along, have a go, and don't have to wear all white. 
* An archery target field - (in Axminster). 
* More sports on the rivers - there are lots of rivers in East Devon but hardly any are utilised for sports - these would be good to set up on safe/shallower river areas (maybe 

with a platform to get into the water) so that families can have a go in a safe environment: Rowing boats , Paddle boarding, Wild river swimming *Information about any new 
sports and their details should be included in the East Devon residents' email newsletter so people know what is available. 
 

I don't use any of the outdoor facilities provided as I live alone, and I don't have anyone I could go with. That doesn't mean I don't want to be more active outdoors, but just 

that it is difficult to access this type of activity as an older single person. 
 

I feel it is very important that village halls are able to accommodate Pilates and Yoga etc  
 

I find cyclists rude and aggressive 

 

I greatly value Sidmouth Pool and will continue to support it. I also greatly value the network of cycle paths in ED and hope it will be expanded.  I also hope that our wonderful 
network of walking paths and bridleways will be maintained and improved  
 

I have a son (7 yrs) who uses the Exmouth pool for lessons.  He would do another activity on the week if there was something to do.   

Also the climbing wall is never open, such a shame,  he'd love to use it.  

I have given up horse riding because the roads are too busy, and access to Woodbury Common is across the B3180, and is too dangerous at Coombe Brake.  Choosing an 
alternative crossing point would mean riding along fast, busy roads to get to that point.  

I joined Oliver Joseph Fitness December 2020 and have found that my physical and mental health have improved tremendously. I previously went to LED and have found 
that at Oliver Joseph the equipment, facilities, staff and classes are all so much better. I feel happy and confident to go t here and not out of place like I did at LED.  

I live in Ottery St Mary and feel it would benefit from cycle routes away from traffic and a swimming pool. The number of dwellings have increased since 2004 but the leisure 

facilities have not kept pace with the additional population  

page 154



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

39 

General Comments 

I particularly like the cycles paths and that cycling UK are working on a bike packing route around the area. Most public footpaths etc are fairly well signposted also 

I really appreciate that you are trying to increase your knowledge about leisure use in East Devon, however, I feel this survey is very leading and supports your confirmation 
bias.  I absolutely love the LED facility in Exmouth and long hope it continues to offer its wonderful facilities to the comm unity.   

I think that gyms and leisure centres should be self-funding. If there were more cycle tracks in East Devon a lot of the gyms would not be needed.  

I think we need an outdoor pool. A sea pool would be nice. There is a huge outdoor swimming presence around Seaton (see JAWS Facebook group) Aka Jurassic Area 
Wild Swimmers but often the weather doesn’t allow us at Seaton because it gets rough. People then go over to Lyme in Dorset as it’s a bit calmer. I’m terms of water polo,  
I just wish I had a closer club. Not much can do about that though. It’s a very minority sport.  

I used to be a member but I like dance classes e.g. Zumba. There is no classes like this anymore and none of the other classes seem fun enough so it's not for me joining 

again which is a shame. My family are members but they like the gym and spinning although travel to Ottery for boxercise sometimes.  

I want Pilates for arthritis, a Zumba class tai chi dancing for fun things aimed at middle age I don’t drive so have to be taken. please put some stuff on at the Education 
campus so I can walk to it thank you and I love swimming but Ottery doesn’t have a pool or Cranbrook and the ones you have look dirty and are old and too busy 

I was generally very fit and able. I was member of a gym which I attended 3 times a week. I used to cycle but find that roads are too dangerous nowadays. In March 2020 I 
caught Covid and have been left with long term Covid symptoms. I would like to try to improve my fitness by swimming but the current charges are LED centres are too high 

I can only rely on driving to and from the LED centre but then I have to pay for parking as well. As I am a pensioner I cannot afford to pay the current charges for swimming 
and parking. I will not get better any time soon with energy costs going through the roof. The predicted increase in Council Tax will wipe out any increase in my old age 
pension. I am not skint but I feel there is no recognition of the fact that most pensioners are very much worse off in retirement that they were at work. 

I will not leave my cycle at the Exmouth leisure centre due to the fact that bikes are always getting stolen from there.  

I would be using LED facilities under a cardiac rehabilitation programme but a recent health setback has stopped my participation  

I would cycle more if safer linked routes. I don’t know much about the outdoor facilities available, such as outdoor gyms but  I would be interested to learn more about options  

I would like an ad hoc membership for indoor swimming only.  

I would like an outdoor swimming pool or Lido for fresh water swimming  

I would like more cycle paths in East Devon. I would like cheaper prices in the sports halls for under 18s. 

I would like more walking football available for the 55+ during the working day, ideally outside on 3G. The new developments around Cranbrook need to have more sports 

facilities available, The newest development near the airport has a planned space for outdoor multi use pitches BUT no guarantee they will be built, I believe the developers  
should provide these as part of the development. If not it will be like the disgrace of the unbuilt town centre in Cranbrook:  a weedy windblown hole in the heart of the 
"community".  

I would like the long awaited cycle route completed between the sewage plant and the cemetery. 

I would like to find out more about the options of physical activities in the area - Colyton, Devon - mostly activities for elderly people are advertised on local FB groups 

I would like to go swimming at Honiton or Sidmouth but I work long hours and don't always know when I will have the energy to go. If I try and book a day in advance or so 
the times I can do are often always booked up. Same with exercise classes, I don’t want to book too far in advance but often when I then try the ones I would like to go to at 

the convenient times are booked 

page 155



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

40 

General Comments 

I would like to see more walking/cycle routes - in particular extension of the Stop Line Way. 

I would like to see safe cycle routes in my area so that I don’t need to drive to undertake physical activity  

I would love to cycle but to get to a cycle path it means going on the roads which do not feel safe and are not safe. The cyc le path needs completing down from Axminster 

to Seaton 

I would love to see an increase in traffic free cycle tracks that could be used for leisure that provide a decent distance to cycle safely. Also Axminster relies on private 
volunteer run communiques like Axminster Town AFC, Axe Vale Netball Club and then Axminster Gymnastics Club as well as privat e gyms to provide physical activity for 
children and adults. It would be good to see the council provide funding to these clubs to improve facilities. E.g. funding towards pitch improvements, help with utility costs, 

building repair,  new courts for the netball club, etc.  

I would love to see somewhere that provides gymnastics for all ages in Exmouth as its crying out for an area for all ages to come and learn to handstand or vault or flip etc. 
I currently have to drive to Exeter with my daughter for her lessons and it’s such a shame with the sports halls on offer in Exmouth that there isn't any classes available  

I would love to swim more without having to rely on driving out of area 

I’m joking HTC next year hopefully if voted in. Our town is crying out for facil ities, one thing I’d love is to create a safe cycling route off of the roads to link east Devon towns 

and villages as a whole  

I'd like to go swimming but the times are not always suitable for me. 

If exercise is branded without the association with “sport” and “competition” , but with more emphasis on health benefits, enjoyment and community it would appeal to more 
people who currently find “gym” and “sports centres” as alien places . E.g. walking groups that include local history walks , or cookery classes that include exercise and 

health eating advice , garden clubs that educate about general fitness and the benefits of varied movement and warming up safely . 

Important to retain and protect the facilities we have, hold Tory LED creation to account for current LED funding issues post pandemic. An LED presence in Budleigh would 
be a game changer! Wish LED had control of the gym at Sea change rather than Westbank. Continue to protect sea swimmers with marker buoys and signage, consider 
extending marker buoys to year round now so many swim all year.  

In the last couple of years with the addition of Oliver Joseph Fitness I feel like the health and fitness industry in our area has greatly improved I think it’s about time we got 

behind the facilities that are working with the community and doing well rather than the ones that need constantly propping up with taxpayers money  

It is really, really important to provide affordable, good quality access to physical activity in our local area. Not everyone wants or can afford private facilities. It is the council’s 
responsibility to provide facilities for all at times that suit. Not run down facilities that then make in unattractive for people. Physical and mental well-being has to be a priority.  
Increase funding. 

It would be great to have a swimming pool in Ottery! 

It would be great to see a new style outdoor gym park with bars, benches, gym rings.  

It would be so great to see additional space allocated on Devon’s roads for cyclists, the road from Axminster to Seaton is frequently used by cyclists but the volume and 
speed of cars makes it uninviting for cycling and also too dangerous to even consider, particularly as a parent wanting to take children put on bikes. How are we to encourage 

our children to be active or even use cars less of the infrastructure isn’t safely in place to facilitate it. Perhaps east Devon could be low emission pioneers and create many 
safe cycle links around this part of the county? (Please :) ) 

It's unfortunate that the aqua fit classes are always heavily booked and often the ladies who attend don't actually take part but do their own thing in the deep end.  

page 156



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

41 

General Comments 

It's way too expensive, especially given that energy bills, and other overheads are increasing. My electricity is going up more than the cost of a gym membership, and I 
couldn't afford a gym membership, so how is anyone going to do it? 

Just moved to the area, what’s available  

Lack of council support for local clubs that they charge excessive fees rather encourage or support them in any way! May cause club closure within 12 months.  

Lack of swimming facilities. Cranbrook being built but no pool.  

Last time I went, Honiton swimming pool changing room was smelly and dirty. I haven't been since. 

LED monthly pass is too expensive. We need a swimming pool in Seaton.  

LED offers so many options, it is a sporting and cultural need that provides far better value for the community  

Lots of people like water sports - paddle boarding, kayaking, gig boat rowing, sailing. EDDC need to invest or subsidise the infrastructure needed to deliver these.  

Love more free swimming availability for children during the week term time. My son has a lesson but can't swim at any other time apart from weekends. Do we need the 

number restrictions and activity restricted now? It would seem time to open up again to me!  

Maer toilets must open 

More accessible off road cycle routes in and around Seaton. The existing routes need 'joining up,' and extending further, so that they could become a journey rather than an 
extremely short trip. Bikes have to put in the car if cycling with younger members, as it isn't safe to cycle on the road to reach them, therefore we have cycled about 90% 

less than we could have. It isn't worth cycling off road at the moment as the stretches provided are too short, and don't go anywhere. 

More affordable access to local gyms with a variety of group classes 

More classes for children! Especially teenagers  

More classes for older people who are less supple and have less energy levels for some classes on offer. Also need lower membership costs and more pay as you go  

more facilities/opportunities for the over 80s 

More grass sports pitches for grassroots sports they don't get waterlogged. A full size 3g pitch that is approved for use by England RFU with flood lights  

More indoor pools would be good 

More off-road cycling paths needed. 

More online classes so if we can’t get to class or the class is full we can do them at home, especially if we have the equipment  (like weights or spinning bike)  we could use 
this with a choice of instructors at our usual class.  More variety of classes inside and out.  

More opening times for swimming at the weekend and evening  

More outdoor all weather football facilities 

More please - more sports and more times and more opportunities - thanks 

page 157



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

42 

General Comments 

more safe access to walk from home  to parks etc also a swimming pool 

More safe cycle routes please 

More safe cycle/ walking routes. The east Budleigh road has a wide verge that could easily be used as a cycle/ walk route. This would enable people to take a circular route 

between Budleigh and Otterton using cycle route 2 and the access the lower otter valley (which is being restored) without taking the car.  

More safe cycling please 

More SAFE outdoor spaces (cycle routes, car free green spaces, play grounds) and more free play / green space for children 

More swimming available later slots once children are in bed! Cycle path linking Sidbury and Sidford please!! 

More swimming pools, especially Seaton 

More tennis courts needed and Pickle Ball courts should be considered too - they are a big new trend in the USA - half the size of a tennis court so double the amount of 
people could play in the same space and it’s much easier on joints etc for older people / those with injuries and very easy t o play.  

My family love cycling but we need more traffic free and safe cycle paths to be able to cycle instead of using the car. More affordable swimming and exercise classes would 

be beneficial. Clean rivers and seas needed for swimming. 

My partner has been trying to book hall / arrange 5 a side football for a Sunday night (ideally but could be any night)  for some time but is unable due to staffing problems in 
Sidmouth and no one able to work. This has been ongoing for months 

My priority would be improved safe cycle routes. Currently the lack of safe cycle paths stops me cycling altogether. With improved cycle paths I would use my bike for travel 
to work, shopping and leisure activities  

Need a gym more accessible in weekends evenings. I work week ends then gym closes at 2pm on sat and sun....  

Need a swimming pool in Seaton, more activities for older people. 

Need cheaper family membership 

Need decent cycle paths that go somewhere the one in Axminster is short  

Need more circular walking routes from villages. Need more cycling routes 

Need more off road cycle routes 

Need more options.  

Need to know about outdoor facilities as I only know about indoor facilities which I avoid because of covid  

no membership fee subsidy for pension credit 

One of the main issues I have noticed since moving here is a lack of safe cycle paths to get around East Devon. Walking paths are great but there is almost nothing for 

casual cyclists other than some fairly dangerous roads. It would be great to have a safe path linking Exmouth / Budleigh / Si dmouth / Seaton. 

only recently moved to Sidmouth so still learning the area and facilities. 

page 158



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

43 

General Comments 

Only that the young Lifeguards at Exmouth Leisure Centre could take control more when there are people swimming in the wrong lanes for their ability. I.e. Medium Lane 
and they are slow. Think they could find a polite way of informing people !!  

Opening hours for LED are restrictive 

Ottery st Mary really needs a swimming pool  

Outdoor activity for older person e.g. tennis 

Outdoor pool would be very beneficial!  

Park run didn't feature in the questions. Cycle paths really important and lacking. More classes for dance please. 

Parking costs near beaches are an issue 

People need cycling/running route from Sidbury to Sidford 

People, particularly older people, might feel more comfortable and safer exercising if they could do so in a small  group. You don't need a Sports Center to organise a 

Walk/Run round Honiton, it just needs Publicity and a Leader. 

Please build a sea water lido  

Please can you upgrade Axminster’s facilities   Please can there be an outdoor gym Please can the whole of East Devon have better cycle routes Please can Axminster 
have a pool (linked to membership) Please can There be a tidal sea water pool in Seaton. Thanks 

please don't reduce the facilities. More would be nice 

please extend existing cycle tracks - e.g. extend the Exmouth to Budleigh trail to Sidmouth on the old railway. also - the route from Exmouth to Topsham is excellent but 
from Topsham to Exeter is very unsafe (which is why cyclists use the busy road) 

Please give us safe cycling routes and bicycle parking. Thanks  

Please improve LED facilities. The residents of East Devon need to have better access to facilities with better opening hours , affordable prices and better facilities. How 

about a sauna/spa. There is nothing local to me except expensive private facilities. The same if you want to do diving boards. I feel an overhaul of LED is required to push 
them to offer the service that customers need. 

Please invest in more facilities, it has been a lifesaver for me and the kids  

Please keep LED going  Great choice of activities  

Please keep supporting LED Sidmouth swimming pool 

Please put in a cycle route from Woodbury to the Exeter / Exmouth cycle track  

Please reduce the cost of a family swim it’s too expensive for a family of four  

Please reinstate Zumba at Colyton grammar school on a sat morning. It was a very popular class and the children could go to badminton at same time 

page 159



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

44 

General Comments 

Please, please open a cycle route between Sidmouth and Ottery ! 

Poor in Sidmouth. Only use private organisations and clubs as led badly ran and too many disappointments 

Poor sea water quality after heavy rain.  Why are you not doing more to address this? 

Poorly designed questionnaire, the designer needs to go on a course  

Questions have not really explored why I don’t use other facilities and why use car as main journeys. The changing facilities at the swimming pool are no t brilliant, quite 
dated and dirty. There are limited safe cycle routes from Woolbrook and this prevents me cycling more, especially as a family  

Really think there should be better provision for athletics for children. I have a 16 year old who I have to take to Exeter A rena to access a decent running track and well run 

athletics club. Junior parkrun should also be established in East Devon.  Also think it should be much easier to pay as you go for physical activities rather than having to be 
a member of LED. I love Pilates but can’t commit to a 6 week block and can’t afford to join LED to do classes. Also think the re is a desperate need for well-run netball club 
for u16’s in Exmouth.  

Reduce village speed limits to allow safer walking through residential areas, vehicles travel too fast on narrow roads without pavements. 

Road and town planning is too car-centric. No consideration is given to active travel at planning stages or retrospectively. Huge wide roads with no crossings discourage 
active travel and encourage increased car use. As evidenced by Exeter being the second most congested city in the UK. this is  a huge failure and real work needs to be 
done to create segregated walking and cycling routes to encourage active travel instead of huge wide roads for more and more cars.  

Safe cycle routes accessible to children and those less confident are extremely limited. If normally nears we travel by car to safer routes. 

Safe walking route from Exmouth to Woodbury Common 

Sea bath facilities 

Seaton desperately requires better facilities which in my opinion should include a heated indoor swimming pool  

Severe lack of facilities for disabled 

Shame that Sidmouth leisure centre is not as well equipped as other East Devon centres facilities are sadly lacking, very tired and pokey....studio very poor. gym small.  
 

Staff are nice but.... 

Sidmouth does not have a floodlit 3G football pitch which is sorely needed. Hundreds of young people and adults therefore have to travel out of the area to take part in 
football training/matches during the week 

Stop wasting money on leisure centre's  

Swimming pool issue a time-table as before covid 

The beach is our natural outside facility, and Phear park is a great asset to the town 

The EDDC facilities are brilliant. I really hope that you continue to provide them at the current level. Well done.  

The LED in Seaton I found to have unhelpful staff when I joined. I had to pay for a year but used under 3 months. I was put off by the staff and although requesting help on 

numerous occasions I wasn’t given any real programme, encouragement or help. I didn’t even know there were shower facilities until a few days before my membership 

page 160



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

45 

General Comments 

was up. I also couldn’t book into classes at a time I needed. All full and no extra ones. So unless someone dropped out I cou ldn’t get in. The cost too was too much for me 
for classes I couldn’t access and I strained more muscles  than I toned due to not having the correct programme with equipment. Basically I was left to use whatever I wanted,  
however I wanted, for as long as I wanted. Seaton could do with its own pool, not the School pool which is only open during holidays and not over the winter. Sidmouth pool 

is dirty, the changing rooms are grim and there is too much chlorine in the water.  

The pool in Exmouth is freezing and I know many families that would love to use it if it were warmer 

The Seaton school swimming pool has terrible opening hours and is expensive. Given that the resource exists, it would be relatively easy to improve the hours and price 
here to make it a real asset to the community. An indoor climbing wall and/or trampoline centre would be great asset for Seaton, not just for locals but as indoor/wet-weather 

entertainment for holiday makers. 

The shared cycle paths are not enjoyable or safe for pedestrians, dog walkers and families with children. You feel as if you have you walk in single file to be safe. Cyclists 
ride too fast, do not use their bells and believe they have priority. The estuary walk in Exmouth is not relaxing due to the speed of cyclists. The shared path along the seafront  
is an accident waiting to happen, adult cyclists should not be allowed on this path, especially if you are parked along the seafront and have to cross their path to access your 

car.  

The Sidmouth gym is prevented from opening the gym door, by the adjacent school for 'safeguarding'. This is unacceptable with  the Coronavirus. 

The survey asked me the distance to a sports facility I never use - Coburg gardens? 

The Swim to the Sea course for over 55s was outstanding. Joel was an excellent teacher and his support team were brilliant too. A group of us have carried on meeting to 

swim at the same place, same time ever since, through the winter too. Every week.   

There are great community providers that often have their attempts at delivery thwarted by bureaucracy etc. Lots of support t o LED which is a private company would be 
nice to see other facilities supported. Cycle networks - free exercise would be great for community, business and tourism. Am Budleigh based and Town Council seem to 
have NO strategy for investment. The skate park ( which is too small ) is awesome for youth and promotes walking etc. Play parks are key drivers and destinations for 

physical activities providing the right equipment is in place.  

There is a desperate need for 3G floodlight area in Sidmouth 

There is a lack of activities tailored towards those of us with physical disabilities (to my knowledge) which makes it difficult for us to find safe exercise we can do with suitably 
knowledgeable and trained staff.  

There is a real need for a good sized swimming pool indoor or outdoor. In the colder months the sea temperature prevents one swimming for any length of time.  

There is no mention of golf in this survey and yet a large amount of people participate in this sport in East Devon. It also doesn't mention clubs and societies where people 
practice sports and activities. If one runs or cycles this requires very few outdoor facilities but good footpaths / cycle paths and cycle ways make a huge difference.  

There needs to be a review of cycling routed throughout East Devon , not simply finding a relatively quiet  road and letting Sustrans give it a number. Circular,  family friendly  
maintained routes throughout the county.  Also free tennis courts so that not just wealthy kids whose parents can afford David Lloyd can get tennis tuition . We will have 

another generation of poor families with poor health if nothing is done soon  

There needs to be more available for families to do together. It would be important that these activities were low in cost and interesting for children and adults. 

There should be some reductions in cost for those in receipt of benefits 

page 161



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

46 

General Comments 

This badly designed questionnaire typifies all my previous contacts with LED. Whenever I have used their facilities/classes t he quality has been poor. I would rather the 
council concentrated on funding outdoor facilities such as cycle ways and parks/playgrounds / playing fields / lifeguards for beaches - that are freely available and encourage 
people to enjoy exercising outdoors. 

This survey leaves tennis out of most activity lists and because it asks about activity in the past seven days it doesn’t take into account summer sports that I (and other 

respondents) do 

Too much space for crochet - need a boules piece in central Sidmouth  

Traffic free cycle routes / multi use paths are a fantastic way to all ages out enjoying physical activity and imprint their mental health.   

Very limited in particular for teenage girls. A lot of the facilities now being used locally are privately owned which is a real shame. I very much hope that by the time my 8 

month old boy is a bit older there will be more available locally for him to participate in without having to drive to Dorset.  I do realise there are budget constraints, not moaning 
just hopeful that more activities will be available locally. 

Very poor in local area. Transport unbelievably bad to get anywhere. Prices sky high. Seaton needs attention asap  

Walking / running in many areas is a nightmare due to speeding cyclists, this is highly dangerous and puts many off using these routes (such as the Exe estuary trail) 

Water sports in East Devon - a major growth area. Sidmouth Gig rowing club currently located in leaking damp small store. Major investment in the Sailing Club to offer multi 
use water sports involvement would be a massive step forward for the whole of East Devon. 

We are all waiting for the Stop Line Way multi user path to be completed.  Cycling, walking, running is dangerous in EX24.   There is a lot of traffic and hardly any paths.   I 
am in Colyford and know that people here are annoyed that they can't even take their dogs for a walk through the Seaton Wetlands!   It is not safe to get to the footpath to 

Colyton as the bridge over the Coly is dangerous as there is no path.   There is a lot of big heavy traffic along the A3052.   Especially as there is a lot of accidents on the 
A35. 

We desperately need a 25m pool in Seaton.  

We have three young children (1,4,6) and would like to use the swimming pool more as a family. We currently rarely use the pool as we find the condition and cleanliness 

to be poor, plus changing facilities aren’t brilliant. As a seaside town with a large number of young families, water safety is really important and I feel a children’s pool would 
make the teaching of very young children easier to get them used to being in the water. Also, open swimming sessions for families in the weekday after school would also 
be great as we have as yet been unable to get onto a lesson programme at LED.  

We just don’t seem to have many facilities compared to other places. Not council run ones anyway.  

We moved here just prior to lockdown and so haven't been able to engage in 'group' activities. We walk independently and love the area but it would be beneficial to know 
what other activities are available. It would be good if there was more advertising showing the wide range of activities avai lable. Finding ways to encourage people to join 
as well would be helpful to older people and those new to the area. 

we moved to Exmouth 1 year ago.    It is not easy to find out where classes etc are run.    I appreciate that we were in lock down when we first moved which did not make 

life easy for anyone.  

We need a running track in Honiton area 

We need a swimming pool in Ottery preferably open air! 

We need an outdoor pool  

page 162



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

47 

General Comments 

We need to keep on supporting all our sports centres.  

Why did LED pull out of an arrangement with Cloakham Lawn Sports Centre ? 

Why has the old railway track up the otter valley not been utilised as a safe cycle track!  

Why is the council spending my council tax on consultants AGAIN. You could have done a survey yourselves without consultant fees. 

With the amount of housing being developed in East Devon it would be good to have a pool somewhere like Ottery or Cranbrook.  Maybe even an outdoor pool or, even 
better, lake for wild swimming. 

Would appreciate water aerobics class in Honiton  

Would be excellent if you turned that white elephant of an interpretation centre in Seaton into a heated indoor pool.  Older and younger age groups would benefit enormously,  
but no doubt it will become some sort of community centre that nobody uses.  

Would be great to have a proper LED facility in Cranbrook. We have limited access to facilities and can only reach current LED facilities by driving. As the town is constantly 
expanding, more and more people will be in a similar situation, looking for local facilities to use that don't need a car to reach. 

Would like a park run track in Axminister  

Would like beginner sessions for people who have not exercised much before. 

Would like more swimming facilities, preferably lane swimming especially during school holidays where it seems we must disappear so the facilities can be centred towards 
children, same applies at weekends. 

Would like to be able to ride at speed on smooth traffic free road surface, practice triathlon transitions, duathlon, Aquathl on, Quadrathlon - preferably in safe group 

environment   

Would like to see swimming times for late evening as a nurse I don’t finish to gone 7, so would like to see some more times to be able to swim late in the evenings  

Would love a swimming pool in Seaton 

Would love an accessible tennis court in Axminster.  

Would love better swimming facilities for use by myself and children. Improved cycle routes would encourage us to start cycling as a family  

Would love to see more cycle trails similar to the Budleigh to Exmouth one 

would really like the walkway/cycle path from the Wetlands joined up with the path down to the Underfleet 

Would use a local gym if one in Budleigh 

Yes,  Cycle routes off-road such as Stopline Way is poorly maintained, insufficient in length, and roads are dangerous. We desperately need more cycle routes in east 
Devon,  

Yoga - would really like a local yoga class please! 

you don't have a clue- this survey is biased to your desired outcomes! 

page 163



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

48 

General Comments 

You need to vastly improve walking and cycling facilities and provision, so that the general public need not use cars for any  journeys under 3 miles. That provides hidden 
exercise and activity benefits, as well as reducing pollution, congestion  and helps hitting zero carbon. There's now no excuse not to do this. If people go to the gym they 
should be cycling or walking there , not using a car 

You should be supporting the flamingo pool in Axminster as an easy Devon facility. It’s a disgrace that you don’t.  

Your swimming teachers need training in disabilities (physical and learning)  and customer service. LED Exmouth have lost several customers over this issue.  

 

page 164



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

1 

Appendix XX: Sports Club 
 

Question Response Rate 
 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

Responses 64 64 35 36 35 33 36 35 31 35 35 27 34 35 36 27 26 26 27 33 

Skipped 0 0 29 28 29 31 28 29 33 29 29 37 30 29 28 37 38 38 37 31 

Total 64 
 

 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 

Responses 33 33 29 32 33 32 31 28 31 17 32 22 21 19 19 18 16 14 13 11 

Skipped 31 31 35 32 31 32 33 36 33 47 32 42 43 45 45 46 48 50 51 53 

Total 64 
 

 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 58 60 

Responses 17 6 19 15 19 11 16 16 17 14 17 1 17 17 20 18 18 18 18 13 

Skipped 47 58 45 49 45 53 48 48 47 50 47 63 47 47 44 46 46 46 46 51 

Total 64 

 

 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 

Responses 17 18 11 14 17 17 11 11 17 23 

Skipped 47 46 53 50 47 47 53 53 47 41 

Total 64 

 

  Football Club Questions 
 

  Other club questions 
 

  Questions for all clubs 

page 165



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

2 

Summary 
 
Of the clubs that responded 40% were football clubs. 60% were clubs that participated in athletics, swimming, cricket, gymnastics, rugby, martial arts, netball, 
tennis and volleyball. 
 
Overall, the consensus is that there is not enough good quality provision, both indoor and outdoor. 
 
Although CoVID has been detrimental to the maintenance of some facilities (due to lack of funds and volunteers), it has had a positive impact and has increased 
the number of individuals participating in physical activity and sport. However, this increase has highlighted the need for more suitable facilities across all sports. 
 
If the increase in participation continues, the there is a need for more coaches, volunteers and facilities (both indoor and outdoor), this alongside more funding 
 
The main facilities that are used are; sports halls, outdoor pitches, cricket squares, cricket nets (indoor and outdoor) and swimming pools.  
 
There are increased in facility hire fees which has a detrimental impact on the smaller clubs, especially when trying to ensure all members have the equipment 
required. 
 
The quality and quantity of the main facilities and ancillary facilities largely depends upon the area in which they are based; and how the club is able to raise/apply 
for funds or if the council/operators maintain the facilities to the required standards. This has led to some clubs saying the facilities are not fit for purpose. 
 
Indoor 
 
The most popular mode of transport to and from matches / training is the car followed by walking. 
 
All of the clubs that responded when asked if they utilised a training ground alongside their main facility said ‘yes’, and that this was due to the lack of 
availability of the main ground. 
 
The top three priorities that were highlighted regarding indoor facilities are: 
 
1. Better changing facilities 
2. New facilities to train 
3. Better maintenance 
 
The reasoning for these priorities was in attract and increase club members. 
 

page 166



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

3 

Outdoor Pitches 
 
Of the clubs that responded the playing times were on Saturday and Sundays by all teams regardless of age, gender, or type of play. 
 
The main type of pitch used was grass followed by synthetic and the 3G. The survey highlighted that there is a need for a 4G pitch. 
 
Due to the large number of teams spanning from U5s to veterans, the pitches in the winter are overplayed, especially if the clubs use their main ground for 
training. It is the issue of pitch maintenance that comes out as the top (73%) issue for clubs. 
 
This has been impacted due to the increase in team numbers across the board, with exception of the adult men and adult women’s teams where the numbers 
have decreased. 
 
60% of football clubs that responded indicated that they had plans for facility/pitch improvement, with the majority wanting new pitches and / or new/improved 
pitch drainage. However, 67% said that they had not secured funding for the improvements. 
 
Current unmet demand for match play is at 44%, but again depends upon location. Conversely there is huge demand for training facilities 84%. 
 
Some clubs highlighting that they don’t have playable pitches in December and January (due to poor drainage) , with no access to synthetic or 3G pitches.  
With the increased demand the clubs ‘currently not the grounds to provide the opportunity. However the possible grounds are available but this is all 
waiting on planning approval from EDDC’. 

 
When asked what facilities would be required the top three were: 
 
1. Additional artificial surface requirements 
2. Toilets / changing facilities 
3. Additional pitch requirements 
 
 
 

page 167



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

4 

Name of Club responding: 
 

Axe Valley Runners 

Axminster Gymnastics Club Ltd 

Axminster Town AFC 

Axminster Town FC 

Axmouth United Football Club 

Beer Albion F.C. 

Brixington Blues Youth Football Club 

Broadclyst Cricket Club 

Budleigh Salterton Cricket Club 

Budleigh Salterton Tennis Club 

Chardstock Cricket Club 

Clyst Hydon Cricket & Sports Club 

Clyst St George Cricket Club 

Clyst Valley AFC 

Colyton Youth Football Club x2  

Colyton AFC 

Cranbrook United youth football club 

Dawlish Swimming Club 

Devon Judo Centres 

Exeter City Swimming Club 

Exeter Storm Volleyball Club 

Exeter University Swimming Club 

Exmouth Community College 

Exmouth Cricket Club 

Exmouth Lawn Tennis Club 

Exmouth RFC 

Exmouth Spartans 

Exmouth Town FC x2 

Feniton FC 

 

Honiton Cricket Club 

Honiton Gymnastics Club 

Honiton Running Club 

Honiton Town FC 

Honiton Town Youth FC 

Kilmington cricket club 

Lympstone Association Football Club 

Newton Poppleford CC 

Otterton Football Club 

Ottery St Mary AFC 

Ottery St Mary Cricket Club 

Seaton Cricket and Lawn Tennis Club x2 

Seaton Town Football Club 

Seaton Youth  

Sidbury Cricket Club 

Sidmouth Cricket Club x2 

Sidmouth Netball Club x2 

Sidmouth Tennis Club x3 

Sidmouth Town AFC 

SIdmouth Town Junior Vikings  

Tipton St John Cricket Club 

Tiverton Swimming Club 

Upottery Football Club 

West hill junior football club 

Whimple football club 

Withycombe Rugby Football Club x2 

Woodbury Tennis Club 
 

page 168



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

5 

Are you a football club? 
 

 
 
  

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

page 169



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

6 

NON FOOTBALL CLUBS: 
 
Which sport does your organisation participate in? 

 

 
 

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

45.00%

page 170



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

7 

Is your organisation affiliated to a national governing body or association? 
 

 
 
Of the clubs that responded ‘yes’, the affiliations were listed as: 
 

 British Gymnastics  Devon Cricket Board 

 ECB (England & Wales Cricket Board)  England and Wales Cricket Board via Devon Cricket League 

 England Athletics  England Netball 

 Lawn Tennis Association   English Cricket Board 

 RFU  Rugby Football Union 

 Swim England  Club Mark 

 Universal Budo Association  Volleyball England 

Yes No If yes, (please specify):

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

page 171



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

8 

How many playing members do you have at present? 
 

 
 
  

0 – 20 21 – 30 31 – 40 41 – 50 51 – 60 61 – 70 71 – 80 81 – 90 91 – 100 101+

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

page 172



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

9 

Number of male and female members you have under the age of 18 and over the age of 18: 
 

 

Females under 18

Females over 18

Males under 18

Males over 18

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00%

101+ 91 - 100 81 - 90 71 - 80 61 - 70 51 - 60 41 - 50 31 - 40 21 - 30 0 - 20

page 173



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

10 

How has the number of members in your club/organisation changed over the last 3 years? 
 

 
 
Please provide the main reason for this answer: 
 

 

Increased Decreased Stayed the same

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

CoVID pandemic restrictions/concerns

Volunteer availability

Cost of access

Participants available leisure time

Trends in demand for sport

Funding

Administration

Quality of facilities

School/organisation links

Club/organisation recruitment

N/A (member numbers have stayed the same)

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00%

page 174



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

11 

Which of the following issues are currently problematic for your club? Please tick all that apply. 
 

 
 
Is the membership of your sports club likely to increase or decrease over the next 3 years? 

 

 
 

Lack of internal funding

Lack of external funding (Local authority/Governing Body)

Lack of appropriate local facilities

Access difficult for members (e.g. cost, lack of public transport)

Lack of information about local services

Lack of volunteers/coaches

Retaining/recruiting members

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00%

Increase Decrease Stayed the same

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

page 175



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

12 

What would this change mean in terms of your requirement for facility space? e.g. 5 more hours of court time per week. 
 

 
 
  

More hours of court time per week

Bigger training / playing space

Better facilities

Better equipment

More equipment

More volunteers

More coaches

N/A - members to decrease

N/A - members to stay the same

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00%

page 176



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

13 

Please provide the main reasons for any increase expected in participation? 
 

 
 
Of the responding clubs that said there were ‘other’ factors for their increase / decrease information was given as: 

 

 We had an increase prior to Covid but due to high numbers were unable to cater for all of the swimmers coming through and were unable to provide a 
performance hub to other local clubs as we did not have space 

 Increased pull-through of youth cricketers into adult teams 

 growth in girls playing cricket 

 Reduction in covid restrictions may improve experience 

 More people knowing we exist 

 We have built our team of coaches, and as a British-Gymnastics-approved course venue and approved tutors, we have a continual programme of 
upskilling our staff to be helpers, Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 coaches. We've promited the club and extended our programme of recreational gymnastics, 
alongside very popular PAYG pre-school classes, with a focus on high-quality in all aspects while keeping costs affordable  

 ECB initiatives and greater diversity by the club 

 This is a commonwealth games year, England will be looking to defend their title at home 

 Members going to university 
 
 

School / Organisation links

Positive impact of CoVID - more people wanting get get out and get fit

Sport has become more popular due to success as sporting events e.g.

Olympics etc

Other (please specify)

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00%

page 177



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

14 

In order to achieve your organisation’s aspirations, what partner support will you require over the next 3 years? 
 

 
 
Has your sports club got capacity for new members? 

 

 

Funding

Better marketing

Better facilities

Better equipment

More equipment

More coaches

More volunteers

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00% 80.00% 90.00%

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

page 178



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

15 

Please list the number of teams that your club runs? 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 - as Individual sport

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10+

0.00% 5.00% 10.00% 15.00% 20.00% 25.00% 30.00% 35.00% 40.00%

page 179



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

16 

Please enter the team details where applicable below: 
 

 
 
Please enter the League each team plays in below: 

 

Team 1: Team 2: Team 3: Team 4: Team 5: 

Junior Arena League - Devon 
Inter Club 

Junior Arena League - Devon 
Inter Club 

Arena League - Devon Inter 
Club 

Arena League - Devon Inter 
Club - National Relays 

Arena League - Devon Inter Club 
- National Relays 

Devon Cricket League C East 

Division 

Devon Cricket League E East 

Division 

Sunday Friendly/Development 

Team - no League 

Ladies and Girls Cricket 

Friendly 
East Devon Youth League 

Devon Cricket League - A 
Division 

Devon Cricket League - G East 
Division 

Friendly Cricket 
East Devon Youth League 
U10 

East Devon Youth League U11 

Devon Cricket League     

East Devon Youth Cricket 

League under 12's 

East Devon Youth Cricket 

League under 14's 
Devon League E div East Devon League G div East  

N/A Team 1: Team 2: Team 3: Team 4: Team 5: Team 6: Team 7: Team 8: Team 9 Team 10

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

5 and under 6 and under 7 and under 8 and under 9 and under

10 and under 11 and under 12 and under 13 and under 14 and under

15 and under 16 and under 17 and under 18 and under 18 and over (adult)

page 180



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

17 

Team 1: Team 2: Team 3: Team 4: Team 5: 

Devon Cricket League T20 Local league 
Devon Womens Cricket 
League 

  

Devon Cricket League Devon Cricket League Devon Cricket League, 
East Devon Youth Cricket 
League 

East Devon Youth Cricket League 

National Club League Devon National Club League Devon National Club League Devon 
Exeter and District Tennis 

League 
Exeter and District Tennis League 

South West Premier League Devon Merit Table 1 Devon Merit Table 2   

South West Men's League Exeter & District Division 1 Exeter & District Division 1 Exeter & District Division 2 Exeter & District Ladies Division 

Devon premier DiV c east  Div e east  All stars  Dynamos  

East Devon Junior Netball 
Leagues (EDJNL) 

EDJNL EDJNL EDJNL EDJNL 

Devon Cricket League - East Devon East Devon Midweek Cricket League  

EDYCL EDYCL EDYCL EDYCL EDYCL 

Devon league A division Devon league G division East All stars cricket not a league 

A Division C East G East Devon Under 9s Softball Devon Under 9s Hardball 

Sidmouth Indoor winter league 

ALL TEAMS PLAY IN DEVON CRICKET LEAGUE MATCHES 

national arena league North Devon mini league Devon County Championships Regional Championships  

Exeter abd District Exeter abd District Exeter abd District east Deon  

Exeter and district netball 
league  

EDJNL  EDJNL  EDJNL  EDJNL  

Exeter & District Exeter & District  Exeter & district  

National Arena League, Mini League, Inter Club 

Tennis - Exeter and District 
League and East Devon League 

Cricket - Devon League    

 
 
 
 
 

page 181



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

18 

Team 6: Team 7: Team 8: Team 9 Team 10 

Arena League - Devon Inter Club - National Relays Arena League - Devon Inter Club - National Relays Arena League - Devon Inter Club - National Relays 

Easton Devon Youth League U13   

East Devon Youth Cricket 

League 

East Devon Youth Cricket 

League 

East Devon Youth Cricket 

Leaue 

East Devon Youth Cricket 

League 

East Devon Youth Cricket 

League 

Exeter and District Tennis 
League 

Exeter and District Tennis 
League 

Exeter and District Tennis 
League 

East Devon Tennis League East Devon Tennis League 

Volleyball England National 
Grand Prix Series - U18 Boys 

South West JuVoTo Series South West JuVoTo Series South West JuVoTo Series South West JuVoTo Series 

U9 league east  U10 soft ball east  U11 hard ball east  U13 hard ball east  U 15 hard ball east  

EDJNL EDJNL Honiton Netball League (HNL) HNL HNL 

EDYCL EDYCL Devon Cricket League Devon Cricket League Friendly 

Devon Under 10s Devon Under 12s Devon U 13s Devon U 15s Currently no league 

EDJNL  EDJNL  Honiton netball league  HNL HNL 

 
  

page 182



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

19 

Please specify the 3 main areas that your sport club draws members from: 
 

 
  

Area 1: Area 2: Area  3:

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

Axminster Budleigh Salterton Cranbrook Exmouth Honiton Ottery St Mary Seaton Sidmouth

page 183



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

20 

‘Other’ areas specified are listed as: 
 

 South Devon  Axminster  Axmouth 

 Lyme Regis  Mid Devon  Hydon  

 Colyton  Beer  East Devon 

 Woodbury  Branscombe  St. John 

 West Hill  Rousdon  Sandford 

 Broadclyst  Exeter  Cullompton 

 Topsham   Tipton   Payhembury,  

 Feniton  Newton Poppleford  Woodbury  

 Payhembury  St George  Hemyock 

 Whimple  Uffculm  Throughout Devon, and as far afield as 
Plymouth, Yeovil, Exmouth, Exeter and 
Tiverton   Willand 

 
  

page 184



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

21 

Number of paid coaches and volunteers in your sports club 
 

 
 
When asked to specify if over 5, the responses ranged from 10 – 60, with the following arrangements: 

 

 Self- employed Coaches only 

 7 volunteers (none of our coaches, organisers or committee members are paid) 

 15 x paid and 8 volunteers  
 1/2 or more coaches for each junior age group 

 None of our coaches or volunteers are paid 

 38 self employed coaches +six members of reception staff 

 Our coach makes his own private arrangements with members 

 Coaches self employed. About 20 volunteers. 
  

Paid coaches: Volunteers:

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

1 2 3 4 5+

page 185



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

22 

Please select the facility type your organisation uses most frequently: 
 

 
 
Of the other responses, facilities were listed as: 

 

 Roads and footpaths.  

 Indoor cricket nets, outdoor cricket nets 

 Our own premises 

 Cricket pitch / square 
 Honiton Gymnastics Centre is a full time gymnastics facility (7,800 sq ft). It is a converted retail unit 

 Community College Indoor Nets 

Sports Hall

Swimming Pool

Gym

Squash courts

Dance studio

Artificial Turf Pitch (ATP)

Grass pitches

MUGA (multi - use games area)

Tennis courts

Bowls Rinks

Community centre

Church hall

Other (please specify)

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00%

page 186



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

23 

Please name the MAIN facility/venue your organisation uses most 
frequently: 

 

Axminster Gymnastics Club 

Bohea Field 

Broadclyst Cricket Club 

Budleigh Salterton Cricket Club 

Budleigh Salterton Tennis Club 

Chardstock Cricket Club 

Clyst Hydon Cricket & Sports Club 

Exe Valley Leisure Centre 

Exeter School Swimming Pool 

Exmouth Cricket Ground 

Exmouth Rugby Football Club 

Honiton Gymnastics Centre 

Kilmington Cricket Club 

Mountbatten Park 

Newton Poppleford Playing Field 

Ottery St Mary Cricket Club 

Our Own Club on the Maer,Exmouth 

Pyramids 

Raleigh Park 

Riverside Leisure Centre 

Seaton Cricket Club 

Sidmouth Cricket Club  

Sidmouth Tennis Club 

Silver St Car Park 

St Johns School  

Tennis Courts 

The Fortfield 

Tipton St John Playing Field 

Trinity School Pool 

Woddbury Tennis Club 

The distribution can be seen below: 
 
 

page 187



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

24 

How many hours per week does your organisation utilise this venue? 
 

 
 
If applicable, please state how many courts, pitches, swim lanes or rinks your club uses at your MAIN: 

 

 

1 – 4 hours 5 – 8 hours 9 – 12 hours More than 12 hours

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

Indoor court: Outdoor court: Swim lanes: Indoor rinks: Outdoor rinks: Outdoor grass pitch: Outdoor ATP pitch:

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

1 2 3 4 5 6+

page 188



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

25 

How do the majority of your club’s members travel to the MAIN venue?' 
 

 
 
Do you use any other venues for training or competition? 

 

 

Car Motorbike Bike Walk Public transport Other (please specify)

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

page 189



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

26 

Of the clubs that said ‘yes’, they did used other venues the venue names given were: 
 

 Bicton College Pitches 

 Bicton College Sports Hall for Training 

 Colyton Leisure Centre - LED 

 Colyton sports hall 

 Cranbrook education centre, Honiton LED 

 Exeter School 
 Exeter University indoor cricket centre for Winter training 

 Exeter University indoor nets.  

 Exmouth Community College 

 Exmouth, Broadclyst, Schools 

 Honiton Leisure Centre and changing facilities for our shows at East Devon Business Centre (next door) 

 Indoor Nets at Exeter Uni; LED Community Leisure 

 Newton Poppleford Playing Field, St John's School indoors, Bicton College indoors 
 Other gymnastics clubs for competitions 

 Plymouth Life Centre, Pyramids in Exeter, Torrington pool, Barnstaple pool, Millfield Pool, Tavistock Mount Kelly pool, Hutton Moor Pool, Horfield Pool, 
Hengrove pool, Ponds Forge, Tollcross, London Aquatic centre, Newport International pool, Swansea pool, Cardiff pool, Corby pool 

 Pyramids, Riverside, InFocus, Lympstone, Mount Kelly, Exe Valley Leisure Centre, LED Exmouth Leisure Centre, Chudleigh, Northbrook 

 Rural footpaths in summer 

 Sidmouth Sports Centre 

 St Luke's Swimming Pool 
 University of Exeter Sports Park 

 Withycombe rugby club, warren view 
 
 
  

page 190



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

27 

On behalf of your organisation/club, how would you rate your venue in the following areas? 
 

 

Capacity (suitable facility space for your organisation)?

Accessibility (travel time for the majority of your members)

Correct facility dimensions (facility size)

Disabled access

Sports equipment provided

Sports Surfaces

Facility maintenance

Value for money

Childcare facilities

Cleanliness

Changing facilities

Toilets

Clubhouse bar (if applicable)

Ease of booking

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00%

Very good Fairly good Adequate Fairly Poor Very Poor

page 191



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

28 

If applicable, please prioritise 3 areas for improvement in your most frequently used venue: 
 

 
 
Other priorities were listed as: 

 

 This would not be our choice if most frequently used venue, it is because we are able to book most time.  Our preference would be a larger pool where we 
can get more swimmers in at one time with land training facilities 

 Improved social space and facilities 

 Better club house 
 Our club cannot expand to cater for additional members unless sports hall availability increases 

 Security of future venue for the next 25 years, more room to expand, opportunity to develop facilities more and embed ourselves even more into the local 
community 

 More Volunteers 

 Better social/meeting facilities 

 50 meter pool for training 

Priority 1: Priority 2: Priority 3:

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

N/A Better maintenance Better equipment Better storage Better changing facilities

Better toilet facilities Better booking system New facilities to train New facilities to play Reduced fees and charges

page 192



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

29 

Please provide reasons for the above list of priorities: 
 

 
 
How likely is it that you would recommend this facility to other similar sports organisations? (1 – very unlikely; 10 – very likely) 

 

 

Increase in number of club members

Ease of booking

Facilities require improvement / updating

Facilities are no fit for purpose

Financial impact of CoVID

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00% 80.00% 90.00%

0.00% 5.00% 10.00% 15.00% 20.00% 25.00%

1 = Very unlikley

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10 = Very likely

page 193



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

30 

Please provide below any further comments regarding the venue that your club/organisation most frequently uses: 
 

 We are unable to do morning sessions at this facility so swimmers will always need to take kit home with them after morning training.  The facility shuts 
during some school holidays so we have to rearrange squads to provide some time for all during holiday periods 

 It is entirely looked after by the volunteer members of the club to the best of our ability 

 Recent adjacent housing developments have made the ground less attractive and imposed the need to install safety netting.  

 Sidmouth Tennis Club is a section of Sidmouth Cricket, Tennis and Croquet Club, and as such is responsible to the main SCTC committee 

 Excellent venue for community use.  Easy access and parking. 
 Resurfacing of the floor in the indoor sports hall is long overdue - it is overly slippery (due to being worn) and damage to the surface has been repaired quite 

roughly in places. The sports hall roof leaks whenever there is heavy rainfall and pigeons keep getting into the hall via holes in the roof. Despite these issues, 
it is the best and most affordable venue for our sport. 

 We are unable to rent out the ground to other clubs without permission from the national trust. 

 We have lots of junior cricketers in summer including girls  , not enough facilities for the girls changing rooms and equipment especially  

 It is our own facility that we rent and have worked hard to acquire in a relatively short time.  

 The club has outgrown the facility as membership increases, especially playing membership 
 We have no suitable outdoor or indoor courts in Sidmouth to run our netball club.  The indoor courts at St John's are inadequate and the outdoor courts in 

St John's and Sidmouth College have poor surfaces and are not floodlit - making them unusable for most of the netball calendar.  The only indoor court 
available in the whole of Sidmouth is run by LED and is fully booked without any ability to be added to a waiting list.  The only time our club has been offered 
court time was 9pm on a Sunday which is totally inadequate for any of our junior members.  The facilities in Sidmouth are so poor that our 3 ladies teams 
cannot train at all as there is no court availability.  They can only play matches. 

 The cricket field is also used by the village primary school for their sports facility 

 Honiton Gymnastics Club requires a larger (and permanent) facility, so that Honiton Gymnastics Club can continue to operate  a purpose-built/renovated 
community gymnastics centre. We have viewed the following facility and are keen to purchase it: https://peppercommercial.co.uk/property/trade-counter-
warehouse-heathpark-honiton-ex14-1se/ This is based on a successful existing business model and sound additional research surrounding the need for a  
centre that can cater for more people. Our project is supported by Sport England and British Gymnastics . This would fulfil multiple objectives, including: 
1. Providing a training space for 1,000 gymnasts per week 
2. Providing employment opportunities for 50+ members of sports coaching staff (10 FTEs) 
3. Providing training space/studios for several clubs from other sports and activities 
4. Providing a meeting place for community sports clubs and other community, in the pursuit of a healthy, safe, strong and sustainable community 
5. Providing a high-quality, well-resourced world-class training facility that will enable local and regional children to reach their potential in acrobatic 
gymnastics (https://bit.ly/2JuIots)  
6. Provide high-quality fun, soft-play recreational equipment for young children We have a full business plan, including a five-year financial forecast and six 
figures in reserves. 

 Our Lease with EDDC forbids the use of the Pitches for any sport other than Cricket 

page 194

https://peppercommercial.co.uk/property/trade-counter-warehouse-heathpark-honiton-ex14-1se/
https://peppercommercial.co.uk/property/trade-counter-warehouse-heathpark-honiton-ex14-1se/


 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

31 

 Excellent playing facilities; pavilion badly needs updating 
 A friendly well run club 

 we have limited pool time, at a very expensive rate, if pool time was cheaper we could pay more coaches to train the members better 

 We are training at a privately run school without any long term security of venue booking. If the school decided to withdraw its support our club would close 
immediately as there are no other facilities available in the town. The only outdoor courts are at sidmouth college and have no lighting and a very poor 
surface. LED sports hall is fully booked by other clubs with historic agreements. 

 In the winter evenings access is problematic because of the very sparse lighting to our club - often this is not working at all 
 
If your sports club operates the facility at which it plays, do you offer pay and play opportunities for non-members? 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Yes No N/A

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

45.00%

50.00%

page 195



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

32 

FOOTBALL CLUBS: 
 
Responding Clubs: 

 

 Acland Park 

 Boshill Cross Ground 

 Byes Lane 

 Cliff Field 
 Clyst Valley 

 Colyford Road 

 Glebe Park 

 Ingrams 

 King George V Southern Road  

 Knowle Cross Recreation Ground 

 Manstone Recreation Ground 
 Mountbatten Park Sports Ground 

 Peace Memorial Field 

 Peace Memorial Playing Fields 

 Seaton Town  

 St Rita's 

 Stantyway Playing Fields 

 The Furzebrake 
 The Kings School Field  

 Tiger Way  

 Washbrook Meadows 

 Withycombe Raleigh Common Pitches 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Distribution of home grounds: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 196



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

33 

Please complete the following table for each team and all types of play: 
 
Gender: 

 

 
 
  

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

Male Female Mixed

page 197



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

34 

Number of teams in this age group 
 

 
 
  

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

page 198



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

35 

Format 
 

 
 
Type of play 

 

 

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

5V5 7V7 9V9 11V11 (YOUTH) 11V11 (Full-size) Disability Team

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

Competitive/League Training only

page 199



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

36 

Please indicate the number of pitches used and the pitch size on your home ground: 
 
No of Pitches used 

 

 
Pitch size 
 

 

0.00%
20.00%
40.00%
60.00%
80.00%

100.00%
120.00%

1 2 3 4 5 +

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

5V5 7V7 9V9 11V11 (YOUTH) 11V11 (Full-size) Disability Team Walking Football

page 200



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

37 

Please indicate the competition playing times for each team: 
 
Team Type: 

 

 

Team 1: Team 2: Team 3: Team 4: Team 5: Team 6: Team 7: Team 8: Team 9: Team 10: Team 11: Team 12: Team 13: Team 14: Team 15: Team 16:

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

U5 U6 U7 U8 U9 U10 U11 U12

U13 U14 U15 U16 U17 U18 U19 U20

U21 U23 Senior Veteran Walking Football Disability

page 201



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

38 

Playing Times: 
 

 
 
  

Sat AM Sat PM Sun AM Sun PM

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

Team 1: Team 2: Team 3: Team 4: Team 5: Team 6: Team 7: Team 8: Team 9: Team 10:

Team 11: Team 12: Team 13: Team 14: Team 15: Team 16: Team 17: Team 18: Team 19: Team 20:

page 202



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

39 

Address of Training ground (s): 
 

Training Ground 1  
Address and Postcode (in full e.g. EX11 1AB): 

Training Ground 2 
Address and Postcode (in full e.g. EX11 1AB): 

Training Ground 3 
Address and Postcode (in full e.g. EX11 1AB): 

Kings school field EX11 1GH West hill school, Beech park EX11 1UG  

Colyton LED, EX24 6GB Axminster LED - EX13 5AZ  

EX14 3WA EX11 1QZ  

AUFC, Boshill Cross Ground, Musbury Road, 

Axmouth, EX12 4BP 
LED Colyton Leisure Centre, Stafford Ln, Colyford, Colyton, EX24 6GB 

Peace Memorial Playing Fields, Coly Road, Colyton, 
Devon, EX24 6PU 

Chantry Bridge, King Street EX24 6LD Colyton LED, Colyford, Colyton EX24 6HN 

St Rita's EX14 1AP LED Leisure, Colyton EX24 6GB LED Leisure, Honiton EX14 1QW 

Exmouth Community College, Exmouth. EX8 3AF-  Exmouth Community College, Exmouth. EX8 3AF- 3G Exmouth Community College, Exmouth. EX8 3AF-  

EX5 7AE   

Axminster sports facility EX13 5AZ The Furzebrake EX12 3FB  

Clyst Valley AFC EX5 1DA Clyst St Mary Village Hall Field ISCA School all weather pitch 

St John’s School SIdmouth EX10 8RG LED Ottery leisure centre, Cadhay lane EX11 1QW  

Manstone Recreation Ground, Manstone Lane, 
Sidmouth, EX10 9TF 

Colyton Astro pitch, Stafford Ln, Colyford, Colyton EX24 
6GB 

Ottery Sports Centre, Cadhay Ln, Ottery St Mary, 
Ottery Saint Mary EX11 1QW 

Cliff Fiel, Lympstone Villaga. EX8 5EU Candy’s field, School hill, Lympstone Village EX8 5JY 
St Peters School  Harefield . Lympstone . Devon . EX8 

5AU 

EX12 2DF EX12 2DJ  

EX14 9RH EX13 5AZ  

Stantyway Playing Fields EX9 7JJ   

Washbrook Meadows, Butts Rd, EX11 1EL LED Leisure Astro, Colin Tooze Cranbrook 3G 

 Axminster Community College, Lyme Road,Axminster, 
Devon, EX13 5EA 

Axminster FC, Tiger Way, Chard Road, Axminster 
EX13 5HN 

 
  

page 203



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

40 

Concerning your training ground (s), please indicate the pitch type and the length of weekly use: 
 
Facility type 

 

 
 
Use per week (hours) 

 

 
 
 

Training Ground 1 Training Ground 2 Training Ground 3

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

3G pitch 4G pitch 5G pitch Synthetic pitch Hybrid pitch Grass pitch

Training Ground 1 Training Ground 2 Training Ground 3

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

1-2 2-3 3-4 5-6 7-8 9-10 11+

page 204



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

41 

Concerning WINTER training, please indicate the extent of training for each team type: 
 

 
 
Number of Sessions 

 

 
 
 

U5 U6 U7 U8 U9 U10 U11 U12 U13 U14 U15 U16 U17 U18 Senior Veteran

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

U5 U6 U7 U8 U9 U10 U11 U12 U13 U14 U15 U16 U17 U18 Senior Veteran

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 10+ Series13

page 205



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

42 

Length of sessions 
 

 
 
If you stated that some of your teams train at the same facility as where you play competitive (league) games; does training take place 

 

 

U5 U6 U7 U8 U9 U10 U11 U12 U13 U14 U15 U16 U17 U18 Senior Veteran

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

30 mins 1 hour 1.5 hours 2 hours 2.5 hours

on the pitch elsewhere on the ground

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

page 206



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

43 

If training takes place on the pitch(es), please indicate how many hours of training takes place each week: 
 

 
 
Are the pitches used for any other informal use per week? 

 

 
 
 

1-2 3-4 5-6 7-8 9-10

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

45.00%

Yes No Do not know

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

page 207



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

44 

Please indicate how many informal sessions there are per week - using one session as 90 mins 
 

 
 
  

1 2 3 4 5 +

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

page 208



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

45 

In the previous three seasons has the number of teams in your club: 
 

 
  

Adult Men's teams

Adult Women's teams

Youth boys (11v11) teams

Youth boys (9v9) teams

Youth boys (7v7) teams

Youth girls (11v11) teams

Youth girls (9v9) teams

Youth girls (7v7) teams

Mini soccer (5v5) teams

Senior

Veteran

Walking Football

Disability

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00%

Stayed the same Decreased Increased

page 209



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

46 

Additional comments included: 
 

 Under 6’s and under 7’s as well as under 18’s started  
 

 We have two pitches but found that we could not accommodate 2 teams on the same pitch so withdrew our 3rd team. 
 

 Decrease by one team at U13, Increase by one team at U15 
 

 Increased youth membership due to interest and growth of town.  Lack of Pitch availability means although squads have grown many of these players can 
only attend training sessions. 
 

 Increase in 9v9 due to increasing from one team to two. 
 

 We have formed a new junior section starting with two teams for U7's though there are 24 regular attendees 
 

 The numbers have increased at all age groups, from 13 to 15 teams last year and will increase again next year as we lose one team and gain 2.  
 

 This season our senior 4th team was withdrawn from the league due to lack of numbers to fulfil all fixtures. However we expect the team to restart from next 
season as we have since signed many more players. 3 years ago we started a senior women's team but when it came to playing matches there was not 
enough interest in this. They were new to the sport and simply wanted to train. A lack of adequate training facilities was a factor in the decision to withdraw. 
We would love to restart the team in the future if further facilities in the Town were available. 
 

 ONE of our adult teams folded due to COVID but will be reinstated next season.  
 

 Increase in youth football with mixed teams from U6. Reason being having a coach in place that stays with the team all through to adult football, majority of 
the time it is a parent of a player in that team 

  

page 210



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

47 

If you have realistic plans to increase the number of teams at your club in the next three seasons, please indicate how many more (i.e. two teams): 
 

 

Adult Men's teams

Adult Women's teams

Youth boys (11v11) teams

Youth boys (9v9) teams

Youth boys (7v7) teams

Youth girls (11v11) teams

Youth girls (9v9) teams

Youth girls (7v7) teams

Mini soccer (5v5) teams

Senior

Veteran

Walking Football

Disability

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00% 80.00% 90.00%

N/A 5+ 4 3 2 1

page 211



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

48 

Does the Club have any facility/pitch development plans (e.g., new pitch, drainage, clubhouse etc)? 
 

 
 
If yes, please give details:  

 

 

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

New pitch(es) New / improved drainage New clubhouse Clubhouse

renovation/improvement

Ancillary (changing

rooms/shower)

renovation/improvement

34.00%

36.00%

38.00%

40.00%

42.00%

44.00%

46.00%

48.00%

page 212



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

49 

Has funding been secured for this development? 
 

 
 
Do you have any current unmet demand for match-play? 

 

 

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

page 213



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

50 

If, Yes what is the nature of this demand (e.g. age group) and what pitch provision is required to meet it? 
 

 We don’t have pitches that are playable in December or January at all. We don’t have enough space to play or train. We don’t have a club house at all and 
there is no additional access to Astro training. The grass school pitches are overused even though we can’t train on them hardly in the winter due to poor 
drainage  
 

 We require additional pitches at all sizes and age groups in order to meet demand from current membership.  It is calculated that we need to at least double 
our current facility. 
 

 Drainage is an issue at the moment. Water logged pitch 
 

 We have demand right across the board but currently not the grounds to provide the opportunity. However the possible grounds are available but this is all 
waiting on planning approval from EDDC. 
 

 Our 13’s 14’s 15’s and 16’s are 5 teams sharing 3 pitches.  
 

 As we only have one pitch under our control at the club and this is played on at least once a week, we often find that our veteran's matches on a Sunday 
(after the previous day's game) needs to find an alternative venue. Although the Sidford pitches are often available to book, these too are often out of action 
due to the previous day's matches from both senior and junior teams. 
 

 We don't have our own facility, we hire pitches from schools, local councils and the Royal marines. This has become a major problem with the lack of facility's 
in East Devon (LYMPSTONE VILLAGE). We currently use a meadow grass field form the NT. for most of our playing, with NO changing rooms or toilets. " 
 

 We often have to double up on the number of teams using a pitch with staggered kick offs etc 
 

  

page 214



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

51 

Do you have any current demand for additional training facilities? 
 

 
 
If, Yes what is the nature of this demand (e.g. age group) and what type of facilities would be required to meet it (e.g. grass pitch, 3G artificial grass 
pitch etc)? 

 
 We need better drainage in the school pitches but want a field back in our own village that we could develop for the club to give us enough space to train. 

We don’t even have a single toilet at either venue 
 

 We have to travel to Axminster or Colyton to get an outside pitch, during the Winter period. 
 

 Cost of current 3G training over £300 per week. Would like our own facilities to save this cost 
 

 Winter : Colyton LED Astro is needing replacing, unable to secure any other facility due to other clubs securing venues. Summer: Memorial Peace gets 
water logged frequently meaning postponement of games. 
 

 No toilets, parking or disabled access at current venue - needs to be addressed for basic welfare and equality needs.Current training requirements contributes 
to overuse of grass pitches together with excessive travel to use commercial facilities.  Dedicated training area on club facility or more local (at cost effective) 
commercial training 
 

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

page 215



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

52 

 Walking football and youth. But our 2 mens teams have such an impact in the pitch we can't have anymore playing on it 
 

 The pitch vets waterlogged in the winter months, so we have to train at places where we have to pay  as a club we have brought flood lights but get frustrated 
the pitch isn't maintained properly through the winter 
 

 Long term we would like to provide a 4G facility at the home pitch area , to avoid travel to Axminster for 'winter' training. 
 

 Ideally 3G training pitches would be preferred. 
 

 We would like to offer all of our age groups a one hour winter training session on Astro under lights 
 

 Sidmouth has never had a full sized artificial floodlit pitch, let alone 3G surface. This is a massive hinderance to both us and the Junior Vikings.  Training 
sessions for all senior teams have to be arranged at both Ottery (1st team) and Colyton (2nds/3rd team) and cost the club approximately £100 each week 
to use.  These pitches are also very well used by others and consequentially we have to use Colyton at the late time of 8-9pm each week which is sub 
optimal to say the least (too late and not long enough).  
 

 As we don't have our own pitches in Lympstone Village we are in desperate need of a sports facility, grass pitches, club house/changing rooms. During the 
winter months we were using the astro pitch at CTCRM this has now gone! so we hire floodlit  facility's from schools & colleges but these are in high demand, 
so we need a 3G floodlit training facility.  
 

 All youth. The local LED astroturf is in a poor state. When it’s cold it’s dangerously slippery  
 

 Some sort of affordable pitch rental for training in Exmouth would be great. Floodlights a massive bonus.  
 

 There are not enough sessions available on our local artificial surfaces so some training sessions have to take place on grass 
 

 Demand for senior training and youth training within two years, mainly winter training ( 3G ) and grass pitches to play on. 
 
  

page 216



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

53 

What facilities would be required? 
 

 
 
Of the clubs that responded ‘other’, the details below were given: 

 

 We are a successful club and have nothing  
 

 A floodlit full sized all weather pitch is all we need although we would only be able to schedule league matches on a 3G surface (astro would be sufficient 
for training though). 
 

 All of the above, as we have none 
 

 Additional grass pitch for U6 - U10 
  

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00%

Better changing facilities

Better showering facilities

Toilets

Clubroom

Kitchen

Officials changing

Additional pitch requirements

Additional artificial surface requirements

Other (please specify)

page 217



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

54 

Do all of your teams play on pitches of the appropriate size for their age group? 
 

 
 
If no, please state the nature of the teams and the unappropriated pitch size they use instead: 
 
Inappropriate pitch size 

 

 

Yes No

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

Adult Men's teams

Adult Women's teams

Youth boys (11v11) teams

Youth boys (9v9) teams

Youth boys (7v7) teams

Youth girls (11v11) teams

Youth girls (9v9) teams

Youth girls (7v7) teams

Mini soccer (5v5) teams

Senior

Veteran

Walking Football

Disability

0.00% 20.00% 40.00% 60.00% 80.00% 100.00% 120.00%

Mini (5 v 5) Mini (7 v 7) Youth (9 v 9) Youth (11 v 11) Adult (11 v 11)

page 218



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

55 

Please list the name and type of pitch played on (home games only), rating each pitch in relation to overall quality throughout the season: 
 
Pitch size 

 

 
 
Quality Rating 

 

 

Pitch 1: Pitch 2: Pitch 3: Pitch 4: Pitch 5:

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

5V5 7V7 9V9 11V11 (YOUTH) 11V11 (Full-size) Disability Team

Pitch 1: Pitch 2: Pitch 3: Pitch 4: Pitch 5:

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

Good Standard Poor

page 219



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

56 

Pitch Type 
 
Of the 19 clubs that responded to this question, all 19 indicated the pitch type was’ grass’. 
 
Pitch Issues: 
 
Grass Coverage 

 

 
 
FA recommended size 

 

 

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

Good - more than 80% coverage Adequate - 60 - 80% coverage Poor - less than 60% coverage

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

Yes, as per FA recommendation Within minimum and maximum allowed No

page 220



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

57 

Other issues 
 

 
 
How many home matches were cancelled last season per pitch? 

 

 

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

Pitch slope Length of grass Litter/glass on pitches Evidence of dog fouling Pitch maintenance

1-5 6-10 11-14 15 +

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

page 221



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

58 

What were the main reasons for the cancellations? 
 

 
 
Has the quality of your designated pitch(es) got better or worse since the last season? 

 

 
 
 

Weather conditions Insufficient number of players Opposition did not turn up Pitch quality Insufficient number of officials

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

Much better Slightly better No difference Slightly poorer Much poorer

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

page 222



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

59 

Please indicate why: 
 

 Less play due to COVID that is all 
 

 Issues with drainage and very poor soft areas on the pitch 
 

 More grounds staff and extensive remedial work 
 

 Water Logged in bad weather next to river 
 

 Investment in new maintenance equipment and increased volunteer time devoted to maintenance activities 
 

 FA grants have helped us purchase appropriate equipment 
 

 Lack of pre-season maintenance  
 

 The Sidford pitches have generally decreased in quality due to worse maintenance and poorer/wetter weather. 
 

 Investment continued to look after the pitch 
 

 Pitches are in poor condition. Netting in the goal is always loose and the netting/barrier has fallen down behind the goals causing lost balls every week at a 
cost of £20 each 
 

 We invested heavily last year in improving the pitches 
 

 Improved drainage works 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 223



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

60 

Who maintains the ground? 
 

 
 
How would the Club rate the maintenance schedule on this pitch? 

 

 

Club Council Parish Council School

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

Good Standard Poor Unsuitable

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

45.00%

page 224



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

61 

Maintenance Programme (only complete if the club maintains the ground) 
 
Frequency 

 

 

Aerated per year

Sand dressed

Fertilised

Weed killed

Seeding

Grass Cutting

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00% 80.00%

Within the last 2 years Within the last 12 months No Yes but not frequent enough Yes as required Never Once / twice 3 times or more

page 225



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

62 

Does the ground have any of the following? Please tick all that apply 
 

 
 
Changing rooms: 

 

 

Clubhouse Floodlights Dugouts Stands Pitch perimeter barrier Safe goalposts (that meet

British standards)

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

Are changing facilities available to your club? Is there a set of changing rooms per pitch? Are separate male / female changing rooms

available?

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

Yes No

page 226



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

63 

If yes, how many changing rooms are available? 
 

 
 
Changing room quality: 

 

 
 

1 2 3 4 5+

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

Quality of the changing rooms (exterior): Quality of the changing rooms (interior):

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

Good Adequate Poor

page 227



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

64 

Showers / dedicated players' toilet provision: 
 

 
 
Is officials' changing available? 
 

 

Toilets: Showers:

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

Self Contained in changing rooms Communal None

Yes, with dedicated toilet and shower provision Yes, but with shared toilet and shower provision No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

page 228



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

65 

If yes, how many rooms? 
 

 
 
  

1 2 3 4 5+

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

page 229



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

66 

Please use the space below to make additional comments relating to football facilities used by your club – (You may also use this space to make any other 

comments you think are relevant) 
 

We have run a successful club for many years in west hill but have insufficient space to rein and play. We have poorly drained grass pitches that as far as I’m aware have 
been reseeded once in the last 10 years. We have to play on a slopey pitch which is often cancelled with no toilets parking or change facilities. This is embarrassing for boys 

girls and parents. We are grateful to the school to allow us to play but we have no useful facilities. We use Astro training in the winter but can only access 1 men’s 11 a side 
Astro for 2 hours and have to divide it’s use between 10 teams! Please help us  
 

Our first team are in SWPL Prem East. The requirement for changing rooms and for officials mean we can only host one game and not hold a 1st and 2nd game at the same 

time. Our changing areas are not fit for purpose. 
 

We have very good facilities at our Boshill Cross Ground but of course there is always potential for improvement. Although we have no specific plans at the moment, we are 
always considering ways that we might do that. 

 

No Toilets, No Parking, Poor Accessibility (requires 400m walk down muddy lane), Dangerous access (Nearest parking requires children to cross busy A30), Poor/No 
accessibility for ambulances, No accessibility for disabled parents/carers, No shelter against weather, No social facilities (ability to serve hot drinks, etc) 
 

Help and Improvements need to be made to all grass pitches and more artificial pitches are needed with flood lights with a fa ir price to rent, they are very expensive to hire 

for 2 hours  
 

We have funded everything for our pitch, got a porta cabin and fit ted it out either kitchen and changing rooms, pay for a portable loo and a container to keep equipment safe 
 

Referee changing room news a revamp so they have their own w/c they have their own shower. We hope through funding to achieve this very soon. 

 

We have the desire to become a community club for all age groups but not the finance or  facilities, though we are in discussions to try and overcome this. We just need more 
help. 
 

We have three separate venue that we use so means a lot of travelling around the are for home games  

 

I have completed the above in relation to our own home ground at Manstone Lane as it doesn't allow for input about other pitc h we use at Sidford (which is less well maintained 
and has poorer facilities including often cold showers) 
 

as we hire several different facility's it's difficult to answer the question above. The adults and U15/16/18 use the Royal Marines camp and their facilities are excellent, however 

at a cost!  there are no! changing/club house facility's for any of the youth teams.  
 

We are currently in negotiations with local parish council for permission to get a clubhouse at pitch which would benefit not  only the club but the whole community in the village 
as the school do use the pitch for after school activities and also the village people will have a base for general meetings etc. We also hope to improve showers and pitch 

when we can get back to doing some fund raisers which we haven't been able to do due to the covid situation. 

page 230



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

67 

Please use the space below to make additional comments relating to football facilities used by your club – (You may also use this space to make any other 

comments you think are relevant) 
 

Lack of volunteers to keep on top of pitch maintenance 
 

We are fortunate to have a nice facility but lack a winter training 3G pitch and another grass pitch.  

 

 
How has your club been affected by the Covid-19 pandemic? e.g. emergency funding, deterioration of surfaces and facilities, increased membership, reduction 
in number of teams etc. 

 

We played less football but the club has maintained its membership well and it’s enthusiasm despite all our COVID protocols  
 

We have been ok. Our pitch needs maintenance and we are trying, having used the Pitch Improvement Grant to spike and weed both pitches. 
 

Only effected by player unavailability due to covid. FA financial assistance has also helped 

 

Covid-19 cut short the 2019/20 season and caused the Club significant problems in preparations for the 2020/21 season. That winter, due to Covid, we missed many games 
and were so far behind in our fixtures that we were unable to restart in March 2021 after the lockdown. Covid again gave us problems in our preparations for the 2021/22 
season leaving us with a small squad of players.  

 
Coming on top of the pandemic, long-term injuries and serious illnesses then depleted the squad further, such that we were unable to guarantee being able to field a team 
every week. In such circumstances it would have been unfair on the DEFL and other clubs/teams if we tried to carry on, and our committee decided reluctantly there was no 

viable option but to withdraw the team from the League for the remainder of the current season. 
 
In 2023 the Club will be 100-years old, and we fully intend to celebrate that fact and do justice to the facilities we have at our Boshill Cross Ground. W e are therefore working 

to overcome the difficulties and re-join the League again for next season. 
 

Loss of income due to unable to host fundraising tournaments  
 

Covid impacted financially due to loss of income for 18 months whilst still having expenses to meet (£8214.59 loss).  

 

Deterioration to the pitch and club house.  
 

Deterioration in pitch, games cancelled.  
 

Covid did affect us but emergency funding kept us going.Pitch actually improved due to lack of usage. player numbers remain t he same as does spectator numbers.  

page 231



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

68 

How has your club been affected by the Covid-19 pandemic? e.g. emergency funding, deterioration of surfaces and facilities, increased membership, reduction 

in number of teams etc. 
 

While day to day management has been made difficult we continued to fulfill all fixtures and have increased the number of teams. 
 

Increased membership and reduction in companies looking to be sponsors  

 

We have been affected to no greater extent than other teams although we did have many matches cancelled and had to close our bar during lockdown. 
 

Not having our own facility's has meant that a lot of matches and training had to be cancelled due to school/colleges closing. We are in danger of folding as a club if we can't  
find somewhere in our village to put a facility.   

 

Loss of revenue  
 

Slight reduction in numbers and a decrease in available funds through less social and fund raising events.  
 

The major problem is as a village club we depend on fundraising events to keep afloat and the last couple years we haven't been able to do them, and as a result the money 

hasn't been coming into club for better preparation of playing surface and general improvements  
 

Funding has been a huge issue. Cost of pitch rental and referee fee has put the price each week of sometimes over £100 per game. Pitch rental is extortionate for the quality 
of the facilities but there is NO other option in Exmouth. 

 

Lack of volunteers to keep on top of pitch maintenance 
 

We had to sought emergency funding  
 

 
  

page 232



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

69 

ALL SPORTS FACILITIES 
 

If you have any other comments in relation to wider sports provision, please provide them in the box below: 
 

We are the only competitive sports club in our village. Our primary school has no sports team or PE (or the very minimal). We provide the PE for the village children.  

There is no accessible field for the children to even play informally on let alone any decent pitches for the west hill team. With our membership we provide organised 
FA Charter Standard safeguarded football for around 200 children and if you include parents almost 599 people benefit from the wasps. We have no facilities whatsoever; 
we have not one toilet and not enough space to train or play on and have poorly draining grass pitches that are unplayable for a significant proportion of the 

winter. We can’t organise a walking or disabled team because we have no facilities to offer this. please help us  
 

A facility near the motorway and airport for easy access.  A sports village that provides for a wide variety of sports allowing families to undertake different ac tivities in one 
place rather than parents/guardians having to drop and collect children at different venues and then not having time for their own exercise and interests.  For us as a club 

personally, a facility that provides a good training venue for pool and land training as well as a competition venue.  We do not have a competition venue locally and clubs main 
source of income is by running competitions so it reduces an income stream.  It would be a luxury to train in one main venue, our top squad needs between 16 - 18 
hours in the water plus 3 hours of land training a week so we do not have one central facility that can provide that for one squad and we have 5 junior and development 

squads as well as a masters group.   
 

We have a football foundation grant for floodlights, another stand and hardstanding and that will be completed by Sept 22. The pitch the next need, with equipment appropriate 
as the pitches get softer. Areas now have little grass and showing wear. We have plans for improving the clubhouse and changing rooms etc but are awaiting a decision 

by the Council, which is now nearly two years to utilsie Section 106 funding. Also I look after Walking Football and they wil l use the pitch in the Summer, while Cricket use the 
ground. 
 

There is a national problem with encouraging youngsters to play cricket.  As there is no longer terrestrial TV coverage of cricket, school fields have been much reduced 

by long-term political design and the alternative attraction of Smart phones and digital games has resulted in a much declined interest in the game of cricket  
 

As a general comment I believe there is a need to provide more in the way of facilities/funding for sports in East Devon 
 

The Pitch Surface is greatly effected by bad weather, making the grounds unsafe to play and creating unnecessary maintenance at cost to the club and costs to hire 

other pitches within the area or forfit home games. 
 

The Charity has an opportunity to acquire 10 Acres of farmland for conversion to a dditional pitches and to allow toilets and clubhouse but requires evidence and 
acknowledgement from EDDC of the priority and need for additional facilities to enable access to required funding.  

 

East Devon district council need to get out and see the different clubs in our area. Speak to the people that run these clubs and see for yourselves how much hard work is put  
into trying to give people a place to play sport. I would like to think we could all work together to give more people to opportunity to play more sport.  
 

We look to improve our facilities annually, for spectators and players. 4G training area with flood lights remains a challenge.  

page 233



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

70 

If you have any other comments in relation to wider sports provision, please provide them in the box below: 

 

Sports hall hire prices keep rising and this is hindering the provision and growth of indoor team sports. 
 

Cricket Net provision is very limited and always in high demand from January-April. It would be good if we could have more information about available facilities and 
any other additional provision you can make available. 

 

There aren’t many dedicated gymnastics facilities locally so I think people don’t know a lot about them or the cost of running a centre like this.  
 

Over the last 4/5 years there has been a lack of direct support from EDDC and an apparent unwillingness to join in meaningful discussions resulting in a loss of 
development opportunities. So will someone please come and talk to us.!! 

 

There simply is not enough sports pitches and facilities in SIdmouth and east Devon.  
 

General shortage of playing pitches in East Devon 

We desperately need a full sized floodlit artificial surface to use within the town, ideally a 3G surface that could be used for matches. The lack of a facility has cost the 

club thousands of pounds over the years and has reduced the amount of football we can provide to the 100+ players we have sign on to play at the club.  We would be more 
than willing to do anything we can to change this fact in the future as it is our number one problem within Sidmouth Town.  I am aware that the junior Vikings at Sidmouth feel 
exactly the same. 

 

Since we were formed in 1895  we have never had a purpose-built sports facility in our parish and we are in great danger of folding as a club unless we can find 
facilities for our teams to play the sport they love. We are now in the 21st-century and we are still using a meadow grass field from the National Trust with no changing rooms 
& no toilet facilities. We have (120 children) playing football in our village as well as 2 adult team. I am struggling to find local playing facilit ies & I think it is disgraceful that 

we have to travel to Exmouth and further afield to 7 different venues to find playing & training facilities. 
 

Netball facilities are totally inadequate in the whole of the Sid Valley.  We set up the club so that disadvantages youngsters could access netball without having to drive 
all the way to Honiton to train and play.  We have secured 5 hours of facility use at St John's but as a private company they could cancel our arrangement or put pri ces beyond 

our reach.  This would result in the closure of our club.  At present there are many demands (not least from cricket and football) to use the indoor space at St Johns.   
It is critical to the survival of our club that dry, floodlit courts are developed in Sidmouth as soon as possible.   I cannot express this more strongly. 
 

We share the facilities with the cricket and tennis clubs, this doesn't cause too many issues other than the cross over with the cricket season when both need to use the same 

changing facilities.  
 
The cricket club is also looking into the possibility of installing an all weather, permanent training net which they are looking into funds or grants for at the moment.  

 

Larger clubs would benefit by having their own winter training facility as there is not enough space at the local school or college. At Axminster FC there is a high 
demand for youth football but with no where to train  
 

page 234



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

71 

If you have any other comments in relation to wider sports provision, please provide them in the box below: 

 

 

Please build more pools in Est Devon- a 50 m pool would be fantastic and so many swim clubs to share the facility raising funds! Tiverton, Exeter, Honiton, Crediton,  
Barnstaple, Wellington, Exmouth, Barnstaple, Torridgeside, Taunton, Dawlish, Weston SM would all use a 50m pool - probably 1500+ swimmers across these clubs 

 

We want to provide team sport opportunities to women and girls locally. We offer reduced fees to those on universal credit, we provide playing kit and keep fees at a 
minimum. The facility is not accessible enough to girls who live in sidmouth and the ideal would be to have a facility at the school so that as many people as possible 
would be able to benefit from it 

 

We would like to see a more robust system of lighting along the Madiera walk to facilitate access to our club on winter evenings 
 

Need more pool space in Exeter 
 

 

page 235



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

1 

Appendix XX: School Survey Analysis 
 

Question Response Rate 
 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

Responses 18 18 18 17 11 11 9 10 10 15 3 4 3 4 4 15 0 0 0 0 

Skipped 0 0 0 1 7 7 9 8 8 3 15 14 15 14 14 3 18 18 18 18 

Total 18 
 

 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 

Responses 0 15 3 4 3 4 4 15 1 1 1 1 15 13 15 4 15 12 3 3 

Skipped 18 3 15 14 15 14 14 3 17 17 17 17 3 5 3 14 3 6 15 15 

Total 18 
 

 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 58 60 

Responses 12 15 9 13 6 4 12 11 10 14 14 14 14 14 6 12 6 2 9 13 

Skipped 6 3 9 5 12 14 6 7 8 4 4 4 4 4 12 6 12 16 9 5 

Total 18 

 

 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 71 72 

Responses 6 1 13 0 4 4 4 0 0 4 10 5 

Skipped 12 17 5 18 14 14 14 18 18 14 8 13 

Total 18 

 

  

page 236



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

2 

Summary 
 

Of the 18 schools that responded to the online survey, there is one school (Mrs Ethleston's Primary) which does not have any indoor / outdoor sports facilities, 
and they have no plans to add any. 

 

 School Type: 
Please complete the following questions to record information about the 

sports facilities on your school . site Do you have this facility 

Please provide the details below of 
you school / college 

L
o

c
a
l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 

M
a
in

ta
in

e
d

 

A
c
a
d

e
m

y
 /

 t
ru

s
t 

P
ri

v
a
te

 S
c
h

o
o

l 

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
S

c
h

o
o

l 

F
a
it

h
 S

c
h

o
o

l 

S
p

o
rt

s
 H

a
ll

?
 

S
w

im
m

in
g

 P
o

o
l?

 

S
q

u
a
s
h

 C
o

u
rt

s
?

 

D
a
n

c
e
 /

 E
x
e
rc

is
e
 

S
tu

d
io

s
 

F
it

n
e
s
s
 S

u
it

e
s
?

 

N
e
tb

a
ll

 c
o

u
rt

?
 

T
e
n

n
is

 C
o

u
rt

?
 

G
ra

s
s
 o

r 
a
rt

if
ic

ia
l 

tu
rf

 p
it

c
h

e
s
?

 

M
u

lt
i 

u
s
e
 G

a
m

e
s
 

A
re

a
 (

M
U

G
A

)?
 

Axe Valley Academy  
    Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No 

Clyst St Mary Primary School      Yes No No No No Yes No No No 

Clyst Vale Community College  
    Yes No No Yes No Yes Yes Yes No 

Colyton Grammar School  
    Yes No No Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Hawkchurch C of E Primary School  
    No No No No No Yes No Yes No 

Honiton Primary School      Yes No No No No Yes No Yes No 

Membury Primary Academy  
    No No No No No No No No No 

Mill Water School    
  Yes No No No No Yes No Yes Yes 

Mrs Ethleston's Primary  
    No sports facilities 

Ottery St Mary Primary School      Yes Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes Yes 

Penny Hammett      No No No No No Yes No Yes No 

Seaton Primary      No Yes No No No Yes No Yes No 

St John’s School   
   Yes Yes No No No Yes No Yes No 

St Joseph's Catholic Primary School  
    Yes No No No No No No No No 

St Martins      Yes No No No No No No No No 

St Mary's Catholic Primary School  
   

 No No No No No Yes Yes Yes No 

Withycombe Raleigh      Yes No No No No Yes No Yes No 

page 237



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

3 

Name of School responding: 
 

Axe Valley Academy (x2) 

Clyst St Mary Primary School 

Clyst Vale Community College 

Colyton Grammar School 

Hawkchurch C of E Primary School 

Honiton Primary School 

Membury Primary Academy 

Mill Water School 

Mrs Ethleston's Primary 

Ottery St Mary Primary School 

Penny Hammett 

Seaton Primary 

St John’s School 

St Joseph's Catholic Primary School 

St Martins 

St Mary's Catholic Primary School 

Withycombe Raleigh 

Postcode distribution (Area: 500.6 km2) 
 

 
 

page 238



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

4 

School Type: 
 

 
 

Age Range: 
 

 
  

Local

Authority

Maintained

Academy /

trust

Free

School

Private

School

Special

School

Faith

School

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

11-16 2-11 2-16 3 - 11 3-11 3-19 4-11 5-11

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

page 239



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

5 

Does your school / college have any indoor / outdoor sports 
facilities? 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Please complete the following questions to record information 
about the sports facilities on your school site. Do you have this 
facility - Sports Hall? 

 

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

page 240



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

6 

Quantity: 
 

 
 

Is there organised use of the hall ? 
 

 
 

If there is community use, which team / organisations use the 
facility? 
 

 Sidmouth running club, Sidmouth netball club and Sidmouth cricket 
club 

 Sidmouth football club" 

 Bicton college 

 Village council sometimes use it if the village hall is booked. 

 East Devon Dance Academy 
 Honiton Tae Kwon Do" 

 L and F Multisports 

 Yamma 

 Swagga Fit 

 LED manage  

Sports Hall

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7+

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

page 241



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

7 

Is there secured community use* of the sports hall?* A written 
usage agreement / hire agreements must be in place for a 
facility to be described as having secured community use 
 

 

Is there 'pay and play' use of the facility? 
 
 

 
 
 

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

Yes No Don't know

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

page 242



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

8 

Do you have this facility - Swimming Pool? 
 

 
 
 

If yes, what are the dimensions of the pool? 
 
 

 20m x 8m 

 10m x 4m 
 25m pool 

Is there organised use of the pool? 

 
 
 

If there is community use, which team / organisations use the 
facility? 
 

 Sidmouth Swim Academy  

 In the summer of 2021 - Yes 

 Flamingo Pool Charity 
  

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

page 243



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

9 

Is there secured community use* of the pool?* A written usage 
agreement / hire agreements must be in place for a facility to be 
described as having secured community use 
 

 
 

Is there 'pay and play' use of the facility? 
 
 

 
 
  

Yes No Don't know

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

Yes No Don't know

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

page 244



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

10 

Do you have this facility - Squash Courts? 
 

 
 

Do you have this facility - Dance / Exercise Studios 

  
Yes No

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

page 245



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

11 

Quantity 
 

Is there organised use of the studios? 

 
 

If there is community use, which team / organisations use the 
facility? 
 
 Run by LED 

 Dance Classes 

 LED  

Dance / Exercise Studios

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

1 2

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

page 246



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

12 

Is there secured community use* of the studios?* A written 
usage agreement / hire agreements must be in place for a 
facility to be described as having secured community use 
 

Is there 'pay and play' use of the facility? 
 
 

  
Yes No Don't know

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

Yes No Don't know

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

page 247



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

13 

Do you have this facility - Fitness Suites? 
 

 
 

Is there organised use of the suite? 
 
Of the one school that has this facility they said that there was organised 
use of the fitness suite. 
 

If there is community use, which team / organisations use the 
facility? 
 

 LED 
 

Is there secured community use* of the suite?* A written usage 
agreement / hire agreements must be in place for a facility to be 
described as having secured community use 
 
The school said that they ‘didn’t know’ if there was secured community use. 
 

Is there 'pay and play' use of the facility? 
 
The school said that there was ‘pay and play’ available. 
 
  

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

page 248



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

14 

Do you have any of these facilities - Netball court? 
 

 
 
 

Quantity 
 

  

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

Netball Court 1: Netball Court 2: Netball Court 3:

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

Tarmac Grass Shale Artificial Concrete 3G 4G

page 249



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

15 

Are any of the court (s) floodlit? 
 

Number of PE hours per week 
 

  

Netball Court 1: Netball Court 2: Netball Court 3:

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

Yes No

Netball Court 1: Netball Court 2: Netball Court 3:

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

0 - 5 6 - 10 11 - 15 16 - 20 21 - 30 31 - 40 41+

page 250



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

16 

Do you have any of these facilities - Tennis Court? 
 

 

Quantity - Surface of the court (s) 
 

 
 
 
  

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

Tennis Court 1: Tennis Court 2: Tennis Court 3:

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

Tarmac Grass Shale Artificial Concrete 3G 4G

page 251



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

17 

Are any of the court (s)  floodlit? 
 

Number of PE hours per week 
 

  

Tennis Court 1: Tennis Court 2: Tennis Court 3:

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

Yes No

Tennis Court 1: Tennis Court 2: Tennis Court 3:

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

0 - 5 6 - 10 11 - 15 16 - 20 21 - 30 31 - 40 41+

page 252



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

18 

Do you have any grass or artificial turf pitches? 
 

 
 

How many artificial pitches does your school have? 
 

  
Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

0 1 2

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

page 253



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

19 

Quantity - ARTIFICIAL PITCHES 
 

Surface of the pitch 
 

Are any of the pitches floodlit? 
 
 
 

  

Artificial Pitch 1:

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

3G 4G Sand dressed Sand filled Eater based

Artificial Pitch 1:

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

Yes No

page 254



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

20 

Number of PE hours per week 
 
 

 

Which sports are played on each pitch?(please tick all that 

apply) 

 
 
  

Artificial Pitch 1:

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

0 - 5 6 - 10 11 - 15 16 - 20 21 - 30 31 - 40 41+

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

Artificial Pitch 1:

page 255



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

21 

Quantity - GRASS PITCHES 
 

How many pitches are there? 
 

 
 
 

Are any of the pitches floodlit? 
 

 
 

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

N/A 1 2 3

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

N/A Yes No

page 256



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

22 

Number of PE hours per week 
 

 
 

Football: mini

soccer (U7 - U10;

7-a-side)

Football: Junior

(11-a-side)

Football: Senior

(Adult)

Rugby Union Rugby League Cricket Rounders Grass Hockey

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

0 - 5 6 - 10 11 - 15 16 - 20 21 - 30 31 - 40 41+

page 257



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

23 

Do you have any of these facilities - Multi use Games Area 
(MUGA)? 
 

 
 

Quantity 
 
 

  

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

Multi - Use Games Area / Court (MUGA)

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

N/A 1

page 258



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

24 

Surface of the MUGA 
 

 
 

Are any of the MUGA's floodlit? 
 

  

Multi - Use Games Area / Court (MUGA)

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

Tarmac Grass Shale Artificial Concrete 3G 4G

Multi - Use Games Area / Court (MUGA)

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

Yes No

page 259



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

25 

Number of PE hours 
 
 

 

Is there organised community use of the grass pitches, artificial 
grass pitches and outdoor courts? 
 

 

 
 

Multi - Use Games Area / Court (MUGA)

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

45.00%

0 - 5 6 - 10 11 - 15 16 - 20 21 - 30 31 - 40 41+

Tennis

Courts

Netball

Courts

Artificial Turf

Pitch

Grass

Pitches

MUGA

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

Yes No Don't know

page 260



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

26 

If there is community use, which teams / organisations use the facility? 
 

Tennis Courts Netball Courts Artificial Turf Pitches Grass Pitches MUGA 

Sidmouth tennis club Sidmouth netball club  LED run Sidmouth football club LED run 

LED run LED run 
Millwey football club 
Axminster Tigers 

LED run  

Local youngsters on fast 
track county development 

Axe Valley Netball    

 
How many hours per week is this facility hired out to the community? 
 

 

Tennis Courts Netball Courts Artificial Turf Pitches Grass Pitches MUGA

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 +

page 261



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

27 

Is there secured community use* of the pitches / courts?* A written usage agreement / hire agreements must be in place for a facility 
to be described as having secured community use 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Tennis Courts Netball Courts Artificial Turf Pitches Grass Pitches MUGA

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

Yes No Don't know

page 262



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

28 

Is there 'pay and play' use of the facility? 
 

 
 

Tennis Courts Netball Courts Artificial Turf Pitches Grass Pitches MUGA

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

Yes No Don't know

page 263



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

29 

Please state the main COMMUNITY users’ gender and age 
group: 
 

Gender 
 

 

 
 
 

Age 
 

  

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

Male Female Mixed

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

0-4 years 4-11 years 12-16 years 16-18 years 18+ years

page 264



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

30 

Please state the main SCHOOL users’ gender and age group 
 
Gender: 

 

 
 
Age 

 

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

Male Female Mixed

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

Pre School (0 - 4) Primary School Age (4-11)

Secondary School Age (12-16) College / Sixth Form Age (16-18)

Further Education (18+)

page 265



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

31 

WEEKDAY USE by the SCHOOL:(please tick all that apply) 
 

 

Sports Halls Swimming Pool Dance / Exercise

Studios

Fitness Suites Netball Courts Tennis Courts Grass Pitch Artificial Turf

Pitch

Multi Use Games

Area / Court

(MUGA)

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

Monday AM Monday PM Tuesday AM Tuesday PM Wednesday AM Wednesday PM Thursday AM Thursday PM Friday AM Friday PM

page 266



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

32 

WEEKDAY USE by the COMMUNITY:(please tick all that apply) 
 

 

Sports Halls Swimming Pool Squash Courts Dance /

Exercise

Studios

Fitness Suites Netball Courts Tennis Courts Grass Pitch Artificial Turf

Pitch

Multi Use

Games Area /

Court (MUGA)

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

Monday AM Monday PM Tuesday AM Tuesday PM Wednesday AM Wednesday PM Thursday AM Thursday PM Friday AM Friday PM

page 267



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

33 

WEEKEND USE by the SCHOOL:(please tick all that apply) 
 

 
 

 

Sports Halls Swimming Pool Squash Courts Dance /

Exercise

Studios

Fitness Suites Netball Courts Tennis Courts Grass Pitch Artificial Pitch Multi Use

Games Area /

Court (MUGA)

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

8.00%

10.00%

12.00%

14.00%

16.00%

18.00%

Saturday AM Saturday PM Sunday AM Sunday PM

page 268



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

34 

WEEKEND USE by the COMMUNITY:(please tick all that apply) 
 

 

Sports Halls Swimming Pool Squash Courts Dance /

Exercise

Studios

Fitness Suites Netball Courts Tennis Courts Grass Pitch Artificial Turf

Pitch

Multi Use

Games Area /

Court (MUGA)

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

Saturday AM Saturday PM Sunday AM Sunday PM

page 269



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

35 

If there are sports facilities on the school site that are hired out, please provide the fees charged (please select N/A if the school does 
not have the type of facility specified) 
 

 
  

Sports Halls Swimming

Pools

Squash Courts Dance /

Exercise

Studios

Fitness Suites Netball Courts Tennis Courts Grass Pitch Artificial Turf

Pitch

Multi - Use

Games Area /

Court (MUGA)

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

Don't know £10 £15 £20 £25 £30 £35 £40 £45 £50 £50+

page 270



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

36 

Are there changing rooms available for the community when using the facilities? 
 

 
  

Sports halls Swimming

Pools

Squash Courts Dance /

Exercise

Studios

Fitness Suites Netball Courts Tennis Courts Grass Pitch Artificial Turf

Pitch

MUGA

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

Yes No

page 271



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

37 

If yes, how would you rate the changing facilities which serve the facility? 
 

 
  

Sports halls Swimming

Pools

Squash Courts Dance /

Exercise

Studios

Fitness Suites Netball Courts Tennis Courts Grass Pitch Artificial Turf

Pitch

MUGA

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

Very Poor Poor Average Good Very Good Excellent

page 272



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

38 

If you rated the quality of changing facilities 'poor' or 'very poor', what is the main reason for this? (please tick all tha t apply) 
 

 
 

  

Unsuitable for

community use

Number of

changing rooms

(lack thereof)

Poor shower

facilities

No shower facilities Too small Outdated / not fit

for purpose

Lack of segregation

(e.g. communal

showers serving all

changing rooms)

No valuable

storage

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

page 273



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

39 

How would you rate the overall quality of your indoor / outdoor sports facilities? 
 

 
 

 

Sports halls Swimming

Pools

Squash Courts Dance /

Exercise

Studios

Fitness Suites Netball Courts Tennis Courts Grass Pitch Artificial Turf

Pitch

MUGA

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

Very Poor Poor Average Good Very Good Excellent

page 274



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

40 

If there is currently no use of the sports facilities by the local 
community, would the school / college consider allowing 
community use in the future? 

 

 

If no, what is the main reason?(please tick all that apply) 
 
 

 

 
 
The ‘other’ responses were listed as:  
 

 No toileting facilities apart from the main school building  

 There is community use 
 No sports facilities  

Yes No Don't know

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

Vandalism Lack of Storage Operating hours Other (please

specify)

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

page 275



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

41 

Are there any current plans to provide new sports facilities in 
the future? 
 
Of the one school that responded to this question there was no plans to 
provide new sports facilities in the future. 
 

Are there any current plans to provide sport facilities or 
improve existing school / college sports facilities in the future? 
 

If yes, what new / additional provision will the facilities consist 
of? 
 

 
 
The one response that was ‘other’ said a fitness suite, but did not specify if 
it was to be a new facility, replacement or additional.  

Yes No Don't know

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

45.00%

50.00%

New artificial

pitch

New gym New Dance /

Exercise

Studio

Replacement

/

refurbishment

of MUGA

Other (please

specify)

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

page 276



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

42 

Are these facilities additional to current facilities provided, or 
are they new facilities to replace existing ones? 
 

When will the project be completed? 
 
 

  
Additional facilities Replacement facilities

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

In the next year In the next 2 years Don't know

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

page 277



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

43 

How is the project being funded?(please tick all that apply) 
 
 

 

 
 

The ‘other’ funding was listed as a ‘fundraising campaign’ to be 
held by the school

If your schools has facilities which are used by the local 
community, would it be acceptable for a consultant to 
undertake a visual inspection of them? 

 

 

School raised

funds (PTA)

Grant Government

funding

Other (please

specify)

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

Yes No

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

page 278



 

East Devon District Council 
Built Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategy 
 

 

44 

Please use this space to record any other comments you wish to make: 
 
The school has to rent the Village Hall for all indoor sports, after school clubs and lunchtime. We rent the local swimming pool to take the children swimming 
 
School has a playground/ netball court and a field facilities are dated and not fit for school's purpose let alone community.  
 

MUGA and floodlights have limited usage left.  If it isn't replaced unlikely that it will be able to be used from September 2022 due to health and safety 
concerns. 
 
The school is a tiny village school that consists of 2 classrooms and a room for other work. There is no school hall or playing field. The playground provides 
outside space but it is not big enough for a court/pitch. 
 
We have a small hall and concrete area and field we could rent out. 
 

 

page 279



Report to: LED Monitoring Forum 

 

Date of Meeting 24th May 2022 

Document classification: Part A Public Document 

Exemption applied: None 

Review date for release N/A 

 

Property and FM Team Update on LED Managed Properties 

 

Report summary: 

This report summarises property and FM activities at LED managed properties over the last three 

months and future activities. 

This report also provides an update on the recently approved capital projects at LED managed 

properties. 

Is the proposed decision in accordance with: 

Budget    Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Policy Framework  Yes ☒ No ☐  

Recommendation: 

That the Forum 

a) Note the content of this report. 

Reason for recommendation: 

To ensure Members of the Forum are informed of the property and FM activities that have taken 
place at LED managed properties over the last few months and planned future activities. 

 

Officer: Jorge Pineda-Langford – Principal Building Surveyor / Team Lead  JPineda-
Langford@eastdevon.gov.uk 01395 571633 

Tim Child, Service Lead – Place, Assets & Commercialisation tchild@eastdevon.gov.uk 01395 571692 

 

Portfolio(s) (check which apply): 

☐ Climate Action and Emergency Response 

☐ Coast, Country and Environment 

☐ Council and Corporate Co-ordination 

☐ Democracy, Transparency and Communications 

☒ Economy and Assets 

☒ Finance 

☐ Strategic Planning 

☐ Sustainable Homes and Communities 

☒ Tourism, Sports, Leisure and Culture 

 

Equalities impact Low Impact 
page 280

Agenda Item 8

mailto:JPineda-Langford@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:JPineda-Langford@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:tchild@eastdevon.gov.uk


 

Climate change Low Impact 

Risk: Low Risk 

Links to background information LED Building Maintenance Investment Requirements.LED 

Monitoring Forum.16.12.20 002.pdf (eastdevon.gov.uk), 23rd November LED Forum report 
TC.FINAL.pdf (eastdevon.gov.uk) 

Link to Council Plan 

Priorities (check which apply) 

☒ Better homes and communities for all  

☒ A greener East Devon 

☐ A resilient economy 

 
 

Report in full 

 

1.1 EDDC’s Property and FM Team continues to support and fulfil the Council’s responsibilities 
at LED managed properties. 
 

1.2 As background information, the Forum has previously received the following reports: 

 November 2021: “Update Report on Activities by Property & FM Team at LED 

Properties”.  This report covered the Council’s responsibilities at LED managed 
properties, the nature of the work that the Property and FM undertakes to fulfil the 
Council’s obligations and provided an update / summary on work being done and 

planned.  

 December 2020: “Review of LED Portfolio Building Maintenance and Investment 

Requirements”.  This report focused on the work involved in maintaining and investing 
in LED managed buildings. 

 
1.3 This report focuses on providing an update / summary on work being done and planned. 

 

1.4 A summary of planned preventive maintenance (PPM) and compliance works undertaken 
over the last few months is shown in the table below. 
 

Location 
PPM and Compliance Works 

(Feb, March April) 

Axminster Leisure Centre  Monthly Legionella checks 

 Fire Alarm Maintenance 

Broadclyst Leisure Centre  Monthly Legionella checks 

 Fire Alarm Maintenance 
 Automatic door service 

Colyton Leisure Centre  Monthly Legionella checks 

 Fire Alarm Maintenance 

Exmouth Leisure Centre  Monthly Legionella checks 

 Fire Alarm Maintenance 

 Pool Plant Maintenance 

Exmouth Tennis Centre  Monthly Legionella checks 

 Fire Alarm Maintenance 

 Roof Mansafe System Checks 

 Lightning Protection Servicing 

page 281

https://democracy.eastdevon.gov.uk/documents/s10570/LED%20Building%20Maintenance%20Investment%20Requirements.LED%20Monitoring%20Forum.16.12.20%20002.pdf
https://democracy.eastdevon.gov.uk/documents/s10570/LED%20Building%20Maintenance%20Investment%20Requirements.LED%20Monitoring%20Forum.16.12.20%20002.pdf
https://democracy.eastdevon.gov.uk/documents/s14321/23rd%20November%20LED%20Forum%20report%20TC.FINAL.pdf
https://democracy.eastdevon.gov.uk/documents/s14321/23rd%20November%20LED%20Forum%20report%20TC.FINAL.pdf
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/councilplan/


Exmouth Pavilion  Monthly Legionella checks 

 Fire Alarm Maintenance 

Honiton Leisure Centre  Monthly Legionella checks 

 Fire Alarm Maintenance 

Honiton Swimming Pool  Monthly Legionella checks 

 Fire alarm maintenance  

Ottery Leisure Centre  Roof Mansafe System Checks 

 Monthly Legionella checks 
 Fire Alarm Maintenance 

Sidmouth Leisure Centre  Monthly Legionella checks 
 Fire Alarm Maintenance 

Sidmouth Swimming Pool  Monthly Legionella checks 
 Fire Alarm Maintenance 

 
1.5 A summary of planned preventive maintenance (PPM) and compliance works planned over 

the next few months is shown in the table below. 
 

Location 
PPM and Compliance Works 

(May, June, July ) 

Axminster Leisure Centre  Heating Ventilation and AC 
Maintenance 

 Automatic door service  

 Gutter Cleaning  

 Monthly Legionella checks 

 Emergency light test 

 Ductwork Cleaning 
 TMV maintenance 

Broadclyst Leisure Centre  Heating Ventilation and AC 
Maintenance 

 Duct Work Cleaning 

 Monthly Legionella checks 

 Emergency lighting test  

 TMV maintenance 

Colyton Leisure Centre  Heating Ventilation and AC 
Maintenance 

 Emergency light test 

 Ductwork Cleaning 
 Monthly Legionella checks 

 TMV maintenance 

Exmouth Leisure Centre  Heating Ventilation and AC 
Maintenance 

 Pool Plant Maintenance 

 Automatic door service 

 Emergency light test 

 Calorex Maintenance 
 Fire Alarm Maintenance 

 Ductwork Cleaning 

 Monthly Legionella checks 

 TMV maintenance 

Exmouth Tennis Centre  Heating Ventilation and AC 
Maintenance 

 Automatic door service 

page 282



 Emergency light test 

 Ductwork Cleaning 

 Monthly Legionella checks 
 TMV maintenance 

Exmouth Pavilion  Heating Ventilation and AC 
Maintenance 

 Automatic door service 

 Roller Shutter Door Maintenance 

 Lift Inspection  

 Emergency light test 

 Ductwork Cleaning 
 Monthly Legionella checks 

 TMV maintenance 

Honiton Leisure Centre  Heating Ventilation and AC 
Maintenance 

 Automatic door service 

 Duct Cleaning 

 Monthly Legionella checks 

 TMV maintenance 

 Emergency light test 

Honiton Swimming Pool  Heating Ventilation and AC 
Maintenance 

 Pool Plant Maintenance 

 Calorex Maintenance 

 Monthly Legionella checks 

 Duct Cleaning 

 TMV maintenance 

 Emergency light test 

Ottery Leisure Centre  Heating Ventilation and AC 
Maintenance 

 Automatic Door Maintenance 
 Emergency light test 

 Duct Cleaning 

 Monthly Legionella checks 

 TMV maintenance 

Sidmouth Leisure Centre  Heating Ventilation and AC 
Maintenance 

 Automatic door service 

 Duct Cleaning 
 Monthly Legionella checks 

 Emergency light test 

 TMV maintenance 

Sidmouth Swimming Pool  Heating Ventilation and AC 
Maintenance 

 Pool Plant Maintenance  

 Automatic door service 

 Emergency light test 

 Duct Cleaning 
 Monthly Legionella checks 

 TMV maintenance 

  

page 283



1.6 Other planned works not listed above, completed over the last three months and planned 
over the next three months.  

 

Location Other Planned Work Status 

Broadclyst Leisure 
Centre 

Repairs to storage areas 
door. 

Ordered, planned for 
May half term 

Colyton Leisure 
Centre 

Shower TMVs replacement Ordered, planned for 
May half term 

Colyton Leisure 
Centre 

Heating boiler replacement Ordered, planned for 
May half term 

Exmouth Pavilion Hot water cylinder 
replacement 

Completed 

Exmouth Pavilion Roof works over loading bay Ordered, awaiting 
contractors availability 

Honiton Leisure 
Centre 

Squash court repairs Ordered, awaiting 
contractors availability 

Honiton Swimming 
Pool 

Changing rooms 
refurbishment  

Completed, defect 
period. 

Ottery Leisure Centre Relining of drains Completed 

Sidmouth Swimming 
Pool 

Replacement of boiler Completed. 

 
1.7 A summary of reactive jobs by property and allocation is shown in the table below.   

 
 Reactive Jobs (allocation) 

Property 
Maintenance. 
Technicians 

External 
Contractors 

Total 

Axminster Leisure 
Centre 

4 7 11 

Broadclyst Leisure 
Centre 

4 0 4 

Colyton Leisure Centre 3 6 9 

Exmouth Leisure Centre 3 8 11 

Exmouth Tennis Centre 3 7 10 

Exmouth Pavilion 17 8 25 

Honiton Leisure Centre 3 4 7 

Honiton swimming Pool 2 10 12 

Ottery Leisure Centre 2 6 8 

Sidmouth Leisure Centre 2 3 5 

Sidmouth swimming 
Pool 

8 15 23 

Totals 51 74 125 

% by allocation 41% 59%  

 

41% of reactive jobs are done in house by the Property and FM Team.  Whilst the 
remaining work is done by external contractors the team manages the work and provides 
technical support as required. 

  

page 284



 
1.8 The distribution of reactive work by property is shown in the chart below. 

 

 
 

Worth noting the properties with higher level of reactive work are the older properties and 
those with swimming pools.  This is a logical pattern due to wear and tear and complexity. 
 

 

page 285



1.9 A summary of approved capital projects at LED managed properties is provided in the table below, including their status. 
 

Capital Project Property Description of the Work 

Funding 

Approved 
(2022/2023  

Budget) 

Work 

Planned 
For 

Status / Comments 

Refurbishment and 
improvement works 

Exmouth 
Pavilion 

 Removal and replacement of 
asbestos containing safety 
curtain, including enabling 
works 

 Asbestos removal works under 
stage 

 Sprinkler system repairs / 
replacement 

 Blown render to tower 

 Access to roof and mansafe 

£352,000.00 2023/24 Structural engineer appointed 

Roof Replacement Broadclyst LC Whole roof replacement £575,575.00 2023/24 To be tendered 

Roof Replacement Ottery St Mary 
LC 

Whole roof replacement 2022/23 Contractor appointed, work 
planned for the summer 

FRA remedial works Axminster LC Various remedial works arising 
from fire risk assessments 

£431,000.00 2023/24 Consultant to be appointed 

FRA remedial works Broadclyst LC Various remedial works arising 
from fire risk assessments 

2023/24 Consultant to be appointed 

FRA remedial works Colyton LC Various remedial works arising 
from fire risk assessments 

2023/24 Consultant to be appointed 

FRA remedial works Exmouth East 
Devon Tennis 
Centre 

Various remedial works arising 
from fire risk assessments 

2023/24 Consultant to be appointed 

FRA remedial works Exmouth LC Various remedial works arising 
from fire risk assessments 

2023/24 Consultant to be appointed 

FRA remedial works Exmouth 
Pavilion 

Various remedial works arising 
from fire risk assessments 

2023/24 Consultant to be appointed 

page 286



FRA remedial works Honiton LC Various remedial works arising 
from fire risk assessments 

2023/24 Consultant to be appointed 

FRA remedial works Honiton 
Swimming 
Pool 

Various remedial works arising 
from fire risk assessments 

2023/24 Consultant to be appointed 

FRA remedial works Ottery St Mary 
LC 

Various remedial works arising 
from fire risk assessments 

2023/24 Consultant to be appointed 

FRA remedial works Sidmouth LC Various remedial works arising 
from fire risk assessments 

2023/24 Consultant to be appointed 

FRA remedial works Sidmouth 
Swimming 
Pool 

Various remedial works arising 
from fire risk assessments 

2023/24 Consultant to be appointed 

Floor repairs and 
replacement 

Axminster LC Sports hall floor replacement £364,550.00 2022/23 Contractor appointed, works 
planned for the summer 

Floor repairs and 
replacement 

Colyton LC Sport hall repairs and changing 
rooms floor replacement. 

2023/24 To be tendered 

Floor repairs and 
replacement 

Exmouth LC Sports hall and squash court floor 
repairs 

2023/24 To be tendered 

Floor repairs and 
replacement 

Honiton LC Sports hall floor replacement 2022/23 Contractor appointed, awaiting 
contractor's availability 

Floor repairs and 
replacement 

Ottery St Mary 
LC 

Studio Floor replacement 2022/23 Contractor appointed, works 
planned for the summer 

Floor repairs and 
replacement 

Sidmouth LC Sports hall floor replacement 2023/24 To be tendered 

Swimming pool plants 
repairs and replacement; 
pumps, filters etc. 

Exmouth 
Swimming 
Pool 

 Pumps replacement 

 filter media replacement  
 filter vessel refurbishment 

£126,500.00 2022/23 To be tendered 

Swimming pool plants 
repairs and replacement; 
pumps, filters etc. 

Honiton 
Swimming 
Pool 

 Pumps replacement  

 filter media replacement 

 filter vessel refurbishment 

2022/23 To be tendered 

page 287



Swimming pool plants 
repairs and replacement; 
pumps, filters etc. 

Sidmouth 
Swimming 
Pool 

 Pumps replacement 

 filter media replacement 

 filter vessel refurbishment 

2022/23 To be tendered 

Extractor fans, AC, AHU 
upgrades and 
refurbishment 

Axminster LC  School changing rooms extract 
fans x 3 

 Gym AC system 

 Shower extract fans x 1 

£172,500.00 2022/23 To be tendered 

Extractor fans, AC, AHU 
upgrades and 
refurbishment 

Colyton LC  HRU replacement 

 External louvres replacement 

2022/23 To be tendered 

Extractor fans, AC, AHU 
upgrades and 
refurbishment 

Exmouth East 
Devon Tennis 
Centre 

Fan motors 2022/23 To be tendered 

Extractor fans, AC, AHU 
upgrades and 
refurbishment 

Exmouth LC  Studio 2 power to ventilation 
fans 

 Pool plant control panel 

 BMS remedials 

2022/23 To be tendered 

Extractor fans, AC, AHU 
upgrades and 
refurbishment 

Exmouth 
Pavilion 

Fire dampers 2022/23 To be tendered 

Extractor fans, AC, AHU 
upgrades and 
refurbishment 

Honiton LC AC plant replacement 2022/23 To be tendered 

Extractor fans, AC, AHU 
upgrades and 
refurbishment 

Ottery St Mary 
LC 

AC plant replacement 2022/23 To be tendered 

Extractor fans, AC, AHU 
upgrades and 
refurbishment 

Ottery St Mary 
LC 

Replacement of existing oil tank 
and supporting structure 

2022/23 Contractor appointed, work 
planned for the summer 

Extractor fans, AC, AHU 
upgrades and 
refurbishment 

Sidmouth 
Swimming 
Pool 

AC and AHU replacement 2022/23 To be tendered 

page 288



Pool Energy 
Management System 

Honiton 
Swimming 
Pool 

Provision of Sentry Intelligent 
Management System for pool 
pumps to provide energy savings 

£62,500.00 2022/23 Awaiting costs from specialist 

Pool Energy 
Management System 

Exmouth 
Swimming 
Pool 

Provision of Sentry Intelligent 
Management System for pool 
pumps to provide energy savings 

2022/23 Awaiting costs from specialist 

Pool Energy 
Management System 

Sidmouth 
Swimming 
Pool 

Provision of Sentry Intelligent 
Management System for pool 
pumps to provide energy savings 

2022/23 Awaiting costs from specialist 

Cold Water Storage 
Tank 

Exmouth 
Swimming 
Pool 

Replacement of cold Cater Storage 
Tank or conversion to mains water 
supply. 

£21,000.00 2022/23 To be tendered 

Stage Equipment 
Remedials and 
Improvements 

Exmouth 
Pavilion 

Stage equipment remedials and 
recommended improvement works 
arising from Stage Electrics report 

£56,500.00 2022/23 To be tendered.  Total funding 
£56,500 includes Sidmouth 
Manor Pavilion 

Energy Efficiency 
Review 

Corporate and 
LED 
Properties 

Appointment of consultant to 
review existing energy 
performance of existing Corporate 
and LED buildings and propose 
best  energy saving solution for 
each property 

£60,000.00 2022/23 Consultant to be appointed.  
Note this project also include 
non LED managed properties. 

page 289



1.10 The Team and LED continue to meet monthly to review progress on current work and 
identifying new work.  This arrangement continues to ensure a good level of operational 

communication between the parties. 
 

 

Financial implications: 

The financial details are included in the report. 

 

Legal implications: 

There is no direct comment to be made in relation to the report, each and any individual issue will 

need to be considered as it arises. 

 

page 290



Report to:  EDDC LED Monitoring Forum – May 2022 

Subject:  Facilities and Activities Update  

From:   Jamie Bryant, Director of Delivery, LED Community Leisure  

Date:   13/5/22 

 Operational Delivery 
 

I am pleased to report that at the time of writing the impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic on the 
operational delivery of the business continues to diminish, albeit some headwinds remain with the 
recovery due in part to the global economy, the pressure on consumer discretionary spending and the 
challenges with team member resourcing. 
 
Patronage and customer visits continue to move in the right direction, with the key activity numbers 
being maintained throughout the traditionally quieter Easter period, remaining (albeit reducing) 
uncertainty around Covid restriction being lifted, increasing inflation and world events impacting 
consumers discretionary spend choices.  After what is a traditionally challenging month (Easter, Bank 
Holiday etc) for membership sales, it is very positive to report a 4th month in a row of positive net 
movement on the Club Live month end position. 
 
As mentioned above, April saw a positive movement in the total membership number, with just under 
400 people joining an LED facility and a small positive net gain to the club live total.  Club Live finished 
on 8,352 at the end of April. 
 
Membership attrition was stable throughout April, running at just over 4% for the month.  Attrition 
varied by site with some of the smaller sites seeing attrition between 6% - 7%, the majority of sites 
with a material membership base maintaining an attrition rate between 3% - 4%. 
 
The Customer Hub continues to improve service levels, (based on reduced level of negative comments 
via NPS / social media / onsite about calls not being answered), incoming call stats are shared with the 
team to support the ongoing rationale for the hub model , a call answer rate in excess of 80% was 
achieved during April.  Focus now turns to how we can support the customer experience further with 
better online information to support the reduction of incoming calls to the hub, to allow the hub team 
to support more ‘outbound activity’.  
 
Axminster has secured some funding for free coaching in the community and is looking to link with 
the community Waffle House who are already working with young people from families 
predominantly on low income to provide activities for them. We are currently working on an exit 
route for these children so that affordable football coaching can continue beyond the free sessions.   
 
Street Dance & Gymnastics has started at Exmouth Leisure Centre with 100% attendance and 
occupancy, given the level of interest and demand, the team have adjusted the ages to increase 
capacity and are exploring how the programme can be expanded. 
 
Daniel Cudmore has started in his new role as the fitness lead at Exmouth Leisure Centre with 
exciting plans moving forward and new equipment that has seen very positive feedback. 
 
The tennis centre has re-started its outdoor programme in Phear Park.  This has been set up to 
introduce new players to the program during the summer and enhance the indoor program in the 
winter. Preparation for the next tennis event is well under way with the French Open fast 
approaching. 

page 291

Agenda Item 9



 
We said a sad farewell to a couple of long-serving colleagues in April, Sam Saxby, our tennis 
development manager after 4 years at the Tennis Centre and Karen Cann left our team at Sidmouth 
after 36 years’ service.   
 
Health & Fitness 
 
1,262 indoor classes (including 60 virtual) were offered in April with an average 53% uptake and 12,549 
visits, higher during peak times.  Seaton have introduced new synergy classes onto the gym floor and 
Exmouth are now developing functional classes onto the gym floor for members including the return 
of Senior Functional Fit.  At Exmouth TC they have introduced new morning and evening HITT (High 
Intensity) Core classes within the gym area.  Honiton have launched a new Mum and Toddler session 
to support new mums, and this will be replicated in the Axminster area next.  We have replaced the 
spin bikes at Sidmouth LC and the centre now offers the best bikes on the market with the Keiser M3I. 
 
Group ex has launched at Broadclyst with a studio cycling class in the hall, which has been well 
attended, this initiative will help support providing a level of service to the  people in Cranbrook area, 
with Cranbrook being marketed also with the benefit of the self-access hire model in operation.  
 
The gyms had 9,710 visits in April, we continue to offer a hybrid model of booking or turning up.  This 
has recently been reviewed and we will be removing the bookable slots from June due to customer 
feedback.   We have moved equipment around and now have a new Technogym Climb at Axminster 
and Seaton.  The Exmouth gym development is still waiting a platform and a loaded leg press which 
will finish off the project.   LED are working on developing 3 packages to offer to customers which will 
be Strength & Conditioning, Weight Loss, and Toning.  LED has developed the Gym Journey and 
reviewed the steps so it can support our members. 
 
Swimming is going from strength to strength with over 21,000 attendees, the bookable lane swimming 
is very popular.  There is going to be a review about how bookings work moving forward for our Swim 
for All session so that non-members can attend.   Honiton is now opened it doors to Funsplash sessions 
from May which will help support our younger market. 
 
Swim School is close to 2,300 participants on the scheme and is at its highest ever.  Sites are developing 
intensive courses to help clear and support waiting lists.  The Swim school leadership group continue 
to provide a great service in difficult times due to instructor illness.    A big well done must go to Kerry 
Davis, Rowena Bosworth and Katy Yardley who continue to drive the swim school under some 
challenging circumstances. 
 
Customer Feedback / Service 
 
TRP (a member interaction software system) is going well with the team using this system to engage 
with members to support them on their fitness journey.   As a group in April 2022, we interacted with 
59.5% of high-risk users with an effectiveness of 73.4%.   We aim for <30% of our gym users being high 
risk and in April this was 34% which is higher than usual.   
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022
page 292



Customer Feedback / Service 
 
The new in club survey is going well and had some great feedback in April.  Great positive feedback 
about the Virtual Group exercise at Axminster and some suggestions about how we could develop our 
operations to support our members.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The key measure for our customer satisfaction is through NPS (Net Promoter Score), the results from 
April were 29 from relationary surveys sent out but a score of 38 for all other surveys (the industry 
benchmark is a score above 41. There were 186 surveys returned out of 1,212 sent out (15% return).  
The team continue to monitor and respond to the feedback to help improve the customer experience.  
Out of the 186 responses, 38 were detractors with main concerns around programming, facilities and 
the offering available to members.  
 

page 293



Facilities  
 
The Annual independent Health and Safety Audits have continued with the final 2 audits happening 
during May and a full update will be provided in June.  Feedback thus far has been very positive with 
positive demonstration of both strong processes and a strong ‘Safety Culture’ in place.  
 
Energy management focus remains throughout the buildings, a communications plan remains in 
place and best (and worst, to support ongoing learning) practice is shared by the teams on weekly 
calls  
 
A wider plan is being reviewed by EDDC / LED to ensure programming of the EDDC capital works to 
LED facilities is delivered to minimise customer disruption. 
 
Accidents, Incidents and Near Misses 
 
There were 13 accidents reported in April, one of which was reportable. A badminton player at 
Sidmouth Leisure Centre tripped over her own feet and suffered a dislocated wrist. The incident was 
dealt with efficiently on site and post incident enquiries as to her wellbeing took place.  
 

 
 
 
Projects Update  
 
Honiton Pool Changing Rooms 
 
The changing rooms were closed at the start of May for a short period so that outstanding snagging 
works could be completed.  The area continues to receive positive feedback and has already helped 
support the growth of the swim school programme. 
 
Sidmouth Pool Changing Room 
 
Works are now in their final week (w/c 16th May), slightly longer than expected, a “you said, we did” 
newsletter will be completed for customers over the coming weeks to communicate the works done 
and how we (EDDC / LED) have responded to customer feedback.  General feedback thus far has 
been positive.  Due to the approach taken by LED with the works, this has enabled some small 
adjustments to both the programme and work scope for the benefit of customers also. 
 

page 294



Pool Sentry 
 
This project to provide a pool water intelligent management system for the 3 LED pool sites has 
been approved by EDDC Forum and Cabinet Members as it gives a strong ROI and links to EDDC 
carbon reduction strategy. The works will cost c.£50k and will provide benefit with reduction in gas, 
water and electric consumption as well as improved water quality, thus aiding customer comfort and 
a lower reliance on team member input on pool water management.  The works will be managed 
and delivered by EDDC Property Team. 
 
Marketing and Communications  
 
I am really pleased to say that after regular, thorough reviews and optimisation of our approach to 
acquisition campaigns we have already exceeded our 2021 Expected New Joiners (XNJ) figures! 
 
2022 XNJ/J cumulative total 

 Facebook: 39.6 XNJ 
 LED app: 13 J 

 PPC: 32.1 XNJ 

 Total: 84.7 XNJ (+.7 on 2021) 
 
Social Media highlights 
Behind the curtains: As reported in last month’s marketing report we shifted focus to producing 
content that highlights our team members and their personalities to show what goes on ‘behind the 
curtains’ across LED. After initial hesitation from site teams lacking confidence in front of camera , 
the team to help deliver this content. After the first round of visits across all East Devon sites we 
have identified key team members across the board to work with moving forward who will step up 
as ‘the faces of LED’. 
 
Myth busters: This content aims to address common misconceptions about LED/the fitness industry 
as a whole in a light-hearted video taking inspiration from the ‘mean tweets’ series you may have 
seen. We have worked with teams from Exmouth Tennis & Fitness Centre, membership advisors and 
our community engagement team to deliver this content and have arranged a team meeting to 
organise a follow up series.  

page 295

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=6f4oKjlLYK0&t=16s


 

page 296



     
 
Facebook ads 
 
As outlined in March & April campaign reports £/XNJ has become a concern and we have previously 
outlined plans to diversify our activity to improve ROI. After discussions with our partner agencies 
such as Optix and Big Wave Media these plans are starting to be put in place from May/June 2022.  
 

 Continued to work with MA team to deliver student membership artwork across dual-use sites. 

 YouTube ads trial in preparation for Sky advertising 

 Agreed in principle to work with partner organisations on a campaign for July/August. 
 Organize a meeting with site sales teams to discuss targeting for site-specific leads. 
 
Email 
 
We have now set up to day 75 of an automated email journey for new members based on 
attendance data at key landmarks. After a review with TRP they have identified the need to review 
to some copy and create a series of header designs. This project is planned to launch on June 1st.  
 
App 
 
Bring a buddy: Following an internal update we reintroduced the Bring a Buddy feature to the LED 
app and have so far seen a positive return from this channel. These figures are promising given there 
is no financial incentive for members to refer a friend, suggesting good potential for an incentivised 
campaign should the opportunity arise without significantly threatening yield. (2022 cumulative 
total: 13 joiners) 
 
Summary 
 
Another positive month, with the recovery continuing to move in the right direction, despite the 
challenges mentioned above. Key capital projects coming to conclusion have yielded positive 
customer feedback.  A busy Easter period saw good attendances, albeit testing an already stretched 
workforce with the ongoing challenges in the labour market continuing to be felt across the board. 
 
Jamie Bryant, Director of Delivery, LED Community Leisure 

page 297



Report to:  EDDC LED Monitoring Forum – May 2022 

Subject:  Community Delivery  

From:   Andrew Dare – Fitness and Wellbeing Manager, LED Community Leisure  

Date:   17/5/22 

Community Update May 2022 
 

 Team member attended the ‘Move More’ Cranbrook meeting.  Looking at ways to engage the 
community through the Local Delivery Pilot funding from Sport England.  
 

 The Ottery St Mary team will be attending the Cranbrook Health and Wellbeing Day on 21st 
May.  They will be taking the Inbody machine. 

 

 New Connective Activity to Nature Balance in the Gardens class starts on Thursday, 19th May in 
Seafield gardens.  Targeting inactive over 55s to become active within the natural 
environment.  The class will be a beginners/low level Body Balance class. 

 

 We will be delivering a Walk Leader training course to 18 participants on the 26th May.  The 
volunteers are recruited from our current area groups, the Honiton Memory Café and 6 of the 
new Mental Health Coaches. 

 

 The community team from Exmouth Leisure Centre will be having a stand at Littleham Health 
and Wellbeing Fair.  We will be offering health checks with the Inbody machine, LED will be 
delivering a Yoga taster session.   It is hoped that after this we will be able to support the 
community by offering a class in Littleham. 

 

 An initial meeting with the Exmouth Stroke Survivors Club took place to see how LED can 
support them to become more active.  Early talks are in place with the team at Exmouth Leisure 
Centre to put a programme together for their group. 

 

 A new parent and toddler session has started at Honiton Leisure Centre in April aiming to offer a 
fitness session that parents can bring their under 5s along to, therefore eliminating the barrier to 
participation.  The sessions have initially been subsidised to ensure access to all, there will be an 
opportunity at the end of the session to have coffee and chat with other parents.   Now 
preparation has started for a session in Axminster. 

 
 A new project for Year 8s at Honiton Community College - a fitness instructor from Honiton 

Leisure Centre will be visiting the school once a week to help improve the fitness levels of 
students that have suffered through the pandemic with the transition to senior school.  

 

 We have continued working with Littleham Primary School, Exmouth and “Heads Up” a mental 
health charity and during May we will be visiting the Leisure centre with the children to provide 
their activity session there as well as introduce them to the rest of the centre to make them 
more comfortable and confident to visit again. 

 

 A yoga session has started at Exmouth Community College to deliver some sessions to students 
that are suffering from anxiety issues this maybe because of exam pressure or a knock-on effect 
from covid. 

 

page 298

Agenda Item 10



 Sessions at Withycombe Primary School will start shortly with Year1 on the outdoor gym 
equipment, Year 5 girls struggling with anxiety and Year 6 students general wellbeing session in 
preparation for their transition to senior school. 

 

 We have secured some additional funding for Swim to the Sea sessions, from Sideshore and 
Active Devon to deliver 2 courses, 1 for young people working with Year 6’s at Littleham Primary 
and then an Over 55’s group in the deprived area of Exmouth  

 

 We continue to develop our links with the NHS, Primary Care Networks using Honiton and 
Exmouth as the pilot sites.  The classes are going well with a new NHS Activation class at 
Exmouth LC coming to the end of the first 6-week block.  The plan is now for these clients to 
integrate into LED Activities. 

 

 Cardiac Rehab is to be funded by the NHS for the next 12 months at Honiton LC and we are 
working with the cardiac team to support another team member to be qualified in the Exmouth 
area. 

 
 The LED team have now got to meet the new Mental Health Connectors and Coaches across East 

Devon and are going to support those patients that wish to use exercise as a pathway.  A new 3 
steps pathway has been developed to help support these clients.  

 

 Initial conversations are being held with the NHS Community Falls team around a targeted pilot 
for 12 months to help support people in the community at risk of falling across East Devon.  

 
 
 

 
 

 

page 299



Power BI Desktop Date

April 2022





LED Community Leisure
EDDC KPI Performance Dashboard

Axminster
Leisure Centre

Broadclyst
Leisure Centre

Bucklers Mead
Leisure Centre

Colyton Leisure
Centre

Exmouth
Leisure Centre

Exmouth Tennis
Centre

Honiton Leisure
Centre

Ottery Leisure
Centre

Seaton Fitness
Centre

Sidmouth
Leisure Centre

Sidmouth
Swimming Pool

NPS Score

41

-100 100
25

Sites Below Target

Axminster Leisure Centre: 
-50

Ottery Leisure Centre: 0
Sidmouth Leisure Centre: 0
Sidmouth Swimming Pool: 6
Honiton Leisure Centre: 22

1.73%

Swimming

21,329

Gym

12233

Group
Exercise

12549

Sports

8240

-10.91% -13.79%

Total Attendances

% Change since last month

-48.53%

0.26%

2.05%

5.86%

0.00K%

0.29%

8352

398

343

£251.33K

£30.09

Club Live

Joiners

Leavers

Memberships

Yield

% Change
Monthly

Actual

Club Live by Month

7800

8000

8200

8400

Cl
ub

 L
iv

e

Dec 2021 Jan 2022 Feb 2022 Mar 2022 Apr 2022

Total Attendance Trend over Previous 6 Months

40K

60K

StartDate

N
um

be
r 

O
f A

tt
en

da
nc

es

Nov 2021 Dec 2021 Jan 2022 Feb 2022 Mar 2022 Apr 2022

Attendance by type Previous 6 Months (excluding swim
school)

StartDate

N
um

be
r 

O
f A

tt
en

da
nc

es

Nov 2021 Jan 2022 Mar 2022

Attendancetype
Casual Swimmi…

Exercise Class A…

Facility Specific …

Gym Attendances

page 300

A
genda Item

 11



Document is Restricted

page 301

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 12 April 2022
	7 Draft Leisure & Built Facilities Strategy
	070622 East Devon District Council Leisure Strategy
	070622 East Devon Leisure Strategy 5 Year Action Plan
	Appendix 1 - EDDC Leisure Strategy List of consultees
	Appendix 2 -  East Devon Supply and Demand Assessment
	Appendix 2: Supply and Demand
	Assessment of Individual Facility Types
	Sports Halls and Activity Halls
	Quantity
	Quality
	Accessibility
	Availability
	National Governing Bodies (NGB’s)
	Sport England Facility Planning Model (FPM)
	Sports Halls
	Supply and Demand Analysis
	Swimming Pools
	Quantity
	Quality
	Accessibility
	Availability
	National Governing Bodies
	Sports England Facility Planning Model (FPM)
	Health and Fitness Facilities
	Quantity
	Availability
	Squash
	Squash: Quantity
	Squash: Quality
	Squash: Accessibility
	Squash: Availability
	Squash: NGB Consultation - England Squash
	Squash: Summary of Supply and Demand
	Indoor Bowls
	Indoor Bowls: Quantity
	Indoor Bowls: Summary of Supply and Demand
	NGB England Bowls Consultation
	Indoor Tennis
	Indoor Tennis: Summary of Supply and Demand
	Gymnastics Centres
	Gymnastics Centres: Quantity
	Gymnastics Centres: NGB Consultation
	Athletics
	Athletics: Summary of Supply and Demand
	Other Athletic Tracks in Devon:

	Appendix 3 - EDDC - Community Leisure Survey Analysis
	Appendix 4 - EDDC - Sports Club Survey Analysis
	Appendix 5 - EDDC - School Survey Analysis

	8 Property & FM Team Update on properties occupied by LED
	9 LED Facilities and Activities Update May 2022
	10 LED Community Engagement Report May 2022
	11 LED Dashboard April 2022
	12 Colyton Leisure Centre - Proposals to restructure operating arrangements with the school

